
 

 

Pennington County fully subscribes to the Americans with Disabilities Act.  If you 

desire to attend this public meeting and need accommodations, please notify the 

Commissioners’ Office at (605) 394-2171 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting so that 

appropriate services and auxiliary aids are available. 

Scan the code to access the 

agenda packet online.  

PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

PROPOSED MEETING AGENDA  

NOVEMBER 1, 2022  

9:00 A.M. 

COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

 
 

 

 
Agenda disclaimer: The preferred practice of the Board is to proceed thru the agenda in the order it is 

published. From time to time, agenda items may be disposed of quickly leaving a gap in the meeting agenda 

prior to the next advertised agenda item start time. To utilize time effectively in those circumstances, the Board 

may move items up on the agenda to fill those gaps. 

 

Welcome to the November 1st, 2022 Board of Commissioners Meeting. 

Please silence cell phones, pagers and other electronic communication devices. 

Agendas and speaker request forms are located at the back of the Chambers. 

 

1. Call to Order 

2. Moment of Silent Reflection - To the men and women in uniform 

and their families…  past, present and future; THANK YOU for 

your service to our great Country!   

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Review and Approve Agenda 

5. Veterans Recognition: 

• Pennington County Employees 

• Pennington County Veterans Service Office 

• Secretary of the South Dakota Department of Veterans 

Affairs, Mr. Greg Whitlock 

6. Executive Proclamation - Sergeant Colton Levi ‘Delta Derr’ Day 

 
The Board of Commissioners uses a Consent Agenda to act on non-controversial and routine items. The 

Consent Agenda is acted upon by one motion and vote of the Board. Items may be removed from the Consent 

Agenda and placed on the Regular Agenda at the request of a Board member or a Citizen. The consent agenda 

contains the following items: 

 

7. Minutes of the regular meeting – October 18, 2022 

8. To acknowledge disinterment permit #1491751 (COM) 

9. Approval of Hill City’s Olde Tyme Christmas Lighted Parade Entry Form (COM) 

10. Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding - Lawrence County Snow Removal 

(HWY)  

 
End of Consent Agenda 

 

 

 

 

Gary Drewes, Chair, District 5      Ron Rossknecht, District 1 

Lloyd LaCroix, Vice Chair, District 2     Deb Hadcock, District 3 

                                                                                                                   Travis Lasseter, District 4 

                                          

 



 

 

Regular Agenda Items: 

 

11. Items From Highway Department 

 

 a. Work Order for Engineering Services – Reservoir Road & Lamb Road   

  Intersection 

b. Authorization to Purchase one new Traveling Axle Lowboy Trailer 

 

12. Items From the Building Committee 

 

a. Courthouse Entry Addition 3rd Floor Buildout - Design Services Proposal 

b. Property Acquisition (Recommendation) 

 

13. Items From the Compensation Committee 

 

a. 2023 Wage Scale Implementation 

 

14. Items From Commission Manager 

  

a. Resolution for funding for the Western Dakota Regional Water System 

 

15. Request for Agenda Presentation – Mr. Chet Ellsworth 

  

a. Commission Item Submission Rules, 2/4/2014 

b. Register of Deeds - Rejection of Documents 

 

16. Approval of the Vouchers - $566,215.09 

 

17. Items From Public (Speaker request form is required) 
(A time for the members of the public to discuss or express concerns to the Board of Commissioners on policies and issues affecting 

County government and its function. Action will not be taken during this item on any issues brought forth that are not properly noticed. 

Speakers under this item will be recorded in the minutes by name and area of interest.) 

 

18. Items From Planning & Zoning – 10:30 a.m. 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT HEARING(S): 

 

a. Variance / VA 22-21: No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston. To reduce 

the setback to a residential zoning district from 500 feet to 105 feet for a 

telecommunications tower in accordance with Sections 212, 316, and 509 of the 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance 

b. Variance / VA 22-22: No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston. To reduce 

the setback from 1.1 times the height of the telecommunications tower to a non-

residential zoning district in accordance with Sections 212, 316, and 509 of the 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

UNCONTESTED HEARING(S): 

 

c. Public Hearing of Comprehensive Plan Amendment / CA 22-20: Brian Schroeder; 

Davis Engineering – Agent. To amend the Comprehensive Plan to change the 

Future Land Use from Agriculture District to Ranchette District in accordance 

with Sections 205, 206, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

(Planning Commission recommended to continue Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment / CA 22-20 to the 12/20/22 BOC meeting to allow the applicants time 

to apply for and obtain an approved Subdivision Regulations Variance for 

increased lots on a dead-end road system) 

d. Public Hearing of Rezone / RZ 22-27: Brian Schroeder; Davis Engineering - 

Agent. To rezone 14.17 acres from Agriculture District to Ranchette District in 

accordance with Sections 205, 206, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning 

Ordinance. (Planning Commission recommended to continue Rezone / RZ 22-27 

to the 12/20/22 BOC meeting to allow the applicants time to apply for and obtain 

an approved Subdivision Regulations Variance for increased lots on a dead-end 

road system) 

 

CONTESTED HEARING(S): 

 

e. Public Hearing of Major Planned Unit Development Amendment / PU 22-13:  

Blue Wing Recreation Corporation; Ron Rossknecht. To amend the existing 

Planned Unit Development to reduce the required building setback from Blue 

Wing Road from 10 feet to 5 feet in accordance with Section 216 of the 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. (Planning Commission recommended 

approval of Major Planned Unit Development Amendment / PU 22-13 with nine 

(9) conditions) 

f. Public Hearing of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-09: Pennington County. To 

add Section 517 “Special Permitted Uses” [to add Section 517 “Special Permitted 

Uses”] to the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. (Planning Commission 

recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-09) 

g. Public Hearing of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-10: Pennington County. To 

amend Section 204 “General District Provisions” [to amend and supersede the 

existing 204 “General District Provisions”] of the Pennington County Zoning 

Ordinance. (Planning Commission recommended approval of Ordinance 

Amendment / OA 22-10) 

h. Public Hearing of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-11: Pennington County. To 

amend Section 103 “Definitions” [to amend and supersede the existing 103 

“Definitions”] of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. (Planning 

Commission recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-11) 

i. Request for Release of Surety / Final Plat 21-91: Sudbury Ranch Land Holding, 

LLC / Casey Skyberg. Improvements for the roads and utilities have been 

completed for Lot 2R and Lots 3 through 11, Sudbury Ranch Subdivision, Section 

21, T1S, R7E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota, in the amount of 

$155,000.00 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

19. Items From Chair/Commission Members 
(A time for individual members to bring forth ideas or concerns to the full Board. Official action will not be taken on any items 
brought forth at this time. Direction may be given to bring items back before the Board for future consideration.) 

  

20. Committee Reports – Scheduled meetings by Commissioner 

 

 TL –  Community Health Center Board 

 LL – BH Council of Local Governments, Community Health Center Board 

 GD – MPO Executive Policy Committee, City/County, BH Council of Local Gov’t 

RR – PC Housing & Redevelopment, MPO Executive Policy, Planning Commission, 

City/County 

 DH – PC Housing & Redevelopment, Compensation Committee, JSC Advisory Board 

 ALL – North Central Regional Local Road Conference 

 

21. Executive Session per SDCL 1-25-2 

 

a. Personnel Issue per SDCL 1-25-2(1) 

- Department Head Annual Review(s) 

b. Contractual/Pending Litigation per SDCL 1-25-2(3) 

  

22. Adjourn 

 



Pennington County Employee Veterans 

Thank you for your service to our Country and to our County! 

Dave Eccleston  BG 

Mike Kuhl  BG 

Steve Luken  BG 

Travis Lasseter  COM 

Dustin Willett  EM 

Sean Holloway  EQ 

Gordon Wendell  EQ 

Jim Adams  ESCC 

Shannon Brewer ESCC 

Paul Dockter   ESCC 

Dani Ellerton   ESCC 

Sam Gustafson   ESCC 

Ming Ng  ESCC 

Ted Rufledt  ESCC 

Adam Scott  ESCC 

Elizabeth Scott   ESCC 

Lee Borries  HHS 

Heather Funk   HHS 

Alex Purcell  HHS 

Tom Vallette   HHS 

Sandy Sortland  HR 

David Burnette  HWY 

William Huggins  HWY 

Dennis Jensen   HWY 

Mitchell Kammerer HWY 

John Paulin  HWY 

Jeffrey Sorensen  HWY 

Revised Veteran/Employee List



Curtis Southwick  HWY 

Garland Spears   HWY 

Ronald Stagner   HWY 

Michael Sutterer   HWY 

David Way    HWY 

Jay Wetzel    HWY 

Daniel Leetch    IT 

Nathan Mertes   IT 

Bryan Andersen   PDO 

Randy Decker    PDO 

Thomas Vlieger   PDO 

Dwayne Allen    PZ 

Jason Theunissen   PZ 

Darryl Keys    SAO 

Allison Morrisette   SAO 

Elliott Newman   SAO 

Jack Smith    SAO 

Craig Smith    WP 

Brandon Akley   SO 

Wade Anderson  SO 

Kim Anthony    SO 

William Atyeo    SO 

Brian Austin    SO 

Damon Baker    SO 

Aubrey Ballard   SO 

Mark Bartik    SO 

Anna Bingham    SO 

Jason Boyd    SO 

Aaron Bridges    SO 

Patricia Brooks   SO 



Paul Brosz   SO 

Isaac Broussard   SO 

Daniel Buscemi   SO 

Andrew Butchart   SO 

Richard Cameron  SO 

Casey Carr    SO 

Sandra Carter    SO 

Brett Casey    SO 

Matthew Chalk   SO 

Jane Cheeseman   SO 

Kurt Clark   SO 

Anthony Combs   SO 

Jeremy Comrie   SO 

Ryan Cook    SO 

Dale Cote    SO 

Aaron Cox    SO 

Christopher Daniel  SO 

Marc Davies   SO 

Jared Doyle    SO 

Jonathan Edwards   SO 

Jay Evenson   SO 

Greg Ferweda    SO 

Mark Fischer   SO 

David Foster    SO 

Parker Frederick   SO 

Jennifer Frisk    SO 

Samuel Funk    SO 

Ryley Glick    SO 

Elizabeth Hansen   SO 

Gunner Hanzel    SO 



Randy Harkins    SO 

Gary Hassell    SO 

Christine Heying   SO 

Christopher Hislip  SO 

James Hogue    SO 

Kathleen Houston  SO 

Baron Juhl   SO 

Casey Kenrick    SO 

William Kimball   SO 

Matthew Krogen   SO 

Don Lanpher   SO 

Gene Lansdowne   SO 

Gordon Larson   SO 

Joshua Lavene    SO 

Ethan McManigal   SO 

Weston McPherson   SO 

Eric Mendez    SO 

Glenn Miller    SO 

Jeremy Miller    SO 

Jeremy Milstead   SO 

Adam Mooney    SO 

Kristopher Moore   SO 

Julius Morris   SO 

Anesha Morton   SO 

Nick Novak    SO 

Jason O’Cilka    SO 

Tyler O’Connell   SO 

David Oerlline    SO 

James Pawelski   SO 

Ross Perry    SO 



Eric Petersen    SO 

Christopher Plawman   SO 

James Reichert    SO 

Cody Rhoden    SO 

David Ricke    SO 

David Riley    SO 

Jose Romero    SO 

Patrick Rose   SO 

Benjamin Roth    SO 

David Rubins    SO 

Jorge Salas   SO 

Twila Santiago   SO 

Matthew Scharn   SO 

Thadius Schmit   SO 

Robert Snyder    SO 

Kasey Spaur    SO 

Taylor Sperle    SO 

Mark Steele   SO 

David Switzer    SO 

Travis Tenold   SO 

Jack Thomas    SO 

Michael Tilus    SO 

Krystal Tysdal   SO 

Matthew Veal   SO 

Anthony Verchio  SO 

James Waldrop   SO 

Abraham Wheeler   SO 

Anthony White   SO 

Kayla Wickerd    SO 

Charisa Wilhelm   SO 



Kenneth Wilson   SO 

Kraig Wood    SO 

Kyle Worden    SO 



 

Connecting YOU with resources and support 
 

 

Pennington County Human Services 
321 Kansas City St., Suite 100, Rapid City, SD 57701 

Economic and Diversion Programs 605-394-2156  
Veterans Services 605-394-2266 

Fax: 605-394-6990 
www.pennco.org 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
October 26, 2022 
 
To:      Pennington County Board of Commission 
 
From:  Barry Tice, Director of Pennington County Human Services and the Veterans Services Office 
 
RE:      Pennington County Veteran Services Office and Veteran’s Day 
 
As we approach the 67th Anniversary of Veterans Day occurring on Friday, November 11th, it is important we 
celebrate the veterans of Pennington County and this great Nation. The Pennington County Veteran Services 
Office under the leadership of Alex Purcell, (United States Army Veteran) and three exceptional Veteran 
Services Officers (VSO) including Heather Funk (United States Air Force), Thomas Vallette (United States Air 
Force) and Lee Borries (United States Air Force) and all veterans are recognized on this day.  
 
The Pennington County Veteran Service Office strives to achieve the best outcomes for veterans and their 
families. As we enter the 4th Quarter of 2022, this year will be a record setting year with one of the busiest 
offices in the State of South Dakota. The Pennington County Veteran Services Office has filed over 1,200 
monetary generating claims to the Veterans Administration over the past 10 months. Our VSOs continue to 
meet the increased demand of appointments and continuing to provide community outreach to Ellsworth Air 
Force Base, local colleges, retirement communities, American Legion, VFW, Disabled American Veterans and 
the Department of Veterans Affairs.  
 
The Pennington County Veteran Services Office works in cooperation with the South Dakota Department of 
Veterans Affairs providing comprehensive care to veterans and their families assisting thousands of veterans a 
year in accessing healthcare, education, disability benefits, long-term care, and burial honors.  
 
November 11 not only preserves the historical significance of the date but helps focus attention on the 
important purpose of Veterans Day: A celebration to honor America's veterans for their patriotism, love of 
country, and willingness to serve and sacrifice for the common good. 
 
Greg Whitlock, Secretary of the South Dakota Department of Veterans Affairs has joined us today to share a 
few words regarding Veterans Day and the Pennington County Veteran Services Office.  
  

http://www.pennco.org/


Pennington County Veterans Service Office

10/5/2022



Statistical Data
• Year Over Year (YOY) Forms Submitted: 2020, 2021 & 2022

• Monthly Claims‐Monetary Generating Submissions

• Monthly Awards‐ Amount Awarded From Claims Each Month

• Monthly Retroactive Awards‐ Back Dated/Retroactive Award Amounts

• Overall Financial Impact (NOT INCLUDING ON‐GOING AWARDS).



0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700

Disability Compensation Claims
Veteran's Pension
Widow's Pension

Representation/POA assignments
Intent to File

Personnel Records Requests (SF‐180)
Burial Allowance

AMA Appeals
Formal Appeal‐ BVA (Form 9)

Education Benefit Applications
VA Vocational Rehabilitation Claims

VA Health Care Enrollement Applications (10‐10's)
Information Changes: Address/Phone/Bank/Etc.

Dependent Updates
Stressor Forms for PTSD/MST Claims

Housebound/Aid & Attendance Applications/CES
Statement in Support of Claim

Miscellaneous

���������	

����������

�����

���������
�������

�������
�������

�������������
����

�����������
��������������

���������
�������

�� !�����"#�$
%&'(

)!����
���������

�*�������
�����������$
)���"�����+(

,�!������
)���-��

����������

�������������
��.�����������

�����

���/����.

���

,����������
����������
"%'$%'��(

��-��������

.�����0

���������.���
�)��1�,��2

��������
3�����

#�������������
-����4#��*#4

�����

/�!����!����
���5

����������
�����������


,#

#�����������
#!�����-

����

*����������!�

6'66 788 9 :; 788 88& %8 9+ 6%% ' & ' ;8 %9 %+& ;' %% 896 87

6'6% 76' 86 7' 768 69+ 6; 77 %%7 ' 9 % :; 6' %&+ ;: 89 8'' :%

6'6' ;:+ %' ;' ::+ %:7 8' :% %6: ' %6 7 :8 ;; %%& ;& 8' 6;6 :%

<�=! >�>?@!  AA��: ‐ 2020 – 2021‐ 2022 BC��D=�>�EA/

2021 Total:  2,5242022 Total: 2,315 2020 Total:  1,689



2021 Compensation Claim Functions

48%

1%4%

26%

16%

1% 3% 1%

Disability Compensation

Veterans Pension

Widow's Pension

Intent to File

Appeals

Records Requests (SF‐180)

Stressor Forms: PTSD/MST Claims

Housebound/Aid & Attendance/CES



2021 Data for Veteran Support Functions 

Representation/POA Assignments

VA Health Care Enrollments (10‐10EZ)

Information Changes: Address, Phone, Bank, Etc.

Dependent Updates

Education/ Vocational Rehabilitation

Miscellaneous

Burial Allowance



Monthly Data: Claim Totals

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
2020 84 98 97 45 45 57 65 53 74 51 45 77
2021 67 55 60 69 85 81 92 109 119 96 110 97
2022 75 112 134 153 90 94 153 191 168

98 97

45 45

57 65

53

74

51 45

77

67

55 60 69

85 81

92

10
9 11
9

96

11
0

97

75

11
2 13

4 15
3

90 94

15
3

19
1

16
8

TOTAL MONETARY GENERATING CLAIMS: 
DISABILITY  COMPENSATION,  VETERANS  PENSION,  SURVIVORS  PENSION,   INTENT  TO  FILE  &  APPEALS

2020 2021 2022

2021: 1,040 2020: 7912022:  1,170 



Monthly Data: Awards

January February March April May June July August September October November December
2020 26,846.73 44,328.54 34,620.39 26,232.68 24,451.46 36,449.85 37,650.00 23,578.02 27,414.80 10,287.66 10,102.44 27,451.14
2021 30,000.00 34,568.90 30,283.00 28,930.08 23,551.70 39,946.13 15,223.88 31,146.34 47,989.43 52,921.36 15,435.51 31,817.85
2022 27,178.30 35,581.42 32,975.51 27,136.13 56,631.38 84,924.34 70,490.00 50,792.40 71,044.62

0.00

10,000.00

20,000.00

30,000.00

40,000.00

50,000.00

60,000.00

70,000.00

80,000.00

90,000.00

Total Awards from Monetary Generating Claims:
Disability Compensation, Veterans Pension, Survivors Pension, Intent to File, and Appeals  

2020 2021 2022

2021 Awards: $381,814 2020 Awards: $329,4142022 Awards: $ 456,754



Monthly Data: Retroactive Awards 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
2020 188,503.79 132,078.01 240,212.45 116,625.53 73,019.15 337,322.99 208,604.54 206,950.92 106,632.54 39,850.33 91,716.00 108,436.68
2021 106,308.86 163,460.39 115,306.53 192,307.57 155,498.54 165,647.84 177,920.75 143,724.06 127,398.02 202,908.61 171,640.66 152,046.20
2022 58,924.20 161,634.55 216,051.67 238,919.87 229,076.38 165,751.06 214,532.21 110,853.58 122,327.47

0.00

50,000.00

100,000.00

150,000.00

200,000.00

250,000.00

300,000.00

350,000.00

400,000.00

2020 2021 2022

2022 Awards : $1,518,071 2021 Awards:  $1,874,168 2020 Awards : $1,849,953



Financial Impact-
SDDVA VETS

Y.O.Y Stats:
Monthly + Total Retroactive Awards

Disability Compensation, Pension, Favorable 
Appeals

*Education & DAV Claims provide additional awards Not Accounted for.* 

Financial Impact-
SDDVA VETS

Y.O.Y Stats:
Monthly + Retroactive Awards

Disability Compensation, Pension, 
Favorable Appeals

*Education & DAV Claims provide additional awards Not Accounted for.* 

2022

$1,974,825
2021

$2,255,982
2020

$2,179,367

2022
Total Monthly Awards 

• $ 456,754
Total Retro Awards

• $ 1,518,071
2021

Total Monthly Awards 
• $381,814

Total Retro Awards
• $1,874,168

2020
Total Monthly Awards 

• $329,414
Total Retro Awards

• $1,849,953



Pennington County, SD 
Executive Proclamation  

Sergeant Colton Levi ‘Delta Derr’ Day 

WHEREAS, Sergeant Colton Levi Derr was a native South Dakotan who grew up on his 
family’s ranch near Farmingdale and attended high school in New Underwood; and 

WHEREAS, Sergeant Derr joined the Army Reserves after high school, and upon graduating 
from basic training he switched over to the Active Duty Army to pursue a career in 
Intelligence; and 

WHEREAS, while on active duty, Sergeant Derr deployed to Iraq in support of Operation Iraqi 
Freedom (First Cavalry Division) and subsequently deployed to Afghanistan in support of 
Operation Enduring Freedom (Tenth Mountain Division); and 

WHEREAS, Throughout the course of Sergeant Derr’s military career, his military leadership 
nicknamed him ‘Delta Derr’ because they had never seen a tougher solider. Colton 
successfully completed over 500 combat missions, 300 of which he served as the Scout Team 
Leader for mounted and dismounted cavalry platoon combat missions in the Kandahar 
Province; and 

WHEREAS, Sergeant Derr returned home from his last deployment in March of 2012 while 
silently suffering from the aftermath of combat in support of America’s War on Terror in Iraq 
and Afghanistan, and on April 28, 2012 Sergeant Derr succumbed to Post-Traumatic Stress 
Disorder by taking his own life; and 

WHEREAS, it is estimated that on average 20 Service Members and Veterans succumb to 
suicide every day as the invisible wounds of war can be more deadly than the battlefield. 
Suicide is a public health challenge that causes immeasurable pain to individuals, families 
and communities across our State and Country; and 

WHEREAS, our military veterans and their families demonstrate true courage and sacrifice 
in defense of the truths, values and freedoms our great nation holds dear; and 

WHEREAS, War does not end at the battlefield. The Sergeant Colton Levi Derr Foundation 
was established in 2012 to assist military service members and their families in positively 
navigating the mental health battles related to Post Traumatic Stress Disorder. The 
Foundations offers resources and services to Colton’s fellow brothers/sisters who battle the 
demons of PTSD. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the Pennington County Board of Commissioners do 
hereby proclaim October 1, 2022 as: 

Sergeant Colton Levi ‘Delta Derr’ Day 



and ask our community to support the efforts in taking the lead on the path to hope, to never 
give in - never quit, and to help carry the load of life for our military service members and 
veterans. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and caused to be affixed the 
seal of Pennington County, SD this 1st day of November, 2022. 

THE PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

______________________________________________________ 

COMMISSIONER GARY DREWES, CHAIR 
COMMISSIONER LLOYD LACROIX, VICE CHAIR 
COMMISSIONER DEB HADCOCK 
COMMISSIONER TRAVIS LASSETER 
COMMISSIONER RON ROSSKNECHT  



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

1 
 
 
 

The Pennington County Board of Commissioners met at 9:03 a.m. on Tuesday,  
October 18, 2022, in the Commission Chambers in the County Administration Building, Rapid 
City, South Dakota. Chair Gary Drewes called the meeting to order with the following 
Commissioners present: Deb Hadcock, Lloyd LaCroix, Travis Lasseter and Ron Rossknecht.  
 
REVIEW AND APPROVE AGENDA 
MOVED by Hadcock and seconded by LaCroix to approve the agenda as presented. Vote: 
Unanimous. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Rossknecht to approve the Consent Agenda. Vote: 
Unanimous. 
 
5. Approve the minutes of the September 27, 2022, special meeting. 
6. Approve the minutes of the October 4, 2022, regular meeting. 
7. Approve a letter of support for the Hill City Ambulance District. 
8. Set the 2023 Board of Commissioners meeting dates. 
9. Approve the Festival of Lights Parade Participant Application and Participant Indemnification, 
Statement of Financial Responsibility, and Waiver. 
10. Approve of the 4th Qtr. LEMPG (Local Emergency Management Planning Grant) with the 
State of SD. 
11. Approve the Adopt-A-Highway Application for a portion of Highway 1416 by the Ellsworth 
AFB Airman Leadership School. 
12. Recognize and thank the volunteers for the month of September 2022. 
 
End of Consent Agenda Items 
 
ITEMS FROM HIGHWAY 
A. LETTING AUTHORIZATION: MOVED by Rossknecht and seconded by LaCroix to approve 
the Letting Authorization on Project P 6403(10) PCN 08P3 for the reconstruction of South 
Rochford Road. Vote: Unanimous.  
B. AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES: MOVED by Hadcock and seconded by Rossknecht to 
approve the Agreement for Services with Ferber Engineering Company, Inc. to perform 2023 
construction administration services in a not to exceed amount of $21,600. Vote: Unanimous.  
 
2020 ELECTION CHAOS PRESENTATION – WHAT HAPPENED AND WHERE DO WE 
GO FROM HERE – MS. SARA FRANKENSTEIN ATTORNEY AT LAW: No action taken.  
 
REQUEST FOR FUNDING FROM THE WESTERN DAKOTA REGIONAL WATER 
SYSTEM – DR. CHERYL CHAPMAN, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: MOVED by LaCroix 
and seconded by Hadcock to approve funding for the Western Dakota Regional Water System in 
the amount of $50,000 and to direct staff to prepare a Contingency Resolution for placement on 
the November 1, 2022, meeting agenda. Vote: Unanimous.  



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

2 
 
 
 

ITEMS FROM SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
A. FLEET VEHICLE PURCHASE – 2023 ANNUAL REPLACEMENT: MOVED by LaCroix 
and seconded by Hadcock to approve the purchase of three (3) vehicles through Wegner Auto, 
Pierre, SD, under State Bid Contract #17620 as follows: Two (2) 2023 Dodge Charger AWD V6, 
for a total price of $70,194; One (1) 2023 Dodge Charger AWD V6, for a total purchase price of 
$34,933. Vote: Unanimous.  
 
ITEMS FROM EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
A. 2023 US GEOLOGICAL SURVEY JOINT-FUNDING AGREEMENT (FLOOD WARNING 
SYSTEM: MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Lasseter to approve the Chair’s signature on the 
joint funding agreement #23NTJFA0030 between Pennington County and the United States 
Geological Survey (USGS) for the operation and maintenance of the METWARN flood warning 
system. Vote: Unanimous. 
B. PRE-DISASTER MITIGATION GRANT AWARD ACCEPTANCE: MOVED by LaCroix 
and seconded by Hadcock to approve the Chair’s signature on the Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) 
Grant Award #EMD-2021_BR-061-0009 for the development of the Pennington County 
Multijurisdictional Pre-Disaster Mitigation Plan. Vote: Unanimous.  
 
ITEMS FROM HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES 
A. NEW NAME AND LOGO OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES: MOVED by Hadcock 
and seconded by Rossknecht to approve the new name, mission statement and logo for Pennington 
County Health and Human Services to be referred to as Pennington County Human Services, 
Economic, Veterans, Diversion, Connecting you with resources and support. Vote: Unanimous.  
 
ITEMS FROM BUILDING COMMITTEE 
A. COURTHOUSE ENTRY ADDITION 3RD FLOOR BUILDOUT – DESIGN SERVICES 
PROPOSAL: No action taken. 
 
ITEMS FROM THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 
A. 2023 WAGE SCALE IMPLEMENTATION: No action taken. 
 
ITEMS FROM THE COMMISSION MANAGER 
A. RESOLUTION 2022-C1 CONTINGENCY TRANSFER – NATURAL RESOURCES 
MANAGEMENT BUDGET: MOVED by Rossknecht and seconded by Lasseter to approve 
Resolution 2022-C1 correcting the fund number of the Natural Resources Management Budget to 
(101-0615) and authorize the Auditor’s office to issue payment to the Black Hills Council of Local 
Governments in the amount of $50,000. Vote: Unanimous. 
 

PENNINGTON COUNTY RESOLUTION 2022-C1 
CONTINGENCY TRANSFER 

GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCY BUDGET 101-0113 
 



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

3 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Pennington County Board of Commissioners approved Resolution 
2022-C1 authorizing a contingency transfer in the amount of $50,000 to the Natural 
Resources Management Budget; and 

WHEREAS, a typographical error was made in transposing two numbers identifying 
the correct fund number for the Natural Resources Management Budget; and 

WHEREAS, a correction needs to be made to Resolution 2022-C1 to reflect the 
correct General Fund Budget for the Natural Resources Management Budget to be (101-
0615); and  

WHEREAS, the Pennington County Board of Commissioners hereby approve 
resolution 2022-C1 correcting the fund account number. The original resolution is included 
below as adopted reflecting the correct fund number.  

 
WHEREAS, through the FY2022 annual budget process, the Pennington County Board of 

Commissioners allocated $100,000 to the General Fund Contingency Budget; and 
WHEREAS, the current balance of the General Fund Contingency Budget is $100,000; 

and 
 WHEREAS, The Black Hills National Forest is in the process of revising its current 

Forest Plan (FP) which was first released in 1983, revised in 1997 and amended in 2006. The 
revised FP will provide guidance for the implementation of management activities across the 1.2 
million-acre Black Hills National Forest for the next 15 years; and 

WHEREAS, there are several west river South Dakota Counties in conjunction with 
several Wyoming Counties who desire to pool their resources together and support the Black Hills 
Council of Local Government to represent the Counties interests as key stakeholders in the Black 
Hills National Forest Revision Plan process; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes the importance in protecting the 
timber industry for future generations through responsible management and hereby commit to 
funding in the amount of $50,000. Additional funding amounts may be requested in the future 
based on need as the Revision Plan progress; and 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Pennington County Auditor is 
authorized to transfer $50,000 from the 2022 General Fund Contingency Budget to the General 
Fund Natural Resources Management Budget (101-0615) and make payment to the Black Hills 
Council of Local Government for their representation of Counties in the Black Hills National 
Forest Plan Revision process. 
 
Dated this 18th day of October, 2022. 
 
/s/ Chair Gary Drewes  
Pennington County Board of Commissioners  
 
ATTEST: (SEAL)  
/s/ Cindy Mohler, Auditor 
 



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

4 
 
 
 

MOVED by Hadcock and seconded by Lasseter to move Item 28 up on the agenda to be discussed 
next. Vote: Unanimous. (After the motion, the State’s Attorney Office staff asked the Board to go 
into Executive Session to discuss the agreement for Item 28 first.) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – SDCL 1-25-2 
MOVED by Hadcock and seconded by Lasseter to go into Executive Session pursuant to SDCL 
1-25-2-(3) for contractual/pending litigation. Vote: Unanimous. The Board remained in Executive 
Session from 11:27 a.m. until 11:47 a.m. MOVED by Hadcock and seconded by LaCroix to come 
out of Executive Session. Vote: Unanimous. 
 
REQUEST FOR PERMISSION TO BORE A WATERLINE UNDER BASELINE ROAD 
FOR AGRICULTURAL AND RESIDENTIAL PURPOSES: MOVED by Hadcock and 
seconded by Lasseter to approve the Chair’s signature on the Encroachment Agreement between 
Pennington County and Klapperich Ranch, LLLP for a private utility installed under the public 
right-of-way on Baseline Road. Vote: Unanimous. 
 
ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC: No public comment. 
 
ITEMS FROM PLANNING & ZONING 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT: MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Lasseter to convene as the 
Board of Adjustment. Vote: Unanimous. 
 
A. VARIANCE / VA 22-20: Brent and Denise Tjeerdsma; Jared Ahlstrom - Agent. To reduce the 
setbacks to the property line in an Agriculture District in accordance with Sections 205 and 509 of 
the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.  
 

All Less Lot A and Less ROW, Little Tiger Lode No. 1 MS 1251, Section 13, T1S, R4E, 
BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 
MOVED by Rossknecht to deny VA 22-20. The motion died from the lack of a second.  
 
MOVED by Hadcock and seconded by Lasseter to approve VA 22-20 with two (2) conditions. 
Vote: The motion failed 3-2 on a roll call vote: Hadcock – yes, Rossknecht – no, Drewes – no, 
LaCroix – yes, Lasseter – yes. 
 
MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Rossknecht to adjourn as the Board of Adjustment and 
reconvene as the Board of Commissioners. Vote: Unanimous.  

 
PLANNING & ZONING CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
The following item(s) have been placed on the Consent Agenda for action to be taken on all items 
by a single vote of the Board of Commissioners. Any item may be removed from the Consent 
Agenda for separate action.  
 



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

5 
 
 
 

MOVED by Lasseter and seconded by Hadcock to approve the Planning and Zoning consent 
agenda. Vote: Unanimous. 
 
B. MINOR PLAT / MPL 22-46: Jack and Marie Ziemer. To combine two lots to create Lot 8A, 
Block 3 of Pactola Estates in accordance with the Pennington County Subdivision Regulations. 
 

EXISTING LEGAL: Lots 8 and 10, Block 3, Pactola Estates Subdivision, Section 17, T1N, 
R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 
 
PROPOSED LEGAL: Lot 8A, Block 3 of Pactola Estates Subdivision, Section 17, T1N, 
R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 
Approve MPL 22-46 with six (6) conditions. (Full conditions are available on the web at 
https://www.pennco.org/boc_agendas and in person at the Pennington County Planning & Zoning 
Office). 
 
C. ROAD NAMING: Nate and Alexis Sobolewski. To name an existing 66-foot-wide Section 
Line Right-of-Way providing access to properties located in Sections 20, 21, 28, 29, 32, and 33, 
T2S, R13E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota, to Sobos Road.  
 
Approve the Road Name of Sobos Road. 
 
End of Consent Agenda Items 
 
UNCONTESTED HEARING(S) 
D. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY REVIEW / PU 21-03: Yardley and Co., Inc.; 
Shelby Woodland. To review a seasonal event venue / specialty resort on the subject property in 
accordance with Sections 205, 213, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 
 

SE1/4SW1/4, Section 21, T2N, R17E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 
 
MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Rossknecht to end PU 21-03 with the applicant’s 
concurrence. Vote: Unanimous. Hadcock not present at time of vote. 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARING OF REZONE / RZ 22-26: Glenn and Michelle Bintliff; KTM Design 
Solutions - Agent. To rezone 15.2 acres from Agriculture District to Ranchette District in 
accordance with Sections 205, 206, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Lot S and Lot C of the E1/2SW1/4NE1/4; Parcel 4 of SW1/4NE1/4 Less Lot 3R of Lot A 
of Feldman Subdivision, Section 2, T2S, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 
MOVED by Rossknecht and seconded by LaCroix to approve RZ 22-26. Vote: Unanimous.  
 

https://www.pennco.org/boc_agendas


PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

6 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF FACT OF ADOPTION 
 
On October 18, 2022, the Pennington County Board of Commissioners approved an amendment 
to the official Zoning Map: Rezone 22-26 (Glenn and Michelle Bintliff) to rezone from Agriculture 
District to Ranchette District.  
 
CONTESTED HEARING(S) 
F. VACATION OF EASEMENT / VE 22-02: Jack and Marie Ziemer. To vacate a 40-foot-wide 
access easement on the subject property in accordance with the Pennington County Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

Lot 10, Bock 3, Pactola Estates, Section 17, T1N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South 
Dakota. 

 
MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Lasseter to approve VE 22-02 with one (1) condition. Vote: 
Unanimous. (Full conditions are available on the web at https://www.pennco.org/boc_agendas and 
in person at the Pennington County Planning & Zoning Office). 

 
G. PUBLIC HEARING OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT / CA 22-19: Free Range 
Rentals, LLC; Davis Engineering - Agent. To amend the Comprehensive Plan to change the Future 
Land Use from Ranchette District and Rural Residential District to Low Density Residential 
District in accordance with Sections 206, 207, 208, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 

Tract A of Willison B White HES No. 2440 and That PT of the W1/2NE1/4 lying E of 
Tract A of Willison B White Homestead, HES #2440 and W of Gold Mountain 
Subdivision, Section 14, T1S, R4E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 
 

MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Hadcock to deny without prejudice CA 22-19. Vote: 
Unanimous. 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING OF REZONE / RZ 22-25: Free Range Rentals, LLC; Davis Engineering 
- Agent. To rezone 7.2 acres from Agriculture District to Low Density Residential District in 
accordance with Sections 205, 207, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Tract A of Willison B White HES No. 2440 and That PT of the W1/2NE1/4 lying E of 
Tract A of Willison B White Homestead, HES #2440 and W of Gold Mountain 
Subdivision, Section 14, T1S, R4E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 
MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Rossknecht to deny without prejudice RZ 22-25. Vote: 
Unanimous. 
 

https://www.pennco.org/boc_agendas


PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

7 
 
 
 

APPROVAL OF VOUCHERS: MOVED by Lasseter and seconded by Rossknecht to approve 
the voucher for the Rose Inn LLC, in the amount of $940. Vote: The motion carried 4-0 with 
Hadcock abstaining. MOVED by Lasseter and seconded by Rossknecht to approve the remaining 
vouchers entered below for expenditures for insurance, professional services, publications, rentals, 
supplies, repairs, maintenance, travel, conference fees, utilities, furniture and equipment totaling 
$5,178,673.85. Vote: Unanimous. 
 
392 Creations, 75.00; 605 Therapy LLC, 6,700.00; A & A Professional Property Management, 
1,280.00; A & B Business Inc, 3,547.52; A & B Welding Supply Co, 176.14; A & M Transport 
Service LLC, 1,398.00; A To Z Shredding, 899.20; Aca Properties, 8,050.00; Adams-Isc, 
1,718.83; Adaptamed, LLC, 1,766.00; Advanced Auto Glass LLC, 275.00; Advanced Drug 
Testing Inc, 164.00; Aggressive Auto & Salvage, 180.00; Alderman Jay, 435.98; Alexander 
Dallas, 650.00; Allison, Elizabeth A., 430.00; Amazon.Com Services, 1,691.41; American 
Engineering Testing Inc, 1,296.25; American Screening LLC, 249.88; Americinn Motel, 1,755.00; 
Anker Law Group PC, 1,414.00; Apco International Inc, 525.00; Architectural Specialties LLC, 
5,377.53; AT&T Mobility, 541.12; Audra Hill Consulting Inc, 15,158.57; Auto Body Specialties 
Inc, 24.15; Axon Enterprise Inc, 1,800.00; Badlands Automotive, 61.28; Balco Uniform Co Inc, 
5,261.53; Bangs, Mccullen, Butler, Foye & Simmons, LLP, 606.00; Banks, Bridgette R, 1,079.20; 
Bargain Barn Tire Center, 1,468.69; Barnaud Law Firm Prof. LLC, 745.71; Basler Printing Co, 
494.00; Beezley, Lawrence D, 140.00; Behavior Management Systems Inc, 50,939.00; Behrens-
Wilson Funeral Home, 7,430.00; Benson, Teresa L, 562.80; BH Chemical Company Inc, 
12,885.12; BH Energy, 633.99; BH Energy, 70,066.33; BH Energy, 720.42; BH Home Builders 
Association, 245.00; BH Insurance Agency Inc, 60.00; BH Overhead Doors, 738.01; BH Oxford 
House, 372.00; BH Regional Eye Institute LLP, 83.86; BH Roofing Co, 128.00; BH Urgent Care 
LLC, 650.00; BH Works Inc, 1,196.00; Bi Inc, 5,915.00; Biers Tool Sales LLC, 203.75; 
Bierschbach Equipment And Supply Co Inc, 5,389.24; Birdwell Tyler, 154.32; BKV Group, 
6,614.56; Black Creek Integrated Systems Corp, 347.52; Blackstrap Inc, 7,325.88; Bluepeak, 
775.97; BN Rentals, 400.00; Bob Barker Company Inc, 4,312.59; Border States Electric, 1,089.00; 
Boston, Patrick, 4,695.00; Brankin Paul John, 6,508.50; Brant Annette, 222.70; Briarwood 
Products LLC, 291.53; Bringswhite, Erik, 5,280.00; Bringswhite, Morgan, 4,574.72; Brooks 
Marissa, 52.00; Brosz Engineering Inc, 23,910.00; Brownells Inc, 252.49; Brubakken Corey, 
428.40; Butler Machinery Company, 741.86; Cameron, George R, 2,958.50; Carlson, Jean, 
1,520.00; Carquest Of Rapid City, 1,593.45; Casteel Audra, 268.90; Castleberry, James D, 
2,992.66; Cat's Cleaning, 40.00; CDW Government Inc, 27,192.21; Central States Fair Inc, 
137,750.88; Century Link, 89.08; Chris Supply Co Inc, 400.14; City Of Box Elder, 193.32; City 
Of Hill City, 81.33; City Of Rapid City -Water, 713.87; City Of Rapid City -Water, 29,750.60; 
City Of Rapid City, 19,370.50; City Of Wall, 192.00; City Of Wall, 1,283.80; Clark Printing, 
976.75; Clayborne, Deanna K, 1,583.70; Climate Control Systems And Service LLC, 9,852.94; 
Cline, Jean M, 971.25; Clinical Laboratory Of The Black Hills, 17,287.00; Colbath & Sperlich 
PC, 25,979.89; Colonial House, 265.41; Community Lutheran Church, 100.00; Connections Inc 
EAP, 1,163.52; Connelly, Randal E, 13,459.58; Contractors Supply Inc, 279.42; Cooks 
Correctional, 155.55; Copy Country, 212.35; Coremr LC, 916.50; Corr Construction Service, 
206,163.36; Corral Park Apartments LLC, 500.00; Creative Culture Insignia LLC, 1,830.00; 



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

8 
 
 
 

Crescent Electric Supply, 997.64; Crisis Prevention Institute Inc, 200.00; Croell Redi-Mix Inc, 
1,327.00; Crum Electric Supply, 966.36; Culligan Water, 761.00; Dakota Battery & Electric, 
238.32; Dakota Business Center, 11,589.27; Dakota Fluid Power Inc, 129.94; Dakota Plains Legal 
Services Inc, 31,625.00; Dakota Radiology Pet/Ct & MRI, 431.13; Dakota Supply Group Inc, 
245.87; Dakotaland Autoglass Inc, 120.00; Delta Dental Of South Dakota, 39,628.60; Den Herder 
Law Office PC, 151.50; Dennis Supply - RC, 1,135.16; Denny Menholt Chevrolet, 450.19; Denny 
Menholt Toyota, 29,487.00; Dharma Wellness Institute, 140.00; Diesel Machinery Inc, 883.16; 
Dillon Law Office, 797.40; Discovery Village Apartments LLLP, 340.00; Djwebbie LLC, 
1,500.00; Dollison Decker Tracey R., 166.99; Door Security Products Inc, 214.28; Doreff Thomas 
J, 30.00; Doty Abby, 60.00; Doud Counseling LLC, 125.63; Drewes Gary, 51.54; Duffy Law Firm, 
Prof. LLC, 17,468.90; Dyna-Kleen Service Inc, 1,170.00; Eastern Penn Conservation, 8,125.00; 
Eizinger Jonathan Dicks, 23.32; Election Systems & Software LLC, 29,728.10; Electrical 
Engineering & Equipment Company, 400.00; Enright Mark J, 276.08; Evergreen Office Products, 
1,699.92; Executive Mgmt Fin Office, 1,839.29; Farmer Brothers Coffee, 587.40; Fastenal 
Company, 1,758.80; Federal Express, 22.78; Ferber Engineering Company, 20,975.00; Ferguson 
Enterprises Inc #226, 458.41; Fidelity Security Life, 5,858.22; First Interstate Bank, 596.88; First 
Interstate Bank, 3,087.00; First Interstate Bank, 261.42; First Interstate Bank, 257.76; First 
Interstate Bank, 2,984.53; First Interstate Bank, 1,334.01; First Interstate Bank, 4,396.03; First 
Interstate Bank, 6,918.89; First Interstate Bank, 625.00; First Interstate Bank, 258.17; First 
Interstate Bank, 1,030.64; First Interstate Bank, 7,751.30; First Interstate Bank, 793.78; Fitzgerald 
Law Firm, 3,321.35; Floyd's Truck Center, 2,572.87; FMG Inc, 918.00; Forensic Medicine And 
Pathology PLLC, 6,345.00; Four Seasons Sports Center, 164.99; Fresh Start Carpet Care, 
9,382.50; Frey, Gregory L., 35.00; Frontier Auto Glass, 370.18; G & H Distributing - Rc, 576.03; 
G & R Controls Inc, 1,183.29; Galls LLC, 367.12; Gateway Autoplex, 37,799.00; Geddings Blake, 
427.60; Gion Joe, 202.00; Global Equipment Company, 660.89; Godfrey Brake Service And 
Supply Inc, 247.64; Golden West Companies, 400.00; Golden West Companies, 327.96; Golden 
West Technologies, 450.00; Governor's Inn, 348.00; Grainger, 1,682.53; Great Western Tire Inc, 
11,687.27; Grey & Eisenbraun Law, Prof LLC, 484.80; Grimm's Pump Service Inc, 1,190.46; Gust 
Victor, 63.90; Gustafson Samantha, 66.00; H&S Uniforms And Equipment LLC, 222.00; 
Hainesway Apartment, 500.00; Harms Oil Company, 26,316.03; Harris, Betsey, 1,204.70; Hassett 
Liz, 202.99; Hennies Holli, 196.70; Highland Park Cemetery Association Of Hermosa, 200.00; 
Highway Improvement Inc, 391,500.00; Hillyard/Sioux Falls, 77.47; Hilpert & Hale Prof LLC, 
105.20; Hilt Construction Inc, 4,380.37; Hobart Sales & Service, 1,065.89; Holiday Inn Express, 
6,945.00; Holiday Stationstores LLC, 26.00; Horn Law Office Prof LLC, 242.40; Humane Society 
Of The Black Hills, 4,166.67; Iaed, 194.50; Image All LLC, 915.88; Indoff Inc, 2,376.60; Inland 
Truck Parts, 633.52; Innovative Office Solutions LLC, 8,288.01; Intab LLC, 105.69; Interstate All 
Battery Center, 60.00; Interstate Batteries, 433.60; Intoximeters Inc, 4,500.00; Is Restaurant 
Design Equipment & Supply, 10,150.00; J & J Asphalt Co, 782.60; Jacqueline K Perli Reporting 
Inc, 1,760.60; Jantech LLC, 950.00; Jefferson Partner LP, 2,700.00; Jenner Equipment Co, 
1,594.18; Jims Private Utility Locating, 340.00; Johnson, Kimberly K, 555.40; Karen Paige Hunt 
Prof LLC, 489.85; Karley Kevin, 128.00; Kennedy Pier Loftus & Reynolds LLP, 353.50; Keystone 
Ambulance Service, 300.00; Kieffer Sanitation/A Waste Management Co, 146.11; Kieffer 
Sanitation/A Waste Management Co, 4,219.02; Kiesler Police Supply Inc, 141.40; Kimball 



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

9 
 
 
 

Midwest, 851.61; Kirk Funeral Home, 5,679.60; Kirschenmann, Kevin E, 900.00; KLJ 
Engineering LLC, 3,929.85; Knecht Home Center Inc, 1,693.59; Knight's Quality Welding, 
415.00; Knollwood Townhouse Properties, 2,297.00; Kone Inc, 10,785.72; Konica Minolta 
Premier Finance, 156.19; Krueger Megan, 132.00; KS Statebank, 10,325.82; KT Connections, 
438.00; Kurita America Inc, 4,888.75; LaCroix Lloyd, 759.55; Lake County, 50.00; Landis Chad, 
66.00; Lands' End Business Outfitters, 1,120.11; Language Line Services, 344.98; Larson Dana J, 
50.00; Larson Valerie J, 42.00; Lasseter, Weldon Travis, 217.57; Lawrence County Auditor, 
549.84; Lewis Mikal, 300.30; Lewno Lucille M, 435.71; Liberty Chrysler Center, 3,620.80; 
Lighting Maintenance Co, 310.29; Lincoln County Auditor, 588.50; Lingo Communications LLC, 
87.62; Lockwood Darcy, 42.00; Love, Todd A, 9,093.64; Lynn Jackson Schultz & Lebrun PC, 
8,928.40; M&M Sales LLC, 67.20; Maple Green LLC, 3,293.00; Marco Inc, 902.42; Marco Inc, 
10,053.39; Maruska, Kayla L, 2,874.80; Mayer Dan, 35.00; McCool-Deneke Robin, 279.12; 
McGowan, Wendy T, 3,832.95; McKesson Medical-Surgical Government Solutions LLC, 745.30; 
McKie Ford Inc, 151.61; Meadowlark Hill Mobile Estates LLC, 1,690.71; Meadowood Lanes, 
120.00; Medical Waste Transport Inc, 687.90; Medline Industries Inc, 3,339.76; Menards, 
1,025.13; MG Oil Company, 24,948.32; Midcontinent Communications, 2,572.45; Midcontinent 
Communications, 2,016.08; Midwest Auto Chemical-Mac, 1,498.20; Midwest Marketing LLC, 
2,967.50; Midwest Tire & Muffler Inc, 231.75; Molitor Brittney, 132.00; Montana Dakota 
Utilities, 506.23; Montana Dakota Utilities, 6,652.63; Monument Health - Urgent Clinics Rapid 
City, 400.00; Monument Health Home Plus Pharmacy, 476.97; Monument Health Rapid City 
Hospital, 217.42; Monument Health Rapid City Hospital Inc., 7,179.07; Monument Health 
Reference Laboratory, 31.61; Moss Psy D LLC, William A, 7,300.00; Mountain Plains Audiology 
Inc, 85.00; Mountain View Estates LLC, 1,620.00; Mousseau Shontel, 56.00; Mt Rushmore 
Telephone Co, 49.85; Murphy Law Office PC, 1,343.84; Myplace - Fort Pierre, 462.00; National 
Restaurant Association Solutions LLC, 144.00; Neal Heather, 202.00; Nelson Jacquelyn R, 
990.00; Nelson, George J, 429.25; Newman Valerie, 66.06; Noble Corey, 14.00; Nohr, Linda J, 
1,250.00; Norman Ted, 2,845.00; North Central International Of Rapid City Inc, 2,409.34; 
Northern Truck Equipment, 27,715.76; Northwest Pipe Fitting Inc, 3,869.06; Norton, Mikayla, 
1,215.00; Not Help Him Sheri L., 266.75; Novus Glass Kevin Hoffman, 65.00; Nutrien Ag 
Solutions Inc, 1,600.00; NWE Management, 1,585.00; O'Day, Valarie, 289.62; Office Depot, 
1,148.59; Olson Stephanie, 675.80; Olson, Carolyn, 6,300.00; Onsite First Aid, 84.92; O'Reilly 
Auto Parts, 35.46; Ostendorf Matthew, 294.00; Otis Elevator Co, 7,911.68; Overhead Door Of 
Rapid City, 180.46; Pacific Properties LLC, 900.00; Pacific Steel & Recycling, 368.23; Parr Law 
PC, 1,636.20; Pasqualucci Law Office PC, 957.45; Penn Co Commissioners Petty Cash, 175.08; 
Penn Co Council On Aging, 7,500.00; Penn Co Health & Human Sv Petty Cash, 507.54; Penn Co 
Jail Petty Cash, 1,647.03; Penn Co Search & Rescue, 20,000.00; Penn Co Sheriff Petty Cash, 
768.70; Penn Co States Atty Petty Cash, 94.16; Pennington County Courant, 1,044.48; Pennington 
County Housing & Redevelopment, 4,225.00; Pharmchem Inc, 534.65; Phoenix Supply LLC, 
751.07; Pi Abigail, 127.50; Pillen Optical Inc, 120.00; Pioneer Bank & Trust, 5,354.22; Pioneer 
Bank & Trust, 2,883.69; Pioneer Bank & Trust, 5,196.28; Pioneer Bank & Trust, 4,444.60; Pomp's 
Tire Service, 448.12; Power House, 595.40; Prairie Auto Parts Inc, 1,416.83; Pratt Linda, 1,800.00; 
Print Mark-Et, 1,083.56; Priority Dispatch Corp, 879.00; Proforma Screening Solutions LLC, 
48.50; Puckett Dawn, 216.05; Quadient Inc, 890.79; Quettier Nicolas, 495.00; Quill Corporation, 



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

10 
 
 
 

86.04; Quincy Street LLC, 3,500.00; Radiology Associates Professional LLC, 480.20; Ramkota 
Hotel, 198.00; Rapid Collision, 880.20; Rapid Delivery Inc, 163.80; Rapid Fire Protection Inc, 
865.99; Rapid Rooter, 360.00; Rausch Kelsey, 30.00; RC Emergency Services PA, 980.31; RC 
Fire & Emergency Services, 581.40; RC Journal - Advertising, 4,233.95; RC Journal - 
Subscription, 584.99; RC Medical Center LLC, 90.08; RC Pizza Ranch, 497.80; RC Police Dept-
Evidence, 12,905.00; RCS Construction Inc, 358,402.18; RDO Equipment Co, 206.00; RDO 
Equipment Co, 1,025.80; Record Storage Solutions, 299.96; Reese Thomas, 666.27; Reliance 
Telephone Inc, 14.75; Renfro Corporation, 995.15; Rensch Law Office, 14,652.51; Renz John A, 
1,468.00; Rittberger Shannon, 851.54; Roadway Asset Services LLC, 4,144.50; Rochester 
Armored Car Company Inc, 495.08; Roetzel Lara, 258.60; Romero Jose, 209.00; Rossknecht Ron, 
744.06; Roth Shawna, 225.00; Rufledt Jr Ted, 99.96; Runnings Supply Inc, 527.21; Rushmore 
Ob/Gyn, 60.60; Sack Cody, 25.00; Satterwhite Therapy Services LLC, 125.63; Sayler Janet, 46.00; 
Scenic Township, 1,312.50; Schaefer, Dean, 210.00; Scott Elizabeth, 233.80; Scovel 
Psychological, 4,245.00; SD Council Of Community Behavioral Health, 3,763.93; SD Dept Of 
Health, 1,743.00; SD Dept Of Public Safety, 22,000.00; SD Dept Of Public Safety, 45.00; SD Dept 
Of Revenue, 8,712.54; SD Dept Of Social Services, 1,800.00; SD Dept Of Transp-Finance, 
1,467,732.02; SD Dept. Of Military, 1,805.00; SD Federal Property Agency, 28,621.25; SD Ltap, 
1,250.00; SD One Call Board, 77.70; SD Secretary Of State, 210.00; SDN Communications, 
1,105.39; SDN Communications, 2,701.30; SDSU West River Ag Center, 83.60; Securus 
Technologies Inc, 16,643.89; Seifert, Mary Rae, 1,620.00; Servall Uniform/Linen Co, 2,626.59; 
Sharma Janki, 148.50; Sherwin Williams Paints, 78.79; Shoemaker Mary, 145.96; Shoener 
Machine & Tool Supply Inc, 40.74; Sign Solutions USA, 9,652.00; Signs Now, 5,008.85; Simon 
Contractors Of South Dakota Inc, 122,910.74; Simpliverified LLC, 455.00; Simpson's Printing, 
695.00; Smith Nikki, 150.00; Smith Sarah, 56.00; Smoot Law Office, 1,237.70; Solemate Shoes 
And Uniform Center, 160.56; Sortland Sandra, 395.98; Southern Cross LLC, 1,230.00; Southern 
Hills Publishing, 937.78; St Mary Parish, 61.00; Stan Houston Equipment, 219.00; Steam Cleaning 
Specialist, 2,000.00; Stephens, Matthew T, 8,817.00; Stevens Paul, 117.13; Street Image Truck & 
Auto Accessories, 964.66; Sturdevant's Auto Parts, 4,059.92; Sturdevant's Refinish, 557.70; 
Suckow Kimberly, 10.05; Summit Food Service, 31,999.35; Summit Signs & Supply Inc, 182.50; 
Super Clean Tunnel Wash, 56.00; Svalstad Darrell K, 100.00; Swanson Erik T DDS PC, 1,341.75; 
Swedin Victoria, 56.00; Syncb/Amazon, 335.74; Sysco Montana Inc, 915.73; Talmage Megan, 
132.00; Team Laboratory Chemical Co, 158,125.00; The Little Print Shop Inc, 2,202.65; The 
Lodge At Deadwood, 738.00; The Medicine Shoppe, 2,946.47; The Rehab Doctors PC, 59.26; 
Thomas Auto Service & Towing, 175.00; Thompson, Lori, 58.50; Thomson Reuters-West, 
7,162.01; Thurman, Creighton, 556.35; Tice Barry, 262.58; Time Equipment Rental & Sales, 
59.74; Timeclock Plus, LLC, 938.70; Titan Machinery, 1,717.00; TKRS Properties LLC, 
3,196.70; Tomi Environmental Solutions Inc., 602.40; Trinity Services Group Inc, 90,924.08; 
Turbiville Industrial Electric Works LLC, 718.26; Twisted Shears LLC, 204.00; Two Crow 
Karaleigh, 56.00; Tyler Technologies, 1,796.00; Tzadik Lacrosse Apartments LLC, 4,577.06; 
Tzadik Rapid City LLC, 440.00; Upper Deck Architects Inc, 2,940.00; US Geological Survey, 
10,607.50; USPS-POC 8100669, 5,901.37; Vanway Trophy & Awards, 138.42; Vari Sales 
Corporation, 614.25; VB Rapid Creek, 6,117.88; Verizon Connect Inc, 34.90; Verizon Wireless, 
2,110.06; Verizon Wireless, 126.92; Virtual Academy, 2,597.00; Vlieger Tom, 78.12; Waeckerle 



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

11 
 
 
 

Law Prof LLC, 673.20; Walker Beverly, 56.00; Walker John K, 350.00; Wall Building Center & 
Construction, 92.51; Warne Chemical & Equipment Co Inc, 449.84; Watertree Inc, 2,293.38; 
Watson Furniture Group, 2,379.08; Webstaurantstore, 6,405.21; Weichmann, Cynthia M, 516.20; 
Wellmark, 120,102.64; Wells Fargo Financial Leasing Inc, 126.35; West River Anesthesiology 
Consultants PC, 155.44; West River Electric, 930.66; West River Welding & Machine, 180.00; 
Western Communication Inc, 548.10; Western Construction Inc, 623,477.62; Western Mailers, 
387.30; Western Stationers, 2,607.52; Wex Bank, 10,339.19; Wex Bank, 478.13; Whitcher Eric 
D, 346.16; Willett Dustin, 132.00; Winter Law Office PC, 1,853.87; Wolf, Ione, 630.00; Wood 
Stock Supply, 645.13; Woods Casey, 175.00; Working Against Violence, 12,693.14; Yankton Co 
Sheriff Office, 50.00; ZMC LLC, 10,481.39. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – SDCL 1-25-2 
MOVED by LaCroix and seconded by Rossknecht to go into Executive Session pursuant to SDCL 
1-25-2(1) for the purpose of discussing personnel matters and SDCL 1-25-2-(3) for 
contractual/pending litigation. Vote: Unanimous. The Board remained in Executive Session from 
12:55 p.m. until 1:23 p.m. MOVED by Hadcock and seconded by Rossknecht to come out of 
Executive Session. Vote: Unanimous. 
 
PAYROLL 
Commissioners, 11,710.26; Elections, 10,086.22; Auditor, 13,695.46; Treasurer, 37,834.39; 
State's Attorney 140,588.76; Public Defender, 89,741.96; Buildings & Grounds, 66,293.90; 
Equalization, 78,386.49; Register of Deeds, 12,567.20; IT, 30,776.83; Human Resources, 
8,348.81; Sheriff, 293,983.81; Jail, 366,172.02; JSC, 111,009.38; JSC Juvenile Alternative, 
4,336.12; CCADP, 114,406.04; Economic Assistance, 39,931.28; Extension, 1,492.81; Natural 
Resources, 10,946.40; Planning & Zoning, 18,345.24; Road & Bridge, 106,812.33; Fire 
Administration, 4,082.43; Dispatch, 111,397.33; Emergency Management, 5,554.38; 24-7 
Program, 9,058.48; MacArthur Safety & Justice, 10,015.05. 
 
PERSONNEL: Amounts listed are hourly, bi-weekly or per meeting depending on position. 
Care Campus: Effective 10/16/2022: Kiley Schaeffer, $18.40. 
Highway: Effective 10/02/2022: Dustin Hall, $28.17. Effective 10/16/2022: Bradley Doerr, 
$16.27; William Huggins, $16.47; Barbara Salyers, $16.27; Curtis Southwick, $16.27; Bill 
Keester, $18.51; Lance Creviston, $21.02; Mark Gohsman, $21.02; Steven Halone, $21.02; Jeff 
Hoffman, $22.09; Doug Horst, $21.55; John Paulin, $21.02; Chad Reber, $21.02; Robert Sands, 
$21.02; Garland Spears, $21.02; Jesse Watson, $21.02; David Way, $21.02; Bryce Beachem, 
$30.29; David Burnette, $25.15; Ted Forbes, $25.15; Matthew Harvey, $25.15; Christopher 
Hermansen, $25.15; Zack Hoffman, $25.15; Charles Hunt, $25.15; Dennis Jensen, $25.15; Dalen 
Keeney, $25.15; Clinton Lester, $25.15; Michael Sutterer, $30.29; Kelly Thurman, $25.15; Jakob 
Wolf, $25.15; Joseph Delaney, $27.30; Aaron Eagle, $31.69; Dustin Hall, $30.27; James McGuire, 
$28.34; Thomas Morrell, $31.30; Cody Olson, $27.30; Erick Rousselle, $27.30; Jeffrey Sorensen, 
$27.30; Ronald Stagner, $31.69; Jay Wetzel, $27.30; Mitchell Kammerer, $33.43; Melvin Larson, 
$38.80; Michael Leiby, $34.70; Dustin Linstrom, $30.27; Eric Radke, $33.43; Ralph Rice, $30.27. 
Effective 10/31/2022: Mark Poste, $20.76. 



PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Meeting of October 18, 2022 

 
 
 

12 
 
 
 

Jail: Effective 11/14/2022: Kaitlyn Davis, $16.67; Alex Taylor-Kenzy, $16.67; Tate Birdinground, 
$18.66.  
Planning & Zoning: Effective 10/16/2022: Thomas Doreff, $23.14.  
Public Defender: Effective 10/17/2022: Brandon Barrett, $2,554.40.  
Sheriff: Effective 11/13/2022: Mandy Schmidt, $24.85. 
Treasurer: Effective 10/17/2022: Denmarie Barawel, $14.68; Heidi HighElk, $18.66. 
WSDJSC: Effective 11/13/2022: Eddie Moua, $23.14; Chantel Kaski, $23.14; Payton Yellowboy, 
$23.14. Effective 11/14/2022: Lily Hof, $14.68. 
 
ADJOURN 
MOVED by Lasseter and seconded by Hadcock to adjourn the meeting. Vote: Unanimous. The 
meeting was adjourned at 1:25 p.m.  
 
/s/ Cindy Mohler, Auditor 
Published once at an approximate cost of _____. 
Publish: November 2, 2022 
 
 









 
   

Entry Form: Hill City’s Olde Tyme Christmas Lighted Parade  - Friday, Nov. 25, 2022 6pm 
    

NEW & OPTIONAL:  Parade Entry Donation to Lane of Lights ($25.00 payable to Hill City Chamber) 
  

• PARADE LINE UP on MUSEUM DRIVE.  Line-up begins 5pm. Parade begins 6p sharp. 
• STAGING & ENTRY:  Enter Parade Route Line-up at Museum Drive at Major Lake Drive.  

                                     Staff will direct you.  All entrants must be in place by 5:45pm. 

• PARADE ROUTE:  QUILT TIME AT MUSEUM DRIVE SOUTH TO MAIN STREET THROUGH TO LIGHT AT 
INTERSECTION JUNCTION US Hwy 16/385 & MAIN ST. 

 

ENTRY FORMS & OPTIONAL DONATION MUST BE RECEIVED AT CHAMBER  

**************BY NOON TUESDAY, November 15, 2022************** 
 

INDIVIDUAL/BUSINESS/ORGANIZATION NAME: ____________________________________________________________ 

Contact Person: __ _________________________         Cell Phone (REQUIRED): __________________________________ 
Email Address (REQUIRED): ____________________________________________________________________________ 
Mailing Address (REQUIRED): __________________________________________________________________________ 

Approx. float dimensions (esp. length):   ________________   Number of vehicles:  _______ # of walkers______________ 
Mark the category that best describes your entry: 

Community/Non-profit ____    Commercial/Business ____    Band ____     Antique/Classic Auto ____ 
Military/Veterans, etc.  ____    Equestrian (Must provide own clean up) ____   Other_____________________________ 
DESCRIBE HOW YOU WILL DECORATE YOUR ENTRY : _____________________________________________________ 
 

NOTE:  IF YOU ARE A GROUP, SUCH AS A CAR CLUB OR HAVE MULTIPLE PEOPLE ON YOUR FLOAT—EVERYONE MUST GATHER 
AS A GROUP or BE ON YOUR FLOAT FIRST PRIOR TO LINING-UP ON MUSEUM DRIVE; LATE ARRIVALS will not be able to join 

the group during staging on Museum Drive.  Entrants must be in place by 5:45p. 

PARTICIPATION IN Hill City’s Olde Tyme Christmas Parade is subject to the following stipulations and regulations: 
• NEW in 2022:  ALL PARADE PARTICIPANTS ARE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE A CERTIFICATE OF GENERAL LIABILITY or PROOF OF 

GENERAL AUTO LIABILITY INSURANCE ALONG WITH THIS COMPLETED APPLICATION.  
• To ensure the safety of parade spectators, NO candy, prizes, promotional items, etc. shall be thrown from any moving or 

stationary parade float or vehicle along the parade route.  Any such items must be handed out by walkers.  Please ensure your 
parade entry is sufficiently staffed if you intend to distribute candy/items and ensure walkers distribute them completely clear of 
the line of traffic and away from the float such that spectators do not have to enter roadway to retrieve them. 

• Each parade participating group must be responsible not only for their safety but must also take precautions to ensure the safety 
of their float and its participants.  An adult or adults must be on all floats where there are children. 

• Each float/truck/motor vehicle or ATV driver is solely responsible for the safe operation of their vehicle, each driver m ust be the 
holder of a valid driver’s license and must have valid auto liability coverage in force.  A float/truck/vehicle or ATV driver  must stay 
with the float/entry/vehicle at all times, including when in/at the staging area. 

• Animals participating in the parade must have a temperament for handling noise and excitement.  Entrants with animals of any 
kind are responsible for immediately curbing/cleaning up after their animals and safely controlling their animals at all times. 

• Drugs and alcohol are not permitted on any parade entry before or during the parade, and shall not be consumed by any 
participant on parade route.  

• Parade participants shall not spray liquids of any kind at or into the crowd. 
• IN CASE OF EMERGENCY, which may require sheriff or fire vehicles, all entries are required to move to the far right. 

INDEMNIFICATION: 
Participant expressly assumes all risks incident to or in connection with participation in the event.  Participant agrees to and shall indemnify, 
defend and hold the Hill City Area Chamber of Commerce and City of Hill City harmless from and against all losses, liabilities, damages, 
costs, expenses, judgments or settlements whatsoever incurred by the Hill City Area Chamber of Commerce or City of Hill City resulting 
from any claim, demand, action, cause of action or suit arising from or relating to the negligent or intentional acts of omissions of 
participant, or its volunteers, employees and others acting on behalf of, or for the benefit of, participant.   
 

As a participant or representative of a participating group, I have read and understand the above stipulations and indemnification and 
will inform all members of my participating group with regard to stipulations and indemnification requirements. 
 

Signature of Participant or Participant Group Representative:_________________________________________   
Date: ________________________________          Cell Phone:_________________________________________________ 
 

If signatory is a representative of a participating group, name and title of representative: 
 

RETURN FORM TO:  PO BOX 253, Hill City, SD  57745  Phone:  605-574-2368 / Janet Wetovick-Bily director@hillcitysd.com 

director@hillcitysd.com


l-prNNrNc
11

TON
Pennington County Highway Department

3601 Cambell Street . Rapid Citv, SD 5nU-0121
Phone: (605) 391-2166 . Fax: (605) 391-21,68

www.pennco.org

-COUNTY

TO

RE

CONSENT AGENDA

MEMO

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

DATE: NOVEMBER 1.2022

FROM: JOSEPH MILLER
SUPERINTENDE

MEMORANDUM OF LTNDERSTANDING LAWRENCE COUNTY

Lawrence County has again agreed to provide snow removal for the asphalt portion of Rochford
Road and North Rochford Road in exchange for a portion of Nemo Road north ofthe county
boundary. This agreement was first approved in 2020 and has been beneficial for our Hill City
Division as there are no other asphalt roads in the Rochford area and it is not practical for our
snow plow to travel to this area due to the distance from the Hill City shop. Our Hill City
Division motor graders will continue to provide snow removal for the gravel roads in this area.

We anticipate this area changing to a new asphalt snow route for the Hill City Division upon the
completion ofthe South Rochford Road reconstruction project.

Motion is requested to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with Lawrence County for
exchanging snow removal routes.

JM:cjb
Attachment



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
November 1, 2022 

 
The following is a summary of the exchange of snow routes, as shown on the attached map, between the 
Lawrence County Highway Department and the Pennington County Highway Department, for the 
period of November 1, 2022 to May 15, 2023.  The level of service provided by each agency shall be 
consistent with the policy of the agency providing the service. 
 
To Be Completed by Lawrence County:        Approx. Miles 
 
North Rochford Road         1.23 
Rochford Road         1.30 
 
      TOTAL    2.53 
 
To Be Completed by Pennington County:         Approx. Miles 
 
Nemo Road          2.11 
 
      TOTAL    2.11 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________   __________________ 
Lawrence County       Date 
 
 
________________________________________   __________________ 
Chairperson, Pennington County Commissioners   Date 



/
N

BO
G

US
JIM

BLACKFOREST

S CREEK VIEW

DU
G

G
AN

JAX

TAYLOR RANCH

TRESTLE

M
EL

CO
R

MAIN

N
RO

CHFO
RD

BOGUS JIM

H
ILLS

VIEW

TA
M

A
R

A

BLO ODY
GULC

H

BANG OR

SILVER CITY

SILVER
 C

R
EEK

MUNICH

M YSTIC

SLATEPRA IRIE

HORS E C RE
EK

KINSLEY

W HIG HWAY
44

S

R
O

CH
FO

RD

N
O

R
R

IS
 P

EA
K

S PRAIRIE

CREEK

PI
NE NE MO

GEORGE

FR
INK

KELL
Y

G
UL

C
H

HIG
HW

AY

385

AL
PI

NE

CHIN

AG
ULCH

A
S

PEN

M

ER
RI

TT
S

C
H

O
O

L

JENNY
G

ULCH

SANDERS

RANCH

TI M
BE

R

B
E

AR
G

U
LC

H

CASTLE PEAK

C
US

TE
R

GULCH

BRUSH CREEK

SUNNYSIDE
GULCH

E
D

E
LW

EISS

MOUN TAIN

JENNY
GULCH

PICNIC
G

RO
UND

M CC
U

R
DY

GU
LC

H

PACTO
LA

BASIN

PACTOLA

BOAT
DOCK

PR
IVATE

DR
IVEWAY

KAUBISCH

RAN CH

DR
IV

E
W

AY

VICTORIA LAKE

ROCHFO
RD

DIVIDE

PLACERVILLE

JE

NNY

G
ULCH

RD

US
HIGHW

AY
385

N BOGUS
JI M RD NEMO RD

FA
W

N
D

R

N
RO

CHFOR
D

R
D

GO
O

D

HOPE
RD

DUREN RD

SILVER
CR

E
E

K
R

D ME
RRIT T ESTESRD

M
IN

NES

OTA

RIDG
E

RD

ROCHFO RD RD

G
RE

EN

S

G
UL

C
H

LO

OP

ERSKI N
E

G
UL

C
H

RD

TWI N
PEA K S

L
N

EXPERIMENTAL

FOREST RD

CJB SCALE:

2022-2023 PENNINGTON/LAWRENCE COUNTY SNOW EXCHANGE

10/17/2022 1 inch = 1.5 miles

PENNINGTON COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPT.
3601 CAMBELL STREET
RAPID CITY, SD  57701
(605) 394-2166 DRAWN BY:

Snow Exchange

Pennington County Roads

State Roads

Other Roads

COUNTY BOUNDARY



PTNNINcToN
COUNTY

Pennington County Highway Department
3601 Cambell Street . Rapid City, SD 57707-0124

Phone: (605) 394-2'166. Fax: (605) 391-2168
1 .wt^,.Pennco.olg

RE

MEMO

TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

DATE: NOVEMBER 1.2022

FROM JOSEPH MILLER
SUPERINTEND

WORK ORDER PD.19-21 FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES
RESERVOIR ROAD AND LAMB ROAD INTERSECTION

Due to a high number of accidents with vehicles leaving the roadway and colliding with
guardrail at the intersection of Reservoir and Lamb Road, we submitted the intersection to the
South Dakota Departrnent of Transportation as a possible safety project. They've reviewed the
project scope and approved it as a Roadway Safery Improvement project which utilizes federal
funding.

As such, the attached work order has been drafted to allow for preliminary and final design
engineering. Penninglon County will be responsible for 10% ($11,500) of the maximum limiting
amount of$l15,000. Frmds are available in our 2022 and2023 budgets for this work. The
proposed project will regrade a crest vertical curve to increase sight distance, regrade the
intersection to a T-intersection with an all-way stop control and the addition of rumble strips and

signing. Cunently, the project is projected to be ready for bid letting and construction in 2024.

Motion is requested to approve Work Order PD-19-21 with FMG Engineering, Inc. and the

SDDOT for engineering services for the Reservoir Road and Lamb Road intersection.

JM:cjb
Attachment























PEN N I NGToN
COUNTY

Pennington County Highway Department
3601 Cambell Street . Rapid Cit_v, SD 5n07-0124

Phone: (605) 394-21,66. Fax: (605) 39+2768
\ r\ 14'.Pennco.org

RE

MEMO

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

DATE NOVEMBER I.2022

FROM: JOSEPH MILLER
SUPERINTENDEN

AUTHORIZATION TO PURCIIASE ONE NEW TRAVELING AXLE
LOWBOY TRAILER

The Equipment Purchase Plan approved on May 3,2022 allows for one new lowboy trailer
purchase in 2023. The current lead time for trailers is approximately 12 months. Midwest Diesel

Service, Inc. holds a contract with the State of Minnesota for trailers and has agreed to extend the

bid pricing to Pennington County.

Our department is a member of the State of Minnesota, Office of State Procurement, Cooperative

Purchasing Venrure program which allows us to purchase offof their competitively sealed

bids/proposals, similar to Sourcewell. The proposal from Midwest Diesel Service, Inc. is

attached for your review.

In order to save on advertising, administrative costs and to avoid any projected price increases

for equipment, we propose ordering one new traveling axle lowboy trailer offof the Minnesota

State Contract, which expires January 3'1, 2023. The new trailer will not be delivered until 2023

and is allowed for in our 2023 budget.

Motion is requested to authorize the Highway Department to purchase one new 2023 Landoll

4558-48 traveling axle lowboy from Midwest Diesel Service, Inc., Blaine, MN, in the amount of
$145,004.45 plus delivery at $3.00 per loaded mile from the State of Minnesota Cooperative

Purchasing Venture Program Contract #206480.

JM:cjb
Attachments



Pennington County Highway Deparhent
3601 Cambell Street . Rapid Cit),, SD 57707-0121

Phone: (605) 391-2166 . Fax: (605) 39+2168
ull /\ r.pennco.org

This plan assists the Highway Department with fleet management and budgetary forecasting for equipment which requires

bid letting or purchase from a government cooperative purchasing program. Our equipment budget is estimated at

approximately s 1,100,000 per year.

2023.2033 EQUIPMf,NT PLAI{ NARRATIYE

MOTOR GRADI'RS (Estimated Unit Cost Si3i60'0fi))

. l0 units in current fleet

. warranty is 7 years on new purchases

. Purchase one unit every other year and two units in opposite years. This would keep motor graders under

warranty and newer than 7 years which shifts the risk from us to the manufacturer.

o plan would also retain about $50,000 dollars more equity for an estimated trade in value of approximately

s130,000.
. Average equipment use is 800 HourVYear

TRUCKS @stimeted Unit Cost $200,000)

o 35 units in current fleet - 17 snow routes with 3 backups, as well as 8 trucks used for gravel. We will be able to

reduce the number oftrucks in the fleet as we get new units set up with the Kybato system.

o First 200k miles as gravel haul trucks (approx. first 7 yea$), and would also use as backup snow plows as needed

. Next l0 years as plow trucks

. Ideally keep fleet newer than 20 years by replacing one unit per year

VACIj(M BROOMS (Estimated Unit Cost $325,fiX))

2 units in current fleet
Replace one unit every 5 years on a year with only I motor grader purchase.

TRAILERS (Estimated UDit Cost $f 00'000)

8 Belly Dumps and 3 Side Dumps in current fleet

Replace 1 every other year on the year with only I motor grader purchase

Average equipment use is 30,000 Miles/Year

MOWERS (Estimated Unit Cost $150'000)

. 9 units in current fleet

. Expect a 20-year life
o Purchase I every 4 years on the year with only I motor grader purchase

o Average equipment use is 800 HourVYear

LOADERS @stimated Unit Cost $280'000)

r Buy one every l0 vears or as needed

. Generally, our loaders are in pretty good condition; we have some older ones we would like to replace.

. Average equipment use is 250 Hours/Year

LOWBOY (Estimated Unit Cost $150'000)

. Purchase one every l0 years

a



Pennington County Highway Department Equipment Plan

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2031 2032 2033
Equipment Unit Cost Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount Qty Amount
Motor Graders $360,000 2 $720,000 1 $360,000 2 $720,000 1 $360,000 2 $720,000 1 $360,000 2 $720,000 1 $360,000 2 $720,000 1 $360,000 2 $720,000
Trucks $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000 1 $200,000
Vacuum Brooms $325,000 $0 1 $325,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 1 $325,000 $0 $0 $0 $0
Trailers $100,000 $0 1 $100,000 $0 1 $100,000 $0 1 $100,000 $0 1 $100,000 $0 1 $100,000 $0
Mowers $150,000 $0 1 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 1 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 1 $150,000 $0
Pickups (New) $70,000 2 $140,000 $0 2 $140,000 $0 2 $140,000 $0 2 $140,000 $0 2 $140,000 $0 2 $140,000
Loaders $280,000 $0 $0 $0 1 $280,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Low Boy $150,000 1 $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 1 $150,000 $0
Other Equip Purchases $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Cost Before Trades $1,260,000 $1,185,000 $1,110,000 $990,000 $1,110,000 $860,000 $1,435,000 $710,000 $1,110,000 $1,010,000 $1,110,000
Est Trade‐In out of warranty (Motor Grader) $80,000 $160,000
Est Trade‐In 7 year plan (Motor Grader) $130,000 $130,000 $260,000 $130,000 $260,000 $130,000 $260,000 $130,000 $260,000 $130,000 $260,000
Budget Requirement $1,100,000 $1,055,000 $850,000 $860,000 $850,000 $730,000 $1,175,000 $580,000 $850,000 $880,000 $850,000

2030



QUOTE

 
10/25/2022

Date

Purchaser's Name

MIDWEST DIESEL SERVICE
 Street Address

3041 82nd Lane City State Zip

Blaine, MN 55449
763-780-8533 Phone

This Quote is Not A Binding Offer 
Until Signed By Both Parties Discount   8%

Trailer Information New 2023 Landoll
New or Used Year Make

455B-48 School Bus Yellow TBD
Model or Series Color VIN #

Rod Jauert  
Salesperson Stock #

Landoll 455B-48 Length 47' 10" Base Sale Price $119,015.00
Bulkhead - 16"/24" x 102" 2 position Bulkhead/Front Extension (Solid, 3000Ib Distributed Cap) $0.00
Bulkhead Painted to match Trailer: Dupont LFG8112AW School Bus Yellow, Davis #4-5582 $2,130.00
Top Opening Toolboxes STD
(2) Extra Tool Boxes 1 Each Side Of Winch (42"W x 28" D x 9"H) $2,170.00
Winch 20K Braden Worm Gear $2,985.00
Wireless Remote Control (6 function:Tilt, Travel, and Winch) $1,935.00
Upper Deck Slope Wear Protection - Slope Roller $655.00
Main Beams On Lower Deck 1/4" In Lieu Of Standard $775.00
(18) D Rings On Each Side Of Bed (6) Min. On Upper Deck Equally Spaced (36) Total $4,860.00
Folding Step, Street Side Painted Safety Yellow $330.00
Landoll Traction Plate on Approach Plate (Bolt-On) (Painted Trailer Color) $795.00
Air Dump Valve $345.00
Scale System - Liquid Filled Air Pressure Gauge $495.00
Special Paint Color to Match: Dupont LFG8112AW School Bus Yellow, Davis #4-5582 $3,800.00
(1) Spare Tire: Double Coin 235/75R 17.5 $735.00
ADD'L CROSSMEMBERS, TWO SPD LANDING GEAR, LED LIGHT PKG, CENTRALIZED STD
GREASE, HEAVY DUTY LOWER FLANGE AND WEB KIT, HIGH VISABILITY DECAL PACKAGE STD
SPRING BRAKES ON ALL AXLES STD
(2) PARTS AND OPERATIONS MANUALS STD

Trade-In Information Sale Price $141,025.00

DISCOUNT ($11,282.00)
Year: Make: Model: Sub-Total $129,743.00

FET $15,569.16

VIN # FET Tire Credit ($307.71)
Trade Value Trade Equity $0.00

Delivery Fee $0.00

Total Due $145,004.45

Rod Jauert
Salesperson Customer Signature

BUYER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL STATE AND LOCAL TAXES AND FEES

Pennington County, SD

605-391-9370

FOB: FACTORY

State Contract #206480



  

Buildings and Grounds 

302 Kansas City Street, Rapid City, SD  57701 

Phone (605) 394.2172, Fax (605) 394.1916 

www.pennco.org 

 
  

MEMO 
 

Date:  November 01, 2022 

To:  Pennington County Board of Commissioners 

From:  Mike Kuhl, Director of Buildings & Grounds 

Re:  Courthouse Entry Addition 3rd Floor Buildout 
Design Services Proposal (CO-OP Architecture) 
Building Committee Project Recommendation 

 
Remarks: 

At the October 18th  Board Meeting, I presented the Building Committee’s recommendation that 
the Courthouse Entry Addition 3rd Floor Buildout A&E Design Contract be allowed to move forward 
for the project. As committee recommendations require two meetings prior to Board action, I 
have placed this item on your agenda for the second time. A copy of documents previously 
submitted have been attached for reference.  

Estimating costs of construction will be included in the design process.  The full scope and needs 
cannot be fully defined without further investigation and therefore makes it difficult to create an 
accurate construction cost estimate.  Included with the design proposal is an estimated cost for 
construction of this project stated as $182,417.  Refinement of those costs will be provided as 
design elements are finalized. 

Given Board support, I seek authorization to execute a design contract with Co-op Architecture 
Inc. and design/ administrative decision-making authority for this project. 

Motion: 
To authorize Mike Kuhl, Director of Pennington County Buildings and Grounds Department, 
to execute an AIA Standard Form of Agreement between Pennington County and Co-op 
Architecture Inc.  for professional services outlined in Co-op Architecture Inc. Proposal, 
dated September 23, 2022, for the Courthouse Entry Addition 3rd Floor Buildout project 
with a lump sum fee of $25,000.00 plus any applicable reimbursable expenses, utilizing 
Accumulated Building Funds. 

Motion: 
To authorize Mike Kuhl, Director of Pennington County Buildings and Grounds Department, 
to have design and administrative decision-making authority for the Courthouse Entry 
Addition 3rd Floor Buildout project, including signing application documents and necessary 
agreements, and expenditure authority up to $30,000 (includes CO-OP contract) as 
Pennington County’s Representative.  

 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 

http://www.pennco.org/


 
 

 
1108 S. Main St. #102, Aberdeen, SD 57401  T: (605) 725-4852  

601 Kansas City St. #7, Rapid City, SD 57701  T: (605) 716-3652 
300 N. Philips Ave. #120 Sioux Falls, SD 57104  T: (605) 334-9999 

www.co-oparch.com 

 

To:         Mike Kuhl, Director 
Project:    Pennington County Courthouse – 3rd Floor Buildout  
Location:   302 Kansas City St.  

Rapid City, SD 57701 
Date:        September 27th, 2022 
 
RE: Proposal for AE Services – 3rd Floor Buildout at Courthouse Entrance Addition   
 
Dear Mr. Kuhl,  
CO-OP Architecture is pleased to submit a proposal for design services for this project.  After completing a 
review, the committee concluded starting a buildout project that turns the existing shell space of the 3rd 
Floor into a larger conference room. Initial concepts are shown below of the approximately 1,250 SF 
space.  Some other limited work with finishes and layout updates is expected.  Current estimate and 
schedule are attached, but with current market volatility the numbers are subject to change.  Our 
proposal will be based off current building design/floorplan as shown below.  

 
Schematic Floor Plan 



 
 

 
1108 S. Main St. #102, Aberdeen, SD 57401  T: (605) 725-4852  

601 Kansas City St. #7, Rapid City, SD 57701  T: (605) 716-3652 
300 N. Philips Ave. #120 Sioux Falls, SD 57104  T: (605) 334-9999 

www.co-oparch.com 

 

Scope of Services: 
We will provide as basic services, the following:  

• Architecture –     CO-OP Architecture 

• Structural Engineering (if needed) – Albertson Engineering  

• Mechanical & Electrical Engineering– Skyline Engineering 
o Commission or Building Committee Meetings as required 
o Construction Drawings to meet code 
o Finish and material selections 
o Coordinate bidding, answer bid questions and issue addendas 
o Construction Administration- shop drawing review, RFIs, RFPs 
o Construction progress meetings (2 per month), punchlist review, final walk-thru 

 
Preliminary Schedule:   
Completed: Schematic Design- verify program, site visits  
Sep – Oct 2022: Design Development 
November 2022: Review final Construction Drawings and Board approval to issue building documents 
December 2022: Bidding & Negotiation 
January 2023 – May 2023: Construction 
  
Proposed Base Fee:  CO-OP Architecture proposes to provide these services for a lump sum fee of 
$25,000 plus any applicable reimbursables. This fee was calculated based off a building budget of 
$115,000 for Professional Design Services and includes Construction Administration. 
MEP - $12,500 
Arch - $12,500 
Total - $25,000 
 
Basis for proposal: Lump Sum fee, billed monthly as a progress payment submittal.  Services required 
over and above this proposal will be billed on an hourly basis, after approval from owner.  Sales tax will be 
added if applicable.   

 
Acceptance of Proposal and Authorization to Proceed 
If this proposal is acceptable, please return one signed original as our authorization to 
proceed. An additional AIA contract will be prepared to be included as part of this contract.  
Owner is responsible for existing site survey costs, asbestos abatement costs, permitting.  
Proposal is good for 45 days.  We look forward to continuing to work with you, 

 
CO-OP Architecture Pennington County Buildings & Grounds  

 
_____________________________  ___________________________ 
Jared Carda, AIA         Representative           
Associate Principal Architect 



Space Description UNIT QUANTITY $/UNIT COST
Mobilization EACH 1 $12,500.00 $12,500.00

Wall Infill @ Exterior (approx 10' ceiling) SQFT 600 $10.00 $6,000.00

Full Wall - Separation SQFT 84 $11.00 $924.00

Flooring & Prep SQFT 1,249 $10.00 $12,490.00

Ceiling - ACT & Soffits SQFT 1,249 $15.00 $18,735.00

MEP SQFT 1,249 $40.00 $49,960.00

Casework - Coffee Credenza LF 9 $350.00 $3,150.00

HM Door & Demo EACH 1 $8,500.00 $8,500.00

SUB-TOTALS $112,259.00

Geotechnical/Testing/Miscellaneous $2,500.00

FF & E $0.00

Overhead & Profit $22,451.80

Professional Services $25,000.00

Construction Environment $3,367.77

Construction Bid Contingency $5,612.95

Construction Contingency $11,225.90

TOTAL ESTIMATE COST $182,417.42

SCHEDULE

DATE TIME SUBJECT

TBD on Phasing Project Kick-Off

TBD on Phasing Programming & DD Meetings 

TBD on Phasing Design Development Review 

TBD on Phasing 100% DD (BOR Submittal) 

TBD on Phasing 50% CD Review (BOR Submittal)

 - Need Final Furniture Layout & Finishes 

TBD on Phasing 95% CD Review

TBD on Phasing 100% Construction Documents 

 - Building Committee Approval

TBD on Phasing Bidding

TBD on Phasing Contracts - NTP

 - Building Committee Bids Approval

TBD on Phasing Begin Construction

TBD on Phasing Substantial Completion 

Pennington County 3rd Floor Courthouse Entry Buildout

5%

10%

0%

September 27, 2022

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT OF PROBABLE COST

Addition and Remodel

3%

20%

PC Courthouse Entry

2nd 3rd Floor Buildout

Rapid City, SD



  
 

 

Buildings and Grounds 

302 Kansas City Street, Rapid City, SD  57701 

Phone (605) 394.2172, Fax (605) 394.1916 

www.pennco.org 

 
 

 

MEMO 
 

Date:  November 01, 2022 
To:  Pennington County Board of Commissioners 
From:  Mike Kuhl, Director of Buildings & Grounds 

Re:  Property Acquisition Recommendation (1st Notice) 
 
Remarks: 

As a result of the Facilities Needs Assessment and recommendation of the Building 
Committee, the facility located at 900 Concourse was authorized for purchase at a 
special meeting held 9/27/2022. 

There is a 2.78-acre parcel just north of that building that the Building Committee feels 
would also be a good investment for long term County needs.  At $2.20 per square foot 
the total asking price equates to $266,413.  Supporting logic for this acquisition include: 

• Ability add support functions or consolidate future facility needs adjacent to a 
County facility. 

• Ability to manage line of sight to the new home of County Administrative 
Offices from the main connector road Homestead Street.   

• County could decide to sell the property in the future with the ability to 
negotiate site usage in front of County Administrative Offices.  

Chris Long is the listing agent for  this property. There is an offer on it, but it has many 
contingencies and a long timeline for approvals. The closing date on their agreement is 
December 18th.  

More of what we do and don’t know: 

• A full price offer would be needed to kick in a 10 day first right of refusal from 
the first offeror giving them the option to purchase the property without their 
contingencies. 

• It is felt that the first offeror would not purchase without those contingencies 
being met. 

• We don’t know what they hope to place at this location. 
 

Since the Building Committee is making a recommendation to the Board, this item will 
be placed on two Board Meeting agendas for discussion. Recommended motions will be 
prepared for Board action at the second meeting based on feedback from the first. 
A sales brochure is attached for your reference.  

Thank you for your consideration. 

http://www.pennco.org/


Chris Long, SIOR, CCIM
Commercial Broker
605.939.4489
chris@rapidcitycommercial.com

Keller Williams Realty Black Hills | 2401 West Main Street, Rapid City, SD 57702 | 605.343.7500 | www.RapidCityCommercial.com

E ANAMOSA ST

EL
K 

VA
LE

 R
D

Future E Anamosa to connect to E North St

Future Turbine Dr 
to extend to Eglin St 

TU
RB

IN
E 

D
R

C
O

N
C

O
U

RSE D
R

HOMESTEAD ST

3.91
Acres

2.59
Acres

2.78
Acres
U/C

Accurpress 
America

RPM & Associates

RPM InnovationsImmutrix
Therapeutics

Sturdevant’s
Auto Parts

Tri-Tech 
Manufacturing

Fenske Media

Your Property...
Our PrioritySM

Exclusively listed by:

L I G H T  I N D U S T R I A L  Z O N I N G  •  N E A R  E L K  V A L E  &  I - 9 0

2.78—3.91 ACRE LOTS FOR SALE
Rushmore Business Park, Rapid City, SD 57703

Highlights
• Ideally located light industrial 

parcels off of Elk Vale Road 
1.5 miles from I-90. Perfect 
for distribution, warehouse or  
manufacturing facilities

• Minutes from Ellsworth Air Force 
Base in Box Elder and quick 
access to truck routes Hwy 44, 
Hwy 16, and Hwy 79

• Parcels are mostly flat and 
shovel-ready

• City plans E Anamosa St to 
connect from Elk Vale Rd to E 
North St, making E Anamosa a 
future major artery 

• Seller to replat upon sale. Actual 
lot sizes to be verified during 
replat. Lot sizes are approximate. 

• Ideal opportunity for light 
industrial lots with visibility

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Cloud+

kevin.burton
Cloud+
Suggested Lot for Purchase

kevin.burton
Text Box
900 Concourse Bldg.

kevin.burton
Arrow



Your Property...Our PrioritySM

Keller Williams Realty Black Hills | 2401 West Main Street, Rapid City, SD 57702 | 605.343.7500 | www.RapidCityCommercial.com

Disclaimer: The information contained herein has been given to us by the owner of the property or other sources we deem reliable. 
We have no reason to doubt its accuracy, but we do not guarantee it. All information should be verified prior to purchase or lease.

Location Acres SF List Price
Price 

per SF
SE Corner Anamosa/Turbine 2.59  112,820 $315,897 $2.80 
NW Corner Homestead/Concourse (U / C) 3.91  170,320 $374,703 $2.20 
SE Corner Homestead/Concourse 2.78  121,097 $266,413 $2.20 

Property Details
 Zoning: Light Industrial

 Tax ID & Legal Description*: 68361 - 1 NORTH; 8 EAST; SEC 4; GL 2 LESS 
RUSHMORE BUSINESS PARK LESS LOTS H3, 
H7, H8 & ROW; W660’ OF GL 1 LESS RUSHMORE 
BUSINESS PARK & LESS LOTS H6 & H8; N1081.18’ OF 
SW1/4NE1/4 LESS RUSHMORE BUSINESS PARK LESS 
LOTS H2, H3, H4, H9 & ROW

 Real Estate Taxes*: TBD

 Special Assessment (2021)*: $365.03

 Utilities: Electricity - West River Electric
  Gas - Montana Dakota Utility Co.
  Water & Sewer - Rapid City

  *Replatting required

PROPERTY DETAILS
Rushmore Business Park, Rapid City, SD 57703

E ANAMOSA ST

EL
K 

VA
LE

 R
D

Future E Anamosa to connect to E North St

Future Turbine Dr 
to extend to Eglin St 

TU
RB

IN
E 

D
R

C
O

N
C

O
U

RSE D
R

HOMESTEAD ST

3.91
Acres

2.59
Acres

2.78
Acres
U/C

Accurpress 
America

RPM & Associates

RPM InnovationsImmutrix
Therapeutics

Sturdevant’s
Auto Parts

Tri-Tech 
Manufacturing

Fenske Media

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Cloud

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Line

kevin.burton
Cloud



Your Property...Our PrioritySM

Keller Williams Realty Black Hills | 2401 West Main Street, Rapid City, SD 57702 | 605.343.7500 | www.RapidCityCommercial.com

Disclaimer: The information contained herein has been given to us by the owner of the property or other sources we deem reliable. 
We have no reason to doubt its accuracy, but we do not guarantee it. All information should be verified prior to purchase or lease.

ZONING & INFRASTRUCTURE
Rushmore Business Park, Rapid City, SD 57703

© City of Rapid City GIS

666.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet666.7

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

333.330

1: 4,000

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Address Points

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

Sewer Manholes

Special Manhole, Public

Tee Manhole, Public

Vortex Manhole, Public

Externa lDropManhole, Public

Internal DropManhole, Public

Termination Manhole, Public

Standard Manhole, Public

Drop Manhole, Public

Sewer Lift Stations

Public

Private

Control Valve

System Valve

Light Industrial

Future Street Plan

Zoning

Water & Sewer



Your Property...Our PrioritySM

Keller Williams Realty Black Hills | 2401 West Main Street, Rapid City, SD 57702 | 605.343.7500 | www.RapidCityCommercial.com

Disclaimer: The information contained herein has been given to us by the owner of the property or other sources we deem reliable. 
We have no reason to doubt its accuracy, but we do not guarantee it. All information should be verified prior to purchase or lease.

DEMOGRAPHICS
Rapid City, SD

Hill City

Custer

Keystone

Hot Springs

Deadwood Sturgis

Spearfish

Sundance

Newcastle

Black Hills 
National Forest

Custer 
State 
Park

Mt. Rushmore

Crazy Horse 
Monument

Wind Cave 
National Park

Lead

Badlands 
National 

Park

Box Elder

Hermosa

Ellsworth 
Air Force 

BaseRapid City

Rapid City Rapid City 
MSA

Rapid City
PUMA

Total Households 29,700 58,000 75,000
Total Population 72,841 143,711 183,168
Population % Growth (2016-2017) 0.552% 0.79% 0.637%
Median Household Income $48,895 $52,683 $51,964
Income % Growth (2016-2017) 3.37% 2.32% 2.73%
Median Property Value $170,700 $172,600 $170,400
Property Value % Growth (2016-2017) 2.83% 2.68% 2.59%
Average Age 37.1 38.3 39.1
Total Employees 35,487 71,933 87,227
Employees % Growth (2016-2017) 1.07% 1.21% 1.33%

Welcome to South Dakota and Rapid City!
The Mount Rushmore State of South Dakota has carved a solid reputation for business friendliness.  It is 
consistently ranked in the top five states for setting up and conducting business. Small and big companies alike 
are discovering South Dakota’s central location and progressive business climate.
Rapid City is a gem of a city in the state. Located in the west, it is situated on I-90 with direct access to the 
Black Hills and the surrounding energy fields and is the regional economic and medical hub for a 200 mile 
radius containing 470,000 people. Rapid City has a diverse economy of many thriving small businesses 
boosted by the area’s major industries of tourism, healthcare, Ellsworth Air Force Base, and financial call 
centers.

Rapid City Area Key Stats
Total Work Force .................................. 71,933
Unemployment Rate  ............................... 3.2%
Right-to-work Law ...................................... Yes

Employment by Sector:
Retail ........................................................ 22%
Heathcare & Social Assistance ................. 15%
Professional & Administrative Services .... 10% 
Construction ............................................... 9%
Education Services ..................................... 7%
Manufacturing ............................................. 6%
Transportation, Warehousing, & Utilities .... 4%

National Rankings
South Dakota—Best State to Start a Business 
Fortune, 2018
South Dakota—Friendliest State for Small 
Business
Inc., 2018
South Dakota—Best Business Climate in the US
Wall Street 24/7, 2018
South Dakota—Best State for Quality of Life
U.S. News & World Report, 2019
South Dakota—Fiscal Stability
U.S. News & World Report, 2019

#2

#1

#1

#2

#3



 
 

DATE: October 21, 2022 

TO: Board of Commissioners 

FROM: Cindy Mohler, Auditor 

RE: Proposed 2023 Wage Scale 

As was presented at the October 18th meeting it is the recommendation of the Compensation Committee that the 
board adopt the proposed 2023 wage scale which applies a 4% COLA increase to the 2022 scale. 

I’ve attached a spreadsheet to show the anticipated increases for each department and which departments may 
need a supplement and which ones believe the increase can be absorbed.  The amount that may need to be 
supplemented is estimated at $653,000 for the General Fund. With the $1,094,839 of unanticipated revenue in 
2023 from the Local Assistance and Tribal Consistency Fund I am estimating that the Unassigned Fund Balance 
at the end of 2023 will be 19.73%.  This is more than what was estimated in the final 2023 budget, that estimate 
was 19.36%. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
1) To rescind the motion to approve the use of the 2023 pay structure with elevated state rates for
Grade A and B positions as presented, and further move for placement on the scale where the
employee will receive a 1.5% adjustment plus one step, and the application of an additional single
pay step as required to avoid new compression, which was passed on April 19, 2022.

2) To approve the proposed 2023 wage scale with a 4% COLA increase and 1.25% steps and further
move to place employees on this wage scale at a place where they receive at least a 4% increase plus
one step effective December 25, 2022.

PPeennnniinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  AAuuddiittoorr’’ss  OOffffiiccee  
CCiinnddyy  MMoohhlleerr,,  AAuuddiittoorr

Pennington County Administration Building ● PO Box 6160  
Rapid City, SD 57709 ● Phone: (605) 394-2153 ● www.pennco.org 

See revised motion on next page

http://www.pennco.org/


Revised motion - added to packet 



Department
Able to 
Absorb

Supplement 
May Be 

Necessary
111 BOC 5,592 5,600

120 & 141 Auditor 15,000 yes
142 Treasurer 23,610 yes
151 States Attorney 21,000 yes
152 Public Defender 60,000 20,000 40,000
161 Building & Grounds 100,000 no 100,000
162 Equalization 11,000 yes
163 Register of Deeds 7,600 yes
171 IT 23,120 yes
172 Human Resources 5,700 yes
211 Law Enforcement 171,883 171,883
232 Jail 251,560 150,000 151,560
251 Juvenile Services 88,000 88,000
263 Detox (ATS) 88,200 88,200
411 Health & Human Services 21,100 yes
611 Extension 1,068 yes
615 Conservation 8,000 8,000
711 Planning 7,200 yes

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 909,633 653,243

E911 206,000 yes
FIRE 5,700 5,700
Hwy 15,340 yes
24/7 8,751 yes
Emg Mgmt 1,340 yes

GRAND TOTAL 1,146,764

IMPACT OF 4% COLA WAGE SCALE



2023 Scale with Increased Starting Rates 4‐26‐2022 (Final)

2023 Schedule ‐ FIXED RATE & RANGE
DBM Rating Step Increase % 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

A11 Fixed $11.29 $11.43 $11.57 $11.72 $11.86 $12.01 $12.16 $12.31 $12.47 $12.62 $12.78 $12.94 $13.10 $13.27 $13.43 $13.60 $13.77 $13.94 $14.12 $14.29
A12 Fixed $13.39 $13.56 $13.72 $13.90 $14.07 $14.25 $14.42 $14.60 $14.79 $14.97 $15.16 $15.35 $15.54 $15.73 $15.93 $16.13 $16.33 $16.54 $16.74 $16.95
A13 Fixed $15.49 $15.68 $15.88 $16.08 $16.28 $16.48 $16.69 $16.89 $17.11 $17.32 $17.54 $17.76 $17.98 $18.20 $18.43 $18.66 $18.89 $19.13 $19.37 $19.61
B21 Fixed $17.59 $17.81 $18.03 $18.25 $18.48 $18.71 $18.95 $19.18 $19.42 $19.67 $19.91 $20.16 $20.41 $20.67 $20.93 $21.19 $21.45 $21.72 $21.99 $22.27
B22 Fixed $19.69 $19.93 $20.18 $20.43 $20.69 $20.95 $21.21 $21.47 $21.74 $22.02 $22.29 $22.57 $22.85 $23.14 $23.43 $23.72 $24.02 $24.32 $24.62 $24.93
B23 Fixed $21.79 $22.06 $22.33 $22.61 $22.90 $23.18 $23.47 $23.76 $24.06 $24.36 $24.67 $24.98 $25.29 $25.60 $25.92 $26.25 $26.58 $26.91 $27.24 $27.59
B24 Fixed $24.07 $24.37 $24.67 $24.98 $25.29 $25.61 $25.93 $26.25 $26.58 $26.91 $27.25 $27.59 $27.93 $28.28 $28.64 $28.99 $29.36 $29.72 $30.10 $30.47
B25 Fixed $27.18 $27.51 $27.86 $28.21 $28.56 $28.92 $29.28 $29.64 $30.01 $30.39 $30.77 $31.15 $31.54 $31.94 $32.34 $32.74 $33.15 $33.57 $33.98 $34.41
B31 Fixed $24.07 $24.37 $24.67 $24.98 $25.29 $25.61 $25.93 $26.25 $26.58 $26.91 $27.25 $27.59 $27.93 $28.28 $28.64 $28.99 $29.36 $29.72 $30.10 $30.47
B32 Fixed $27.18 $27.51 $27.86 $28.21 $28.56 $28.82 $29.28 $29.64 $30.01 $30.39 $30.77 $31.15 $31.54 $31.94 $32.34 $32.74 $33.15 $33.57 $33.98 $34.41
C41 Fixed $28.45 $28.81 $29.17 $29.53 $29.90 $30.27 $30.65 $31.04 $31.42 $31.82 $32.21 $32.62 $33.02 $33.44 $33.85 $34.28 $34.71 $35.14 $35.58 $36.02
C42 Fixed $30.43 $30.81 $31.20 $31.59 $31.98 $32.38 $32.78 $33.19 $33.61 $34.03 $34.45 $34.89 $35.32 $35.76 $36.21 $36.66 $37.12 $37.58 $38.05 $38.53
C43 Fixed $32.41 $32.81 $33.22 $33.64 $34.06 $34.49 $34.92 $35.35 $35.80 $36.24 $36.70 $37.15 $37.62 $38.09 $38.57 $39.05 $39.54 $40.03 $40.53 $41.04
C44 Fixed $34.89 $35.32 $35.76 $36.21 $36.66 $37.12 $37.59 $38.05 $38.53 $39.01 $39.50 $39.99 $40.49 $41.00 $41.51 $42.03 $42.56 $43.09 $43.63 $44.17
C45 Fixed $37.86 $38.33 $38.81 $39.30 $39.79 $40.29 $40.79 $41.30 $41.82 $42.34 $42.87 $43.40 $43.95 $44.49 $45.05 $45.61 $46.18 $46.76 $47.35 $47.94
C51 Fixed $34.89 $35.32 $35.76 $36.21 $36.66 $37.12 $37.59 $38.05 $38.53 $39.01 $39.50 $39.99 $40.49 $41.00 $41.51 $42.03 $42.56 $43.09 $43.63 $44.17
C52 Fixed $37.86 $38.43 $38.91 $39.39 $39.89 $40.39 $40.89 $41.40 $41.92 $42.44 $42.97 $43.51 $44.05 $44.60 $45.16 $45.73 $46.30 $46.88 $47.46 $48.06
D61 Fixed $39.80 $40.30 $40.80 $41.31 $41.83 $42.35 $42.88 $43.41 $43.96 $44.51 $45.06 $45.63 $46.20 $46.77 $47.36 $47.95 $48.55 $49.16 $49.77 $50.39
D62 Fixed $41.45 $41.97 $42.50 $43.03 $43.56 $44.11 $44.66 $45.22 $45.78 $46.36 $46.94 $47.52 $48.12 $48.72 $49.33 $49.94 $50.57 $51.20 $51.84 $52.49
D63 Fixed $43.39 $43.93 $44.48 $45.04 $45.60 $46.17 $46.75 $47.33 $47.93 $48.52 $49.13 $49.74 $50.37 $51.00 $51.63 $52.28 $52.93 $53.59 $54.26 $54.94
D64 Fixed $45.82 $46.39 $46.97 $47.56 $48.15 $48.75 $49.36 $49.98 $50.60 $51.24 $51.88 $52.53 $53.18 $53.85 $54.52 $55.20 $55.89 $56.59 $57.30 $58.01

YOS 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

1.50%
Cells in this 

color have 4.0% 
+ 1.5%

Cells in this 
color have 
2.5% + 1.5%

Cells in this 
color only 
have 1.5%

Mkt 
Adjustment

Approved 4-19-2022



2023 Scale with Increased Starting Rates 4‐26‐2022 (Final)

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 DBM Rating
$14.47 $14.65 $14.84 $15.02 $15.21 $15.40 $15.59 $15.79 $15.98 $16.18 $33,663.21 A11
$17.16 $17.38 $17.60 $17.82 $18.04 $18.26 $18.49 $18.72 $18.96 $19.19 $39,923.94 A12
$19.86 $20.10 $20.35 $20.61 $20.87 $21.13 $21.39 $21.66 $21.93 $22.20 $46,184.66 A13
$22.55 $22.83 $23.11 $23.40 $23.70 $23.99 $24.29 $24.60 $24.90 $25.21 $52,445.39 B21
$25.24 $25.55 $25.87 $26.20 $26.52 $26.86 $27.19 $27.53 $27.88 $28.22 $58,706.12 B22
$27.93 $28.28 $28.63 $28.99 $29.35 $29.72 $30.09 $30.47 $30.85 $31.23 $64,966.84 B23
$30.85 $31.24 $31.63 $32.02 $32.42 $32.83 $33.24 $33.66 $34.08 $34.50 $71,765.54 B24
$34.84 $35.28 $35.72 $36.16 $36.61 $37.07 $37.54 $38.00 $38.48 $38.96 $81,038.61 B25
$30.85 $31.24 $31.63 $32.02 $32.42 $32.83 $33.24 $33.66 $34.08 $34.50 $71,765.54 B31
$34.84 $35.28 $35.72 $36.16 $36.61 $37.07 $37.54 $38.00 $38.48 $38.96 $81,038.61 B32
$36.47 $36.93 $37.39 $37.86 $38.33 $38.81 $39.30 $39.79 $40.29 $40.79 $41.30 $41.82 $42.34 $42.87 $89,163.79 C41
$39.01 $39.50 $39.99 $40.49 $41.00 $41.51 $42.03 $42.56 $43.09 $43.63 $44.17 $44.72 $45.28 $45.85 $95,366.77 C42
$41.55 $42.07 $42.59 $43.13 $43.67 $44.21 $44.76 $45.32 $45.89 $46.46 $47.05 $47.63 $48.23 $48.83 $101,569.74 C43
$44.72 $45.28 $45.85 $46.42 $47.00 $47.59 $48.19 $48.79 $49.40 $50.02 $50.64 $51.27 $51.91 $52.56 $109,331.41 C44
$48.54 $49.14 $49.76 $50.38 $51.01 $51.65 $52.29 $52.95 $53.61 $54.28 $54.96 $55.64 $56.34 $57.04 $118,651.78 C45
$44.72 $45.28 $45.85 $46.42 $47.00 $47.59 $48.19 $48.79 $49.40 $50.02 $50.64 $51.27 $51.91 $52.56 $109,331.41 C51
$48.66 $49.27 $49.88 $50.50 $51.14 $51.78 $52.42 $53.08 $53.74 $54.41 $55.09 $55.78 $56.48 $57.18 $118,944.75 C52
$51.02 $51.66 $52.31 $52.96 $53.62 $54.29 $54.97 $55.66 $56.35 $57.06 $57.77 $58.49 $59.22 $59.97 $60.71 $61.47 $62.24 $129,463.51 D61
$53.14 $53.81 $54.48 $55.16 $55.85 $56.55 $57.26 $57.97 $58.70 $59.43 $60.17 $60.93 $61.69 $62.46 $63.24 $64.03 $64.83 $134,845.44 D62
$55.63 $56.32 $57.03 $57.74 $58.46 $59.19 $59.93 $60.68 $61.44 $62.21 $62.99 $63.77 $64.57 $65.38 $66.20 $67.02 $67.86 $141,151.87 D63
$58.74 $59.47 $60.22 $60.97 $61.73 $62.50 $63.28 $64.08 $64.88 $65.69 $66.41 $67.34 $68.18 $69.03 $69.90 $70.77 $71.66 $149,043.17 D64
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29

Range Max



Comp Committee Proposed 2023 wage scale

2023 Schedule ‐ 4% COLA and FIXED RATE & RANGE
Range Min

DBM RatingStep Increase % 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
A11 Fixed $11.13 $11.27 $11.41 $11.55 $11.69 $11.84 $11.99 $12.14 $12.29 $12.44 $12.60 $12.76 $12.92 $13.08 $13.24 $13.41 $13.57 $13.74 $13.92 $14.09
A12 Fixed $13.20 $13.36 $13.53 $13.70 $13.87 $14.04 $14.22 $14.40 $14.58 $14.76 $14.94 $15.13 $15.32 $15.51 $15.70 $15.90 $16.10 $16.30 $16.50 $16.71
A13 Fixed $15.27 $15.46 $15.65 $15.85 $16.04 $16.25 $16.45 $16.65 $16.86 $17.07 $17.29 $17.50 $17.72 $17.94 $18.17 $18.39 $18.62 $18.86 $19.09 $19.33
B21 Fixed $17.34 $17.55 $17.77 $18.00 $18.22 $18.45 $18.68 $18.91 $19.15 $19.39 $19.63 $19.88 $20.12 $20.38 $20.63 $20.89 $21.15 $21.41 $21.68 $21.95
B22 Fixed $19.41 $19.65 $19.89 $20.14 $20.40 $20.65 $20.91 $21.17 $21.43 $21.70 $21.97 $22.25 $22.53 $22.81 $23.09 $23.38 $23.67 $23.97 $24.27 $24.57
B23 Fixed $21.48 $21.74 $22.02 $22.29 $22.57 $22.85 $23.14 $23.43 $23.72 $24.02 $24.32 $24.62 $24.93 $25.24 $25.56 $25.87 $26.20 $26.53 $26.86 $27.19
B24 Fixed $24.07 $24.37 $24.67 $24.98 $25.29 $25.61 $25.93 $26.25 $26.58 $26.91 $27.25 $27.59 $27.93 $28.28 $28.64 $28.99 $29.36 $29.72 $30.10 $30.47
B25 Fixed $27.18 $27.51 $27.86 $28.21 $28.56 $28.92 $29.28 $29.64 $30.01 $30.39 $30.77 $31.15 $31.54 $31.94 $32.34 $32.74 $33.15 $33.57 $33.98 $34.41
B31 Fixed $24.07 $24.37 $24.67 $24.98 $25.29 $25.61 $25.93 $26.25 $26.58 $26.91 $27.25 $27.59 $27.93 $28.28 $28.64 $28.99 $29.36 $29.72 $30.10 $30.47
B32 Fixed $27.18 $27.51 $27.86 $28.21 $28.56 $28.92 $29.28 $29.64 $30.01 $30.39 $30.77 $31.15 $31.54 $31.94 $32.34 $32.74 $33.15 $33.57 $33.98 $34.41
C41 Fixed $29.15 $29.52 $29.88 $30.26 $30.64 $31.02 $31.41 $31.80 $32.20 $32.60 $33.01 $33.42 $33.84 $34.26 $34.69 $35.12 $35.56 $36.01 $36.46 $36.91
C42 Fixed $31.18 $31.57 $31.96 $32.36 $32.77 $33.18 $33.59 $34.01 $34.44 $34.87 $35.30 $35.74 $36.19 $36.64 $37.10 $37.57 $38.04 $38.51 $38.99 $39.48
C43 Fixed $33.21 $33.62 $34.04 $34.47 $34.90 $35.34 $35.78 $36.22 $36.68 $37.14 $37.60 $38.07 $38.55 $39.03 $39.52 $40.01 $40.51 $41.02 $41.53 $42.05
C44 Fixed $35.74 $36.19 $36.64 $37.10 $37.57 $38.04 $38.51 $38.99 $39.48 $39.97 $40.47 $40.98 $41.49 $42.01 $42.53 $43.07 $43.60 $44.15 $44.70 $45.26
C45 Fixed $38.79 $39.28 $39.77 $40.26 $40.77 $41.28 $41.79 $42.32 $42.85 $43.38 $43.92 $44.47 $45.03 $45.59 $46.16 $46.74 $47.32 $47.91 $48.51 $49.12
C51 Fixed $35.74 $36.19 $36.64 $37.10 $37.57 $38.04 $38.51 $38.99 $39.48 $39.97 $40.47 $40.98 $41.49 $42.01 $42.53 $43.07 $43.60 $44.15 $44.70 $45.26
C52 Fixed $38.79 $39.28 $39.77 $40.26 $40.77 $41.28 $41.79 $42.32 $42.85 $43.38 $43.92 $44.47 $45.03 $45.59 $46.16 $46.74 $47.32 $47.91 $48.51 $49.12
D61 Fixed $40.78 $41.29 $41.80 $42.33 $42.86 $43.39 $43.93 $44.48 $45.04 $45.60 $46.17 $46.75 $47.33 $47.93 $48.52 $49.13 $49.75 $50.37 $51.00 $51.63
D62 Fixed $42.47 $43.00 $43.54 $44.09 $44.64 $45.20 $45.76 $46.33 $46.91 $47.50 $48.09 $48.69 $49.30 $49.92 $50.54 $51.17 $51.81 $52.46 $53.12 $53.78
D63 Fixed $44.46 $45.02 $45.58 $46.15 $46.73 $47.31 $47.90 $48.50 $49.11 $49.72 $50.34 $50.97 $51.61 $52.25 $52.91 $53.57 $54.24 $54.91 $55.60 $56.30
D64 Fixed $46.95 $47.53 $48.13 $48.73 $49.34 $49.95 $50.58 $51.21 $51.85 $52.50 $53.16 $53.82 $54.49 $55.17 $55.86 $56.56 $57.27 $57.98 $58.71 $59.44

YOS 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
A 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25%

Scale + B 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25%
4.00% C 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25%

D 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25%

% to next 
step

Pennington Confidential 10/13/2022 Page 1

Proposed by the Compensation Committee



Comp Committee Proposed 2023 wage scale

Range Max
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 DBM Rating

$14.27 $14.44 $14.63 $14.81 $14.99 $15.18 $15.37 $15.56 $15.76 $32,404.74 A11
$16.92 $17.13 $17.35 $17.56 $17.78 $18.00 $18.23 $18.46 $18.69 $38,418.43 A12 18.4704
$19.57 $19.82 $20.07 $20.32 $20.57 $20.83 $21.09 $21.35 $21.62 $44,432.13 A13 21.3616
$22.23 $22.50 $22.79 $23.07 $23.36 $23.65 $23.95 $24.25 $24.55 $50,467.46 B21 24.2632
$24.88 $25.19 $25.51 $25.82 $26.15 $26.47 $26.80 $27.14 $27.48 $56,524.42 B22 27.1752
$27.53 $27.88 $28.23 $28.58 $28.94 $29.30 $29.66 $30.03 $30.41 $62,538.11 B23 30.0664
$30.85 $31.24 $31.63 $32.02 $32.42 $32.83 $33.24 $33.66 $34.08 $70,066.05 B24 33.6856
$34.84 $35.28 $35.72 $36.16 $36.61 $37.07 $37.54 $38.00 $38.48 $79,108.22 B25 38.0328
$30.85 $31.24 $31.63 $32.02 $32.42 $32.83 $33.24 $33.66 $34.08 $70,066.05 B31 33.6856
$34.84 $35.28 $35.72 $36.16 $36.61 $37.07 $37.54 $38.00 $38.48 $79,108.22 B32 38.0328
$37.37 $37.84 $38.31 $38.79 $39.28 $39.77 $40.26 $40.77 $41.28 $41.79 $42.32 $42.85 $43.38 $43.92 $90,962.56 C41 43.732
$39.97 $40.47 $40.98 $41.49 $42.01 $42.53 $43.07 $43.60 $44.15 $44.70 $45.26 $45.83 $46.40 $46.98 $97,279.10 C42 46.7688
$42.57 $43.11 $43.64 $44.19 $44.74 $45.30 $45.87 $46.44 $47.02 $47.61 $48.20 $48.81 $49.42 $50.03 $103,617.28 C43 49.816
$45.83 $46.40 $46.98 $47.57 $48.16 $48.76 $49.37 $49.99 $50.61 $51.25 $51.89 $52.54 $53.19 $53.86 $111,534.59 C44 53.6224
$49.73 $50.35 $50.98 $51.62 $52.27 $52.92 $53.58 $54.25 $54.93 $55.62 $56.31 $57.01 $57.73 $58.45 $121,031.04 C45 58.188
$45.83 $46.40 $46.98 $47.57 $48.16 $48.76 $49.37 $49.99 $50.61 $51.25 $51.89 $52.54 $53.19 $53.86 $111,534.59 C51 53.6224
$49.73 $50.35 $50.98 $51.62 $52.27 $52.92 $53.58 $54.25 $54.93 $55.62 $56.31 $57.01 $57.73 $58.45 $121,031.04 C52 58.188
$52.28 $52.93 $53.59 $54.26 $54.94 $55.63 $56.32 $57.03 $57.74 $58.46 $59.19 $59.93 $60.68 $61.44 $62.21 $62.99 $63.78 $130,527.49 D61 62.7536
$54.45 $55.13 $55.82 $56.52 $57.23 $57.94 $58.67 $59.40 $60.14 $60.89 $61.66 $62.43 $63.21 $64.00 $64.80 $65.61 $66.43 $136,952.19 D62 65.8424
$57.00 $57.71 $58.43 $59.16 $59.90 $60.65 $61.41 $62.18 $62.96 $63.74 $64.54 $65.35 $66.16 $66.99 $67.83 $68.67 $69.53 $143,333.63 D63 68.9104
$60.19 $60.94 $61.70 $62.47 $63.25 $64.04 $64.84 $65.65 $66.47 $67.31 $68.15 $69.00 $69.86 $70.73 $71.62 $72.51 $73.42 $151,337.47 D64 72.7584
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 Step Rates

1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% ‐100.00% 1.2500%
1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% ‐100.00% 1.2500%
1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.2500%
1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.25% 1.2500%

Range Max

Pennington Confidential 10/13/2022 Page 2



1

Martin Joan

From: NoReply
Sent: Thursday, October 27, 2022 9:00 AM
To: Martin Joan; Hennies Holli
Subject: WEBFORM: Board Of Commissioners - Contact Us

The following information was submitted from a web form on the Pennington County website. 
 
DO NOT click reply.    To reply, copy and paste the e‐mail address below into the "To" field of an outgoing message. 
 
>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>>> 
 
Submitted Information: 
 
Your name: Chris Mooney 
 
Your e‐mail address: mustang_gt_sd@yahoo.com 
 
Your phone number: 6053900934 
 
Who would you like to send your message to? All 5 Commissioners 
 
Message: Hello Commissioners, 
 
 
 
I'm a District 2 taxpayer and an appraiser in the Pennington Co Equalization Department and I'm concerned about what 
the upcoming cost of living increase could be for next year. The 4% increase plus the step raise is well below what 
comparable counties are doing in regards to inflation. Minnehaha County approved a 12% raise mid‐year raise and 
another 5% raise in 2023. Lincoln County approved a 10% mid‐year raise and a 7.5% raise in 2023. Rapid City employees 
were approved to get a 7.9% raise this year and the State of South Dakota approved an 8.5% raise. Meade County is 
currently looking at approving a raise between 7‐10%.  
 
 
 
I believe our county employees should receive, at a minimum, a 10% increase to the cost of living to at least be 
competitive with what similar sized counties are doing. Not doing so would cause further problems with attracting 
potential future employees and retaining current ones. Our housing market has increased significantly over the last 
couple years and is still increasing. Rents at apartments have increased drastically this year. The county is seeing a lot of 
new homes and apartments being built and it doesn't look to be slowing down, which is a good thing for the growth of 
the county. The total property value for the county has increased by hundreds of millions of dollars, if not billions of 
dollars, over the past couple years so the county is bringing in more money in taxes just like the other counties I've 
mentioned and they have given larger cost of living increases than Pennington County is proposing.  
 
 
 
In closing, in the end it is your call as to what county employees would be getting for a cost of living adjustment and I 
only ask that it be fair. Thanks for hearing my concerns. 
 



2

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Chris Mooney 
 



 

 

PENNINGTON COUNTY RESOLUTION 2022-C2 
CONTINGENCY TRANSFER 

GENERAL FUND CONTINGENCY BUDGET (101-0113) 
 

WHEREAS, through the FY2022 annual budget process, the Pennington County Board of 
Commissioners allocated $100,000 to the General Fund Contingency Budget (101-0113); and 

WHEREAS, the current balance of the General Fund Contingency Budget is $50,000; and 

 WHEREAS, access to a reliable and plentiful water source is critically important from a 
public health and safety standpoint, especially in western South Dakota, which has a more arid 
climate and limited water supplies. This critical need is compounded by population and industrial 
growth; and 

WHEREAS, the Western Dakota Regional Water System (WDRWS) is a non-profit 
organization formed in 2021 to explore the use of Missouri River Water via a proposed pipeline 
that will bring the water to various communities, Tribes, and water systems in western South 
Dakota; and  

WHEREAS, the Pennington County Board of Commissioners recognizes the importance 
in securing a water supply from the Missouri River to meet the current and future needs of western 
South Dakota; and 

WHEREAS, on October 18, 2022, the Pennington County Board of Commissioners 
approved a request for funding in the amount of $50,000 for the Western Dakota Regional Water 
System (WDRWS) to be used as matching funds for services not allowable under their current 
funding sources such as public information, legal and administrative services; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Pennington County Auditor is 
authorized to transfer $50,000 from the 2022 General Fund Contingency Budget (101-0113) to the 
General Fund Commission Office Budget Miscellaneous Fees (101-0111-0422-2058-10) and 
make payment to the Western Dakota Regional Water System. 

Dated this _____ day of _______________, 2022. 

 
Pennington County Board of Commissioners 

 
 

      
Gary Drewes, Chair 

Attest:      
 
 
___________________ 
Auditor   (SEAL) 

















































































































xc___________________________________________________________________________________________
_ 
 

MEMORANDUM 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
DATE: November 1, 2022 
FROM: Holli Hennies, Commission Manager 
TO: Board of Commissioners 
RE: Item 15.a Commission Item Submission Rules, 2/4/2014 
 
 
 
Commissioners – Shortly prior to the start of the special meeting on Wednesday 
October 26, 2022, Mr. Ellsworth submitted in-person to Staff a request for an agenda 
presentation.  
 
Included in the documentation is a claim that a ‘properly noticed item was timely 
submitted to the Commission Office on Wed. Oct 12, 2022 for agenda consideration on 
the next meeting agenda.’ 
 
In reviewing the documentation submitted the next morning, I noticed the copy of the 
email Mr. Ellsworth sent on 10/12/2022 at 5:57PM. I did not recall receiving this email. I 
immediately had our IT Department check to see if we indeed did receive the email and 
I missed it or if something else had happened. Attached for your reference is the email 
from IT explaining that our system rejected the email as our system is able to receive 
messages of 25MB in size or smaller and Mr. Ellsworth’s attachments exceeded the 
limit allowed. 
 
The reason Mr. Ellsworth was not placed on the October 18th agenda is because I did 
not receive his email and he did not follow-up with our office when the meeting agenda 
was published to find out why he was not placed on the agenda. There was no Official 
Misconduct and there was no violation of the policy in place.  
 
I would be happy to answer any additional questions. 
 
Thank you. 
Holli Hennies 
Commission Manager 
 

 



1

Hennies Holli

From: Hennies Holli
Sent: Thursday, October 27, 2022 12:09 PM
To: cjells@msn.com
Subject: FW: Lost email
Attachments: Screenshot 2022-10-27 092915.png

Mr. Ellsworth ‐ Here is the information from my IT Department in regards to the email I did not receive on 
10/12/2022. 
 
Holli 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Iversen Mike  
Sent: Thursday, October 27, 2022 9:58 AM 
To: Hennies Holli 
Subject: RE: Lost email 
 
Good Morning Holli, 
 
Our spam filter did in fact see the below message. It was allowed through the spam detection, but was 
rejected due to size. 
 
We are able to receive messages of 25Mb in size, anything larger will not be accepted. 
 
I've attached a screenshot from our spam filter with the message, and a list of the attachments that do add up 
to over 25Mb. The yellow highlights the reason for rejected delivery, the red was just IP/network information 
we don't want to hand out for security reasons. 
 
Please let me know if there is anything else you may need or if you have any questions. 
 
Thanks 
 
Michael Iversen 
Pennington County I.T. Department 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Hennies Holli  
Sent: Thursday, October 27, 2022 9:15 AM 
To: Iversen Mike  
Subject: FW: Lost email 
 
Mike ‐ Can you check on this email? This gentleman is claiming misconduct on me that I didn’t place him on 
the agenda. I never received this email on the 12th. Can we tell that something came in or it didn't? 
 
Thanks! 



2

Holli 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: hollih@co.pennington.sd.us <hollih@co.pennington.sd.us>  
Sent: Thursday, October 27, 2022 7:31 AM 
To: Hennies Holli  
Subject: Message from "RNP5838794879E8" 
 
CAUTION: This email is from an outside source. Use caution before opening attachments, clicking links or 
providing confidential information. 
 
 
This E‐mail was sent from "RNP5838794879E8" (IM C4500). 
 
Scan Date: 10.27.2022 09:31:11 (‐0400) 
Queries to: hollih@co.pennington.sd.us 





Commission Agenda Item Submission   Approved 2/4/2014 
 

 

Pennington County Commission Agendas 

The Pennington County Board of Commissioners cordially invites the 
public to be active participants in their local government. The Board 
meets on the first and third Tuesdays of each month at 9:00 am in the 
1st Floor Commission Chambers in the County Administration Building located at 
130 Kansas City Street, Rapid City, SD.  

The Board of Commissioners wishes to provide a formal opportunity for citizens’ to address their 
concerns with the County. Action will not be taken at a Commission meeting on issues not 
properly noticed on the agenda. Any individual shall be entitled to be placed on the official 
agenda of a regular meeting of the Commission and be heard concerning matters within the 
scope of the Commission’s jurisdiction. All agenda submissions are subject to approval by the 
Board Chairman. 

To submit an item for a County Commission Agenda, a written request must be submitted to the 
Commission Office.  Requests may be hand delivered, emailed or mailed thru the postal service. 
Each request must include the following items: 

1. Name 
2. Address 
3. Telephone 
4. Email Address 
5. A brief explanation of the situation/issue 
6. What action you are requesting of the Board 
7. Supporting documentation 

Supporting documentation must be included with the original request. Late submission of such 
material may result in deferral of the speaking opportunity to a future meeting, in order to allow 
the Board an opportunity to review the material before the discussion. 

All requests must be received no later than 4:00pm on the Wednesday prior to the meeting. If 
your request is not in by this time it will be considered for the next available Commission meeting.  

You will be notified either by email or telephone of the scheduled Commission Meeting date and 
approximate time. On the preceding Thursday afternoon, hard copies of the agenda will be 
available on the County bulletin board or electronic copies are available at www.pennco.org. 

On the Commission Meeting Day:  
Meeting agendas are located in the back of the Commission Chambers. Once your item is 
announced by the Chairperson, please stand and approach the podium. State your name for 
the record before making your comments. All hearings are recorded and televised. Discussion is 
limited to the subject being discussed, as listed on the Agenda.  

If you have any additional questions or concerns, please contact the Commission Office at  
(605) 394-2171. 

 

http://www.pennco.org/


Commission Agenda Item Submission   Approved 2/4/2014 
 

 

Please complete the following required information: 

1. Name: _______________________________________________ 
 

2. Address: _____________________________________________ 
 
                _____________________________________________ 
 

3. Telephone: ___________________________________________ 
 

4. Email Address: ________________________________________ 
 

5. A brief explanation of the situation/issue: ____________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

6. What action you are requesting of the Board: _________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

7. Supporting documentation included:     Yes          or          No 
 
(Description of documentation): ____________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
October 26, 2022 

 
I, Gary Drewes, the Chair of the Pennington County Board of 
Commissioners, authorize payment for the invoice lists presented to 
the Board of Commissioners for approval on November 1, 2022, which 
have a grand total of $566,215.09. 

 
 

______________________________ 
Chair 

PPeennnniinnggttoonn  CCoouunnttyy  AAuuddiittoorr  
County Administration Building ● PO Box 6160 Rapid City, SD 57709 

130 Kansas City Street Suite 230 Rapid City, SD 57701  
 Phone: (605) 394-2153 ● Fax: (605) 394-6840 

  
 
 

 



VOUCHERS FOR 11‐1‐2022

NAME AMOUNT
A & A PROFESSIONAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 440.00
AMERIGAS PROPANE LP 85.53
BH ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC 121.56
BH ENERGY,  362.92
BH ENERGY,  4,028.28
BH ENERGY,  504.98
BH ENERGY,  856.59
BLUEPEAK 1,505.64
BLUEPEAK 346.74
CASACO RENTALS,  1,000.00
CENTURY LINK 88.25
CITTADELLA ASSET MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT LLC,  2,800.00
CITY OF HILL CITY,  39.53
CITY OF RAPID CITY ‐WATER,  2,614.37
CITY OF RAPID CITY ‐WATER,  4,317.18
CITY OF WALL 175.00
EXECUTIVE MGMT FIN OFFICE 36.25
FIRST FOCUS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 1,060.00
GLOBAL TEL'LINK 18.31
GOLDEN WEST COMPANIES 380.87
KIEFFER SANITATION/A WASTE MANAGEMENT CO 222.33
LIVERMONT CAROL 355.00
MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 1,832.06
MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 3,167.94
MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES 322.20
MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES 1,632.39
PENNINGTON COUNTY HOUSING & REDEVELOPMENT,  685.00
PIONEER BANK & TRUST 15,219.65
PONDEROSA MOUNTAIN PROPERTIES LLC 3,206.00
RAINBOW GAS COMPANY 884.69
TZADIK LACROSSE APARTMENTS LLC 2,204.74
VERIZON WIRELESS 1,059.87
VERIZON WIRELESS 611.59
WELMARK 512,784.05
WEST RIVER ELECTRIC,  334.70
WEX BANK 910.88
AMOUNT 566,215.09



Invoices Submitted For Approval
Printed: 10/19/2022 -  8:27 AM

Date Range: 10/19/2022 to 10/19/2022

Report Total:   29,364.77

Vendor

Amount DescriptionInvoice Date Invoice NoCheck DateDepartment

00153 - BH ENERGY (ACH)

0578 4389 33OCT Electric Service - EXT  SAR  WED10/11/202210/19/2022  706.67BG

6010842238 ELECTRICITY9/28/202210/19/2022  3,189.50HWY

9843549455 Hill City Tower Electric10/11/202210/19/2022  132.11911

Total for Vendor 00153 - BH ENERGY (ACH):  4,028.28

00278 - CITY OF RAPID CITY -WATER (ACH)

507377/70045910 Water & Sewer - CMP10/12/202210/19/2022  2,414.86BG

509270/70020310 Water & Sewer - EVD10/17/202210/19/2022  65.94BG

511029/70045711 Water & Sewer - EVD10/17/202210/19/2022  133.57BG

Total for Vendor 00278 - CITY OF RAPID CITY -WATER (ACH):  2,614.37

00513 - GOLDEN WEST COMPANIES

13907755 NU INTERNET  TELEPHONE  FAX10/1/202210/19/2022  128.33HWY

13911065 WALL INTERNET  TELEPHONE  FAX10/1/202210/19/2022  172.59HWY

30692274 HC INTERNET 50/50 SHARE WITH SHERIFF10/10/202210/19/2022  39.98HWY

30692274 OCTOBER 202210/10/202210/19/2022  39.97SO

Total for Vendor 00513 - GOLDEN WEST COMPANIES:  380.87

00875 - MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES

325 420 1000 7O Natural Gas - EXT10/11/202210/19/2022  119.16BG

411 420 1000 2O Natural Gas - BGS10/11/202210/19/2022  57.56BG

456 530 1000 4O Natural Gas - WED10/12/202210/19/2022  17.06BG

615 320 1000 8O Natural Gas - SAR10/11/202210/19/2022  41.80BG

725 420 1000 3O Natural Gas - OHB10/11/202210/19/2022  32.24BG

875 942 2802 2 OCTOBER 202210/11/202210/19/2022  27.19PCJ

875 942 2802 2 OCTOBER 202210/11/202210/19/2022  27.19SO

Total for Vendor 00875 - MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES:  322.20

28924 - VERIZON WIRELESS

9917432396 Cell Phone Service10/4/202210/19/2022  418.80BG

9918050730 CELLULAR SERVICES10/12/202210/19/2022  641.07HWY

Total for Vendor 28924 - VERIZON WIRELESS:  1,059.87

51012 - RAINBOW GAS COMPANY

SLSINV01598 NATURAL GAS - CTH  CDF  BG  PSB10/1/202210/19/2022  884.69BG

Total for Vendor 51012 - RAINBOW GAS COMPANY:  884.69

54372 - EXECUTIVE MGMT FIN OFFICE

192 BIT RESOURCE BILLING SEPT 2022 ACCESS FEES9/30/202210/19/2022  36.25DOE

Total for Vendor 54372 - EXECUTIVE MGMT FIN OFFICE:  36.25

59680 - MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS

11520420112934 TELEPHONE SERVICES10/4/202210/19/2022  461.81HWY

138712201OCT Phone Service - PSB10/16/202210/19/2022  108.45BG

Page 1AP-Outstanding Invoices (10/19/2022 -  8:27 AM)

http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025771&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025782&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025801&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025829&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026002&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026215&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026268&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026816&slot=0


Vendor

Amount DescriptionInvoice Date Invoice NoCheck DateDepartment

59680 - MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS

156656001OCT Phone Service - CTH  Parking Ramp10/16/202210/19/2022  71.00BG

156656101OCT Phone Service - CTH10/16/202210/19/2022  34.19BG

156787001OCT Phone Service - BG  CDF  CTH  PSB10/16/202210/19/2022  407.20BG

156939401OCT Phone Service - CAB10/16/202210/19/2022  171.32BG

16455360112938 OCTOBER 202210/6/202210/19/2022  76.95SO

16458840112934 DISPATCH PHONE10/4/202210/19/2022  66.89JSC

171410801OCT Phone Service - CTH10/13/202210/19/2022  82.94BG

19382280112943 OCTOBER 202210/9/202210/19/2022  98.39SO

701336603OCT Phone Service - CHF10/9/202210/19/2022  252.92BG

Total for Vendor 59680 - MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS:  1,832.06

60466 - BH ENERGY (ACH)

1040 1063 07 CA-ERA2 Utilities; Tonya Pew10/19/202210/19/2022  232.04HHS

6322277373 JV-Utility past due; Stephany Joanne Hedlund10/19/202210/19/2022  130.88HHS

Total for Vendor 60466 - BH ENERGY (ACH):  362.92

61628 - WEX BANK

84004410 Vehicle/Equip. Fuel10/1/202210/19/2022  910.88BG

Total for Vendor 61628 - WEX BANK:  910.88

62478 - BH ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC

3335600 Rockerville Tower Electric10/11/202210/19/2022  121.56911

Total for Vendor 62478 - BH ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC:  121.56

63893 - PIONEER BANK & TRUST

5476 OCT 2022 LUMBAR SUPPORT10/19/202210/19/2022  30.00SO

5476 OCT 2022 MISC SUPPLIES10/19/202210/19/2022  431.75SO

5476 OCT 2022 TRAINING REGISTRATIONS10/19/202210/19/2022  1,290.00SO

5476 OCT 2022 EMS TRAINING10/19/202210/19/2022  370.00SO

5476 OCT 2022 RADIOS10/19/202210/19/2022  245.90SO

5476 OCT 2022 OFFICE SUPPLIES10/19/202210/19/2022  939.75SO

5476 OCT 2022 COMPUTER EQUIPMENT10/19/202210/19/2022  900.97SO

5476 OCT 2022 TRAINING TRAVEL10/19/202210/19/2022  4,400.98SO

5476 OCT 2022 HR REGISTRATION10/19/202210/19/2022  25.00SO

5476 OCT 2022 TONER10/19/202210/19/2022  208.07SO

5476 OCT 2022 PSYCH TESTING SUPPLIES10/19/202210/19/2022  338.00SO

5476 OCT 2022 MEMBERSHIPS10/19/202210/19/2022 -16.19SO

5476 OCT 2022 AGENCY 36010/19/202210/19/2022  214.05SO

5476 OCT 2022 DIGITAL VOICE RECORDER10/19/202210/19/2022  115.98SO

5476 OCT 2022 STATION SOFTWARE, ZOOM10/19/202210/19/2022  249.90SO

5476 OCT 2022 EXTRADITIONS10/19/202210/19/2022  4,980.22SO

5476 OCT 2022 POSTAGE10/19/202210/19/2022  8.27SO

5476 OCT 2022 SATELLITE INTERNET10/19/202210/19/2022  270.00SO

5476 OCT 2022 OFFICE CHAIR10/19/202210/19/2022  217.00SO

Total for Vendor 63893 - PIONEER BANK & TRUST:  15,219.65

64479 - AMERIGAS PROPANE LP

805490973 Floor Care10/1/202210/19/2022  85.53BG

Total for Vendor 64479 - AMERIGAS PROPANE LP:  85.53

66375 - BLUEPEAK

015101001 Main Dispatch Phone Lines10/12/202210/19/2022  1,385.71911

Page 2AP-Outstanding Invoices (10/19/2022 -  8:27 AM)

http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026816&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026998&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000027673&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0001381193&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0026788486&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0042647560&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=4d171ce7-bb23-449d-96ec-ccfa430351bf&slot=0


Vendor

Amount DescriptionInvoice Date Invoice NoCheck DateDepartment

66375 - BLUEPEAK

015204201OCT PHONE SERVICE - EVD10/12/202210/19/2022  119.93BG

Total for Vendor 66375 - BLUEPEAK:  1,505.64

Report Total:  29,364.77

Page 3AP-Outstanding Invoices (10/19/2022 -  8:27 AM)

http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=4d171ce7-bb23-449d-96ec-ccfa430351bf&slot=0


Invoices Submitted For Approval
Printed: 10/25/2022 -  4:41 PM

Date Range: 10/26/2022 to 10/26/2022

Report Total:   12,315.53

Vendor

Amount DescriptionInvoice Date Invoice NoCheck DateDepartment

00153 - BH ENERGY (ACH)

0572 1431 05 Siren, 517 San Marco Blvd10/21/202210/26/2022  18.80EM

3307 0018 00 Siren, 4009 W. St. Louis10/20/202210/26/2022  19.60EM

6449169852 Keystone Radio Tower electric10/20/202210/26/2022  125.20911

8678 1608 86 OCTOBER 202210/11/202210/26/2022  170.69SO

8678 1608 86 OCTOBER SHOP ELECTRIC10/11/202210/26/2022  170.69PCJ

Total for Vendor 00153 - BH ENERGY (ACH):  504.98

00278 - CITY OF RAPID CITY -WATER (ACH)

509268 WATER10/17/202210/26/2022  322.39HWY

509269 WATER10/17/202210/26/2022  70.85HWY

509272 9/6-10/0610/17/202210/26/2022  194.82JSC

509272 9/6-10/0610/17/202210/26/2022  779.27JSC

509273 9/6-10/0610/17/202210/26/2022  2,177.04JSC

509273 9/6-10/0610/17/202210/26/2022  544.26JSC

509605 WATER10/17/202210/26/2022  199.62HWY

511560 WATER10/17/202210/26/2022  28.93HWY

Total for Vendor 00278 - CITY OF RAPID CITY -WATER (ACH):  4,317.18

00875 - MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES

07481010002 CA-ERA2 Utilities; Stacey G Low Dog10/26/202210/26/2022  424.94HHS

23265805756 NATURAL GAS10/12/202210/26/2022  54.46HWY

256 530 1000 6 9/13-10/1110/12/202210/26/2022  612.92JSC

256 530 1000 6 9/13-10/1110/12/202210/26/2022  153.23JSC

44074589142 NATURAL GAS10/12/202210/26/2022  295.53HWY

65653010002 NATURAL GAS10/12/202210/26/2022  51.02HWY

97380797924 Gas bill (Satellite office  - Oct)10/10/202210/26/2022  22.68pdo

99185070580 Rockerville Tower Gas10/12/202210/26/2022  17.61911

Total for Vendor 00875 - MONTANA DAKOTA UTILITIES:  1,632.39

01399 - WEST RIVER ELECTRIC (ACH)

10200600 RC East Electric10/21/202210/26/2022  275.72911

10616800 Wall Tower10/21/202210/26/2022  58.98FR

Total for Vendor 01399 - WEST RIVER ELECTRIC (ACH):  334.70

28924 - VERIZON WIRELESS

9917907472 SEP 11 - OCT 1010/10/202210/26/2022  102.62TRS

991793084710/10/202210/26/2022  52.03HR

9918072749 A-Utilities - Cell Phone;10/26/202210/26/2022  41.88HHS

9918072749 A-Utilities - Cell Phone;10/26/202210/26/2022  415.06HHS

Total for Vendor 28924 - VERIZON WIRELESS:  611.59

37419 - CITY OF HILL CITY (ACH)

24032001 WATER & SEWER10/21/202210/26/2022  39.53HWY

Page 1AP-Outstanding Invoices (10/25/2022 -  4:41 PM)

http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025771&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025782&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025829&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025884&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026002&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026054&slot=0


Vendor

Amount DescriptionInvoice Date Invoice NoCheck DateDepartment

Total for Vendor 37419 - CITY OF HILL CITY (ACH):  39.53

57474 - CITY OF WALL

0200000410003 WATER & SEWER10/20/202210/26/2022  87.50HWY

0200000420006 WATER & SEWER10/20/202210/26/2022  87.50HWY

Total for Vendor 57474 - CITY OF WALL:  175.00

57815 - KIEFFER SANITATION/A WASTE MANAGEMENT CO

13209606T035 WL GARBAGE10/1/202210/26/2022  126.28HWY

13210581T035 HC GARBAGE10/1/202210/26/2022  96.05HWY

Total for Vendor 57815 - KIEFFER SANITATION/A WASTE MANAGEME  222.33

59130 - CENTURY LINK

6055742711543 TELEPHONE10/13/202210/26/2022  88.25HWY

Total for Vendor 59130 - CENTURY LINK:  88.25

59680 - MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS

10994530212964 OCTOBER 202210/20/200310/26/2022  103.39SO

15665770112956 OCTOBER PHONE JAIL10/16/202210/26/2022  193.84PCJ

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  435.04AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  32.28AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  28.68AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  134.21AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  7.84AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  34.59AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  422.34AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  26.74AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  28.68AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  37.19AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  126.41AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  104.65AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  9.63AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  337.58AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  46.47AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  216.31AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  55.62AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  79.13AUD

156939001 October Charges10/16/202210/26/2022  40.48AUD

15693920112964 OCTOBER JS PHONE10/20/202210/26/2022  38.04PCJ

16738700112964 HIDTA-OCTOBER 202210/20/200310/26/2022  425.38SO

17153690112951 ACCOUNT 171536901 OCT10/11/200310/26/2022  38.11DET

23415660112960 INTERNET SPLIT W/ HWY10/18/202210/26/2022  74.19jsc

23415660112960 TELEPHONE SERVICES10/18/202210/26/2022  74.20HWY

339999550112964 Midco bill (Satellite office - Nov)10/20/202210/26/2022  16.92pdo

Total for Vendor 59680 - MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS:  3,167.94

60466 - BH ENERGY (ACH)

05010036124 CA-ERA2 Utilities; Barbara L Hernandez10/26/202210/26/2022  856.59HHS

Total for Vendor 60466 - BH ENERGY (ACH):  856.59

62977 - GLOBAL TEL'LINK

605394218100395 Long distance phone charges10/3/202210/26/2022  18.31pdo

Page 2AP-Outstanding Invoices (10/25/2022 -  4:41 PM)

http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026344&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026398&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026709&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026816&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026998&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0006164820&slot=0


Vendor

Amount DescriptionInvoice Date Invoice NoCheck DateDepartment

Total for Vendor 62977 - GLOBAL TEL'LINK:  18.31

66375 - BLUEPEAK

010553601 10.18-11.17 Charges10/14/202210/26/2022  46.07EM

015766201 OCTOBER INTERNET10/16/202210/26/2022  200.00PCJ

016205001 OCTOBER 2022-STATION10/20/202210/26/2022  100.67SO

Total for Vendor 66375 - BLUEPEAK:  346.74

Report Total:  12,315.53

Page 3AP-Outstanding Invoices (10/25/2022 -  4:41 PM)

http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=4d171ce7-bb23-449d-96ec-ccfa430351bf&slot=0


Invoices Submitted For Approval
Printed: 10/25/2022 -  4:46 PM

Date Range: 11/01/2022 to 11/01/2022

Report Total:   11,750.74

Vendor

Amount DescriptionInvoice Date Invoice NoCheck DateDepartment

00988 - PENNINGTON COUNTY HOUSING & REDEVELOPMENT  (ACH)

Sherman 62228 JV-Rent Past Due; Amy L Sherman11/1/202211/1/2022  445.00HHS

Usera 62262 E-Rent; Brittany Denae Usera11/1/202211/1/2022  240.00HHS

Total for Vendor 00988 - PENNINGTON COUNTY HOUSING & REDEVE  685.00

27103 - A & A PROFESSIONAL PROPERTY MANAGEMENT

Nelson 62244 E-Rent; Leon Ashton PrizMindy Lynn Nelson11/1/202211/1/2022  440.00HHS

Total for Vendor 27103 - A & A PROFESSIONAL PROPERTY MANAGEM  440.00

48984 - CASACO RENTALS (ACH)

Duenas 62283 JV-Rent Past Due; Ericka Isela Duenas11/1/202211/1/2022  1,000.00HHS

Total for Vendor 48984 - CASACO RENTALS (ACH):  1,000.00

61896 - CAROL LIVERMONT

Lockyear 62079 JV-Rent Past Due; Scott Evan Lockyear11/1/202211/1/2022  355.00HHS

Total for Vendor 61896 - CAROL LIVERMONT:  355.00

65619 - FIRST FOCUS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC

Rivera 60690 CA-ERA2 Rent; Mia Danielle Rivera11/1/202211/1/2022  1,060.00HHS

Total for Vendor 65619 - FIRST FOCUS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC  1,060.00

65947 - TZADIK LACROSSE APARTMENTS, LLC

Pew 62247 CA-ERA2 Rent; Tonya Pew11/1/202211/1/2022  2,204.74HHS

Total for Vendor 65947 - TZADIK LACROSSE APARTMENTS, LLC:  2,204.74

66270 - PONDEROSA MOUNTAIN PROPERTIES LLC

Lewis 62285 CA-ERA2 Rent; Brittni Ann Lewis11/1/202211/1/2022  3,206.00HHS

Total for Vendor 66270 - PONDEROSA MOUNTAIN PROPERTIES LLC:  3,206.00

66517 - CITTADELLA ASSET MANAGEMENT & INVESTMENT LLC (ACH)

Campbell 62214 CA-ERA2 Rent; Brianne Dawn Campbell11/1/202211/1/2022  2,800.00HHS

Total for Vendor 66517 - CITTADELLA ASSET MANAGEMENT & INVES  2,800.00

Report Total:  11,750.74

Page 1AP-Outstanding Invoices (10/25/2022 -  4:46 PM)

http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025852&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000025999&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000026190&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0000330437&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=1b6def6f-aaf9-4aca-99cb-012eb568a6b2&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=06891b36-7efa-4ba1-9ea1-9e348dc59bf9&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=0b961344-43f9-4c4d-8533-7551aea434bb&slot=0
http://aud-spbrkapp:80/Web0/Deployment/V7.18.0.0-0.application?action=Object&object=APVendor&recordId=cb21fd59-3433-4419-8cb0-13867737a758&slot=0








 

AGENDA 

PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

November 1, 2022 @ 10:30 a.m. 

County Commissioners’ Meeting Room – Pennington County Administration Building 

 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
 

A. VARIANCE / VA 22-21: No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston. To reduce 

the setback to a residential zoning district from 500 feet to 105 feet for a 

telecommunications tower in accordance with Sections 212, 316, and 509 of the 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.  

 

A tract of land known as Utility Lot of No Bad Days Subdivision; formerly Tract Lake of 

the SW1/4SW1/4 of Section 27 and SE1/4 of Section 28, T2N, R5E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota, and being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at 

the southwest corner of said Section 27, said corner being a found rebar, Thence 

following the southerly line of said Section 27 S89°49’32”E a distance of 778.25’ to a set 

pin and cap stamped "LS11918", said pin and cap being the southwest corner of the 

herein described lot and the true point of beginning of said lot; Thence continuing along 

said southerly line S89°53’47”E a distance of 246.93’ to a set pin and cap stamped 

"LS11918"; Thence departing said southerly line N00°00’00”E a distance of 176.75’ to a 

set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence N90°00’00”W a distance of 246.45’ to a set 

pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence S00°09’22”W a distance of 176.43’ to the point 

of beginning; The herein described lot having an area of 1.00 acre more or less; Section 

27, T2N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 

B. VARIANCE / VA 22-22: No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston. To reduce 

the setback from 1.1 times the height of the telecommunications tower to a non-

residential zoning district in accordance with Sections 212, 316, and 509 of the 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.  

 

A tract of land known as Utility Lot of No Bad Days Subdivision; formerly Tract Lake of 

the SW1/4SW1/4 of Section 27 and SE1/4 of Section 28, T2N, R5E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota, and being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at 

the southwest corner of said Section 27, said corner being a found rebar, Thence 

following the southerly line of said Section 27 S89°49’32”E a distance of 778.25’ to a set 

pin and cap stamped "LS11918", said pin and cap being the southwest corner of the 

herein described lot and the true point of beginning of said lot; Thence continuing along 

said southerly line S89°53’47”E a distance of 246.93’ to a set pin and cap stamped 

"LS11918"; Thence departing said southerly line N00°00’00”E a distance of 176.75’ to a 

set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence N90°00’00”W a distance of 246.45’ to a set 

pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence S00°09’22”W a distance of 176.43’ to the point 

of beginning; The herein described lot having an area of 1.00 acre more or less; Section 

27, T2N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 

 



 

UNCONTESTED HEARING 
 

C. PUBLIC HEARING OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT / CA 22-20: Brian 

Schroeder; Davis Engineering - Agent  To amend the Comprehensive Plan to change the 

Future Land Use from Agriculture District to Ranchette District in accordance with 

Sections 205, 206, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 5 Revised, Knotty Pine Subdivision, Section 33, T1S, R7E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 

 

Planning Commission recommended to continue Comprehensive Plan Amendment / CA 

22-20 to the December 20, 2022, Board of Commissioner’s meeting to allow the 

applicants time to apply for and obtain an approved Subdivision Regulations Variance for 

increased lots on a dead-end road system.  

 

D. PUBLIC HEARING OF REZONE / RZ 22-27:  Brian Schroeder; Davis Engineering - 

Agent. To rezone 14.17 acres from Agriculture District to Ranchette District in 

accordance with Sections 205, 206, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 5 Revised, Knotty Pine Subdivision, Section 33, T1S, R7E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 

 

Planning Commission recommended to continue Rezone / RZ 22-27 to the December 20, 

2022, Board of Commissioner’s meeting to allow the applicants time to apply for and 

obtain an approved Subdivision Regulations Variance for increased lots on a dead-end 

road system.  

 

CONTESTED HEARING 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARING OF MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT / 

PU 22-13:  Blue Wing Recreation Corporation; Ron Rossknecht. To amend the existing 

Planned Unit Development to reduce the required building setback from Blue Wing Road 

from 10 feet to 5 feet in accordance with Section 216 of the Pennington County Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 

Tract 0129A; All Less the North 10 acres and Less Tract 0129C of Malory Lode MS 

1483; Part of Hudson Lode MS 1483; Part of Just Lode MS 1483; and Lot 1 Less Right-

of-Way of Boulder #3 Lode MS 1483 all located in Section 13, T1S, R5E, BHM, 

Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 

Planning Commission recommended approval of Major Planned Unit Development 

Amendment / PU 22-13 with nine (9) conditions. 

 



 

F. PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-09: Pennington 

County. To add Section 517 “Special Permitted Uses” [to add Section 517 “Special 

Permitted Uses”] to the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Planning Commission recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-09. 

 

G. PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-10: Pennington 

County. To amend Section 204 “General District Provisions” [to amend and supersede 

the existing 204 “General District Provisions”] of the Pennington County Zoning 

Ordinance. 

 

Planning Commission recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-10. 

 

H. PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-11: Pennington 

County. To amend Section 103 “Definitions” [to amend and supersede the existing 103 

“Definitions”] of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Planning Commission recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-11. 

 

I. REQUEST FOR RELEASE OF SURETY / FINAL PLAT 21-91:  Sudbury Ranch Land 

Holding, LLC / Casey Skyberg. Improvements for the roads and utilities have been 

completed for Lot 2R and Lots 3 through 11, Sudbury Ranch Subdivision, Section 21, 

T1S, R7E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota, in the amount of $155,000.00. 



1 

DRAFT MINUTES 

PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

October 24, 2022 @ 9:00 a.m. 

County Commissioners’ Meeting Room - Pennington County Administration Building 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Charlie Johnson, Karen McGregor, Kevin Kuehn, Jim Coleman, 

Mikal Lewis, Kevin Burton, and Ron Rossknecht. 

 

STAFF PRESENT: Cody Sack, Megan Talmage, Christine Phillip, Jason Theunissen, 

and Megan Krueger (State’s Attorney’s Office). 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

1. APPROVAL OF THE OCTOBER 11, 2022, MINUTES 

Moved by Rossknecht and seconded by McGregor to approve the Minutes of the 

October 11, 2022, Planning Commission meeting. Vote:  unanimous 7 to 0. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Moved by Lewis and seconded by Kuehn to approve the Agenda of the October 24, 

2022, Planning Commission meeting.  Vote:  unanimous 7 to 0. 

 

Moved by Rossknecht and seconded by Burton to approve the Consent 

Agenda of the October 24, 2022, Planning Commission meeting, with the removal of 

Items #4 and #6.  Vote:  unanimous 7 to 0.  

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

The following items have been placed on the Consent Agenda for action to be taken on all items 

in accordance with staff’s recommendation by a single vote.  Any item may be removed from the 

Consent Agenda, by any Planning Commissioner, staff member, or audience member for 

separate consideration.  The findings of this Planning Commission, on certain items from this 

agenda, are recommendations to the Pennington County Board of Commissioners who will make 

the final decision. 

 

3. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 16-30:  Paul and Carol Niemann.  To 

review an accessory structure, pole barn, prior to a primary structure on the subject 

property in an Agriculture District in accordance with Sections 205 and 510 of the 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Niemann Trust Land Tract of the SE1/4SE1/4, Section 15, T1N, R5E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 

 

To approve the extension of Conditional Use Permit / CU 16-30 with the following 

eight (8) conditions. 

 

1. That the property address be posted on the structure and so it is visible from 

both directions of Custer Gulch Road in accordance with Pennington 

County’s Ordinance #20; 

 



2 

2. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square 

feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which requires a site plan to be 

reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; 

 

3. That the minimum setback requirements of an Agriculture District and the 

Section Line Right-of-Way be continually maintained on the property, or a 

Setback Variance be obtained; 

 

4. That the subject property remains free of debris and junk vehicles; 

 

5. That the accessory structure be used for personal use only and no 

commercial-type uses; 

 

6. That an approved Onsite Wastewater Treatment System (OSWTS) 

Construction Permit be obtained prior to any alteration of the OSWTS on 

the property; 

 

7. That the property owner is aware of the U.S. Forest Service requirements at 

all times; and, 

 

8. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed on a complaint basis, or as 

directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or the Board of 

Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being met. 

 

Vote:  unanimous 7 to 0. 
 

5. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 21-16: Kyle Brown. To review a 

caretaker’s residence on the subject property in a Suburban Residential District in 

accordance with Sections 209 and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 9 of Lot L, Nelson Acres Subdivision, Section 23, T2N, R8E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 

 

To approve the extension of Conditional Use Permit / CU 21-16 with the following 

eight (8) conditions: 

 

1. That the addresses for both the proposed single-family residence and the 

proposed caretaker’s residence be posted on each residence and at the 

driveway(s), in accordance with Pennington County’s Ordinance #20; 

 

2. That any alterations or additions to the OSWTS be reviewed and approved 

by the Pennington County Environmental Planner; 

 

3. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure(s) exceeding 144 

square feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which requires a site 

plan to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; 

 



3 

4. That the minimum setback requirements of a Suburban Residential District 

be continually maintained on the property or a setback Variance be 

obtained; 

 

5. That the caretaker’s residence use the existing approach off of Country Road 

and no new approaches are allowed; 

 

6. That the subject property remains free of debris and junk vehicles; 

 

7. That once care is no longer needed, the caretaker’s residence be removed 

from the subject property, or the subject property be subdivided so that each 

residence is on a separate lot; and, 

 

8. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in one (1) year, on a complaint 

basis, or as deemed necessary by the Pennington County Planning 

Commission or Board of Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of 

Approval are being met. 

 

Vote:  unanimous 7 to 0. 
 

7. MINOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT REVIEW / PU 19-08:  
Joel and Elizabeth Morris.  To review living in a Recreational Vehicle as temporary 

living quarters, while building a single-family residence on the subject property, in 

accordance with Section 213 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 10, Block 4, Sunset Ranch Subdivision, Section 32, T2N, R10E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 

 

To end Minor Planned Unit Development Amendment / PU 19-08 with the 

applicant’s concurrence. 

 

Vote:  unanimous 7 to 0. 
 

 

END OF CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 

4. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 18-13:  Randy Wirtzfeld.  To review a 

12 x 12 cabin to be occupied on a seasonal basis on the subject property, not to be 

occupied more than 180 days per calendar year, in an Agriculture District in accordance 

with Sections 205 and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

All, Brule Lode MS 993, Section 36, T2N, R3E, BHM, Pennington County, South 

Dakota. 

 

(Continued from the October 11, 2022, Planning Commission meeting.) 

 

Commissioner Burton asked to have this Item removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion.  



4 

 

Staff recommended approval of the extension of Conditional Use Permit / CU 18-13 with 

seven (7) conditions. 

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Burton and seconded by McGregor to approve the extension of 

Conditional Use Permit / CU 18-13 with the following seven (7) conditions: 

 

1. That the lot address assigned to the property (11730 Divide Road) be 

properly posted in accordance with Pennington County’s Ordinance #20; 

 

2. That the seasonal cabin may not be occupied more than 180 days per 

calendar year; 

 

3. That a port-a-potty continue to be present on the subject property while the 

cabin is occupied and the port-a-potty be pumped and maintained as needed 

to prevent effluent and “blue juice” from reaching the ground. Pump records 

must be provided to the Planning Department upon request; 

 

4. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square 

feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which requires a site plan to be 

reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; 

 

5. That the minimum setback requirements for a General Agriculture District 

be continually maintained on the subject property, or an approved Setback 

Variance be obtained; 

 

6. That the cabin continue to be used for personal use only. No commercial 

activity or renting shall be permitted; and, 

 

7. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in 6 months, on a complaint 

basis, or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or 

Board of Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being 

met. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

6. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVIEW / CU 21-39: Paul and Carol Niemann.  To 

review a Recreational Vehicle Park on the subject property in an Agriculture District in 

accordance with Sections 205, 306, and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Niemann Trust Land Tract of the SE1/4SE1/4, Section 15, T1N, R5E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 

 

Commissioner Lewis asked to have this Item removed from the Consent Agenda for 

discussion.  

 



5 

Staff recommended approval of the extension of Conditional Use Permit / CU 21-39 with 

conditions. 

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Lewis and seconded by Kuehn to approve the extension of Conditional 

Use Permit / CU 21-39 with the following eighteen (18) conditions: 

 

1. That the Recreational Vehicle (RV) Park shall consist of no more than 6 RV 

sites;  

 

2. That the RV park be for personal use only, and no commercial use is 

allowed, and operate up to 180 days per calendar year; 

 

3. That the RV park not be utilized as a nightly, weekly vacation rental, or 

commercial use; 

 

4. That the RV Park can only be operated after the approved OSWTS has been 

installed; 

 

5. That all RVs dispose of waste through the approved OSWTS; 

 

6. That any alterations or additions to the OSWTS be reviewed and approved 

by the Pennington County Environmental Planner and/or South Dakota 

Department of Agriculture and Natural Resources (SD DANR); 

 

7. That the address be properly posted in accordance with Pennington County 

Ordinance #20, so it is clearly visible from both directions of travel along 

Custer Gulch Road;  

 

8. That each RV site has a lot number clearly posted; 

 

9. That a minimum 10-foot separation be maintained between each RV site; 

 

10. That the RV Park conforms to all regulations in Pennington County Zoning 

Ordinance (PCZO) § 306; 

 

11. That the minimum setback requirements of Agriculture District be 

maintained on the subject property, or approved Setback Variance(s) be 

obtained; 

 

12. That the minimum 58-foot Section Line setback be maintained on the 

property; 

 

13. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square 

feet or permanently anchored, which requires a site plan to be reviewed and 

approved by the Planning Director; 

 

14. That the subject property remains free of debris and junk vehicles; 



6 

 

15. That the applicant adheres to PCZO § 510; 

 

16. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed if the RV park is no longer 

utilized for personal use;  

 

17. That upon sale or transfer of the subject property, this Conditional Use 

Permit shall end; and, 

 

18. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in 6 months, on a complaint 

basis, or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or 

Board of Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being 

met. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

8. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT / CU 22-44:  Rodney Alexander.  To allow an Accessory 

Dwelling Unit on the subject property in a Rural Residential District in accordance with 

Sections 207, 324, and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 15R, Burns Placer MS 697, Section 24, T1S, R4E, BHM, Pennington County, South 

Dakota. 

 

Talmage reviewed the Staff Report indicating the applicant has appled for a Conditional 

Use Permit to allow an Accessory Dwelling Unit on the subject property. 

 

Staff recommended approval of Conditional Use Permit / CU 22-44 with the following 

sixteen (16) conditions:  

 

1. That only one Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) be allowed; 

 

2. That the applicants obtain an approved Building Permit for the ADU; 

 

3. That prior to the submittal of a building permit, the applicant obtain an Approach 

Permit from the County Highway Department. 

 

4. That the ADU not exceed two stories, two bedrooms, or 700 square feet; 

 

5. That the ADU has a residential appearance and cannot be a Recreational Vehicle;  

 

6. That the addresses assigned to the ADU and the primary residence be posted on 

each residence and at the end of the driveway where it intersects Deerfield Road 

so they are clearly visible, in accordance with Pennington County Ordinance #20; 

 

7. That the On-site Wastewater Treatment System (OSWTS) complies with § 204(J) 

of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO); 

 

8. That all necessary permits are obtained prior to any additions and/or alterations to 

the ADU or upgrades/alterations to the OSWTS; 



7 

 

9. That all utilities for the ADU be extended from the primary residence and be on 

one (1) meter, unless the utility provider requires otherwise and proof of that 

requirement is provided to the Planning Director; 

 

10. That home occupations, Vacation Home Rentals, and nightly rentals of the ADU 

are prohibited; 

 

11. That if the ADU is rented or leased, it must be done so for a period of 28 

consecutive days or more; 

 

12. That the principal dwelling on the property be owner occupied or utilized as a 

long-term rental; 

 

13. That at least 1 off-street parking space be provided for the ADU; 

 

14. That the ADU be continually utilized and maintained in accordance with all 

requirements of § 324 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance;  

 

15. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square feet or 

permanently anchored to the ground, which will require a site plan to be reviewed 

and approved by the Planning Director; and, 

 

16. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in 1 year, on a complaint basis, or 

as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or Board of 

Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being met. 

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Rossknecht and seconded by McGregor to approve of Conditional Use 

Permit / CU 22-44 with the following sixteen (16) conditions:  

 

1. That only one Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) be allowed; 

 

2. That the applicants obtain an approved Building Permit for the ADU; 

 

3. That prior to the submittal of a building permit, the applicant obtain an 

Approach Permit from the County Highway Department. 

 

4. That the ADU not exceed two stories, two bedrooms, or 700 square feet; 

 

5. That the ADU has a residential appearance and cannot be a Recreational 

Vehicle;  

 

6. That the addresses assigned to the ADU and the primary residence be posted 

on each residence and at the end of the driveway where it intersects Deerfield 

Road so they are clearly visible, in accordance with Pennington County 

Ordinance #20; 

 



8 

7. That the On-site Wastewater Treatment System (OSWTS) complies with § 

204(J) of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO); 

 

8. That all necessary permits are obtained prior to any additions and/or 

alterations to the ADU or upgrades/alterations to the OSWTS; 

 

9. That all utilities for the ADU be extended from the primary residence and be 

on one (1) meter, unless the utility provider requires otherwise and proof of 

that requirement is provided to the Planning Director; 

 

10. That home occupations, Vacation Home Rentals, and nightly rentals of the 

ADU are prohibited; 

 

11. That if the ADU is rented or leased, it must be done so for a period of 28 

consecutive days or more; 

 

12. That the principal dwelling on the property be owner occupied or utilized as 

a long-term rental; 

 

13. That at least 1 off-street parking space be provided for the ADU; 

 

14. That the ADU be continually utilized and maintained in accordance with all 

requirements of § 324 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance;  

 

15. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square 

feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which will require a site plan to 

be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; and, 

 

16. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in 1 year, on a complaint basis, 

or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or Board of 

Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being met. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

9. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT / CU 22-46: Brian Baxter; KPJP, LLC. To allow a 

Vacation Home Rental in a Suburban Residential District in accordance with Sections 

209, 319, and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 1, Baxter Subdivision, Section 31, T1N, R7E, BHM, Pennington County, South 

Dakota. 

 

Talmage reviewed the Staff Report indicating the applicant has applied for a Conditional 

Use Permit to allow a Vacation Home Rental.  

 

Staff recommended approval of Conditional Use Permit / CU 22-46 with the following 

sixteen (16) conditions: 

 

1. That the maximum overnight occupancy, based on the Department of Agriculture 

and Natural Resources (DANR), be limited to six (6) people and the maximum 



9 

daytime occupancy be limited to twelve (12) people, per Pennington County 

Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) Section 319(F)(13); 

 

2. That if an addition is constructed on the single-family residence and/or the on-site 

wastewater treatment system is upgraded in the future, this Conditional Use 

Permit be reviewed so that the maximum occupancy may be adjusted accordingly, 

which will require approval from DANR; 

 

3. That the proper permits be obtained prior to utilizing a fire pit on the property and 

all fire restrictions be followed at all times; 

 

4. That prior to operation of the Vacation Home Rental, the applicant obtain an 

Approach Permit from County Highway; 

 

5. That the applicant continually maintains current licenses with the South Dakota 

Department of Health (Vacation Home License) and the Department of Revenue 

(Sales Tax License) and that copies of these licenses be provided to the Planning 

Department prior to operation of the Vacation Home Rental; 

 

6. That the applicant maintains an Evacuation (Emergency) Plan and provide copies 

to all overnight guests in case there is a need to evacuate guests from the property 

in the event of an emergency; 

 

7. That a minimum of one off-street parking space per bedroom be provided on-site, 

per PCZO Section 310(A)(9)(gg), with each measuring a minimum of 9-feet by 

18-feet and surfaced with gravel, concrete, or asphalt and maintained in a dust-

free manner; 

 

8. That an interior informational sign be posted in accordance with the requirements 

of PCZO Section 319(G), with 9-1-1 and contact information listed for the local 

Fire Department and Sheriff’s Office, during operation of the Vacation Home 

Rental; 

 

9. That the lot address (7601 Pioneer Drive) continue to be posted on the residence 

at all times and that it also be posted on a sign where the driveway intersects 

Pioneer Drive, in accordance with Pennington County Ordinance #20; 

 

10. That the applicant ensures the Vacation Home Rental is continually operated in 

accordance with the requirements of PCZO Section 319(F) (Performance 

Standards) at all times; 

 

11. That if the person designated as the Local Contact is ever changed from Brian 

Baxter, the interior informational sign be updated and the applicant re-notify the 

Planning Department and surrounding landowners within 500 feet via notices sent 

by First Class Mail; 

 

12. That all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations be adhered to at all times, 

including South Dakota Administrative Rule 44:02:08, which regulates Vacation 

Home Rentals;  



10 

 

13. That an approved Sign Permit be obtained prior to the placement of any sign(s); 

 

14. That the applicants shall provide the phone number and/or internet address to 

clients regarding the current day’s fire condition, as pertaining to the use of the 

fire pit; 

 

15. That an approved Building Permit be obtained for any future structure(s) 

exceeding 144 square feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which requires 

a site plan to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; and, 

 

16. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in one year, on a complaint basis, 

or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or Board of 

Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being met. 

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Rossknecht and seconded by Kuehn to approve of Conditional Use 

Permit / CU 22-46, with amended language in Condition #3, with the following 

sixteen (16) conditions: 

 

1. That the maximum overnight occupancy, based on the Department of 

Agriculture and Natural Resources (DANR), be limited to six (6) people and 

the maximum daytime occupancy be limited to twelve (12) people, per 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) Section 319(F)(13); 

 

2. That if an addition is constructed on the single-family residence and/or the 

on-site wastewater treatment system is upgraded in the future, this 

Conditional Use Permit be reviewed so that the maximum occupancy may be 

adjusted accordingly, which will require approval from DANR; 

 

3. That no open fires, fireworks, or sparklers be allowed on the property; 

 

4. That prior to operation of the Vacation Home Rental, the applicant obtain an 

Approach Permit from County Highway; 

 

5. That the applicant continually maintains current licenses with the South 

Dakota Department of Health (Vacation Home License) and the Department 

of Revenue (Sales Tax License) and that copies of these licenses be provided 

to the Planning Department prior to operation of the Vacation Home Rental; 

 

6. That the applicant maintains an Evacuation (Emergency) Plan and provide 

copies to all overnight guests in case there is a need to evacuate guests from 

the property in the event of an emergency; 

 

7. That a minimum of one off-street parking space per bedroom be provided 

on-site, per PCZO Section 310(A)(9)(gg), with each measuring a minimum of 

9-feet by 18-feet and surfaced with gravel, concrete, or asphalt and 

maintained in a dust-free manner; 



11 

 

8. That an interior informational sign be posted in accordance with the 

requirements of PCZO Section 319(G), with 9-1-1 and contact information 

listed for the local Fire Department and Sheriff’s Office, during operation of 

the Vacation Home Rental; 

 

9. That the lot address (7601 Pioneer Drive) continue to be posted on the 

residence at all times and that it also be posted on a sign where the driveway 

intersects Pioneer Drive, in accordance with Pennington County Ordinance 

#20; 

 

10. That the applicant ensures the Vacation Home Rental is continually operated 

in accordance with the requirements of PCZO Section 319(F) (Performance 

Standards) at all times; 

 

11. That if the person designated as the Local Contact is ever changed from 

Brian Baxter, the interior informational sign be updated and the applicant 

re-notify the Planning Department and surrounding landowners within 500 

feet via notices sent by First Class Mail; 

 

12. That all applicable Federal, State, and local regulations be adhered to at all 

times, including South Dakota Administrative Rule 44:02:08, which regulates 

Vacation Home Rentals;  

 

13. That an approved Sign Permit be obtained prior to the placement of any 

sign(s); 

 

14. That the applicants shall provide the phone number and/or internet address 

to clients regarding the current day’s fire condition, as pertaining to the use 

of the fire pit; 

 

15. That an approved Building Permit be obtained for any future structure(s) 

exceeding 144 square feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which 

requires a site plan to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; 

and, 

 

16. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in one year, on a complaint 

basis, or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or 

Board of Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being 

met. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

10. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT / CU 22-47: Travis Crisman. To allow a contractor’s 

storage yard in an Agriculture District in accordance with Sections 205 and 510 of the 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Also in Section 32, T1S, R4E, HES #306 of Section 5, T2S, R4E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 



12 

 

Sack reviewed the Staff Report indicating the applicant has applied for a Conditional Use 

Permit to allow a contractor’s storage yard on the subject property.  

 

Staff recommended approval of Conditional Use Permit / CU 22-47 with the following 

fourteen (14) conditions: 

1. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square feet or 

permanently anchored to the ground, which will require a site plan to be reviewed 

and approved by the Planning Director;  

 

2. That an address be posted at the entrance to the storage yard in accordance with 

Ordinance #20; 

 

3. That prior to operation, the applicant’s obtain an Operating License for the Onsite 

Wastewater Treatment System for the single-family residence; 

 

4. That dust control measures be implemented to reduce the amount of dust from 

trucks and equipment leaving and entering the storage yard; 

 

5. That any bulk chemicals, fuel, and liquid refuse stored on the site have secondary 

containment; 

 

6. That any lighting to be installed is maintained to minimize spillage of light 

outside of the area, so as not to create a nuisance.  Lighting must be effectively 

shielded to prevent beams or rays from being directed towards any portion of the 

traveled ways and must not be of such intensity or brilliance as to cause glare or 

impair the vision of any motor vehicle drivers; 

 

7. That the minimum number of required parking spaces shall be provided in 

accordance with Pennington County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) § 310(A)(t), 

which requires parking or storage for all vehicles used directly in the conduct of 

such industrial use, plus one parking space for every three employees on the 

premise at maximum employment on a single shift; 

 

8. That erosion control measures be implemented to prevent sediment leaving the 

site; 

 

9. That the property remains free of junk and debris at all times; 

 

10. That upon completion of the project, all equipment, structures, and stockpiles 

associated with the storage yard be removed; 

 

11. That the site be revegetated as required by PCZO § 507(N); 

 

12. That all natural drainage paths be continually maintained;  

 

13. That the Planning Director may allow additional uses, which are consistent with 

the uses approved in this permit. Significant changes in the use or impacts on 

adjacent lands shall require an amendment to this permit; and, 



13 

 

14. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in one year, on a complaint basis, 

or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or Board of 

Commissioners to ensure compliance with the PCZO and Conditions of Approval. 

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Kuehn and seconded by McGregor to approve of Conditional Use Permit 

/ CU 22-47 with the following fourteen (14) conditions: 

 

1. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square 

feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which will require a site plan to 

be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director;  

 

2. That an address be posted at the entrance to the storage yard in accordance 

with Ordinance #20; 

 

3. That prior to operation, the applicant’s obtain an Operating License for the 

Onsite Wastewater Treatment System for the single-family residence; 

 

4. That dust control measures be implemented to reduce the amount of dust 

from trucks and equipment leaving and entering the storage yard; 

 

5. That any bulk chemicals, fuel, and liquid refuse stored on the site have 

secondary containment; 

 

6. That any lighting to be installed is maintained to minimize spillage of light 

outside of the area, so as not to create a nuisance.  Lighting must be 

effectively shielded to prevent beams or rays from being directed towards 

any portion of the traveled ways and must not be of such intensity or 

brilliance as to cause glare or impair the vision of any motor vehicle drivers; 

 

7. That the minimum number of required parking spaces shall be provided in 

accordance with Pennington County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) § 310(A)(t), 

which requires parking or storage for all vehicles used directly in the conduct 

of such industrial use, plus one parking space for every three employees on 

the premise at maximum employment on a single shift; 

 

8. That erosion control measures be implemented to prevent sediment leaving 

the site; 

 

9. That the property remains free of junk and debris at all times; 

 

10. That upon completion of the project, all equipment, structures, and 

stockpiles associated with the storage yard be removed; 

 

11. That the site be revegetated as required by PCZO § 507(N); 

 

12. That all natural drainage paths be continually maintained;  



14 

 

13. That the Planning Director may allow additional uses, which are consistent 

with the uses approved in this permit. Significant changes in the use or 

impacts on adjacent lands shall require an amendment to this permit; and, 

 

14. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in one year, on a complaint 

basis, or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or 

Board of Commissioners to ensure compliance with the PCZO and 

Conditions of Approval. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

Moved by Lewis and seconded by Coleman to wave rules to discuss directly related 

and similar Agenda Items #11 and #12 at the same time.  All voting aye, the Motion 

carried 7 to 0. 

 

Commissioner Burton left the meeting at 9:42 a.m. 

Commissioner Burton returned to the meeting at 9:43 a.m. 

 

11. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT / CA 22-20: Brian Schroeder; Davis 

Engineering - Agent  To amend the Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use 

from Agriculture District to Ranchette District in accordance with Sections 205, 206, and 

508 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 5 Revised, Knotty Pine Subdivision, Section 33, T1S, R7E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 

 

Sack reviewed the Staff Report indicating the applicant has applied for a Comprehensive 

Plan Amendment to change the Future Land Use from Agriculture District to Ranchette 

District. 

 

Staff recommended to continue Comprehensive Plan Amendment / CA 22-20 to the 

December 12, 2022, Planning Commission meeting to allow the applicants time to apply 

for and obtain an approved Subdivision Regulations Variance for increased lots on a 

dead-end road system.  

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by McGregor and seconded by Lewis to continue Comprehensive Plan 

Amendment / CA 22-20 to the December 12, 2022, Planning Commission meeting to 

allow the applicants time to apply for and obtain an approved Subdivision 

Regulations Variance for increased lots on a dead-end road system.  

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

 

 



15 

12. REZONE / RZ 22-27:  Brian Schroeder; Davis Engineering - Agent.  To rezone 14.17 

acres from Agriculture District to Ranchette District in accordance with Sections 205, 

206, and 508 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 5 Revised, Knotty Pine Subdivision, Section 33, T1S, R7E, BHM, Pennington 

County, South Dakota. 

 

Sack reviewed the Staff Report indicating the applicant has applied for a Rezone to 

rezone from Agriculture District to Ranchette District. 

 

Staff recommended to continue Rezone / RZ 22-27 to the December 12, 2022, Planning 

Commission meeting to allow the applicants time to apply for and obtain an approved 

Subdivision Regulations Variance for increased lots on a dead-end road system.  

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Rossknecht and seconded by Coleman to continue Rezone / RZ 22-27 to 

the December 12, 2022, Planning Commission meeting to allow the applicants time 

to apply for and obtain an approved Subdivision Regulations Variance for increased 

lots on a dead-end road system.  

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

13. MINOR PLAT / MPL 22-52:  Lynn Hanson.  To subdivide and create Lots 2A and 2B, 

Block 2, Thovson Subdivision in accordance with the Pennington County Subdivision 

Regulations. 

 

EXISTING LEGAL:  Lot 2 Revised Less Lot AR and Lot B of Lot 2 Revised, Block 2, 

Thovson Subdivision, Section 19, T2S, R7E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 

PROPOSED LEGAL: Lots 2A and 2B, Block 2, Thovson Subdivision, Section 19, T2S, 

R7E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 

Sack reviewed the Staff Report indicating the applicant has applied for a Minor Plat to 

subdivide and create Lots 2A and 2B, Block 2, Thovson Subdivision. 

 

Staff recommended approval of Minor Plat / MPL 22-52, with the following six (6) 

conditions: 

 

1. That prior to the filing the mylar with the Register of Deeds, the applicant 

addresses the Register of Deeds comments; 

 

2. That prior to filing the mylar with the Register of Deeds, 8-foot Minor Drainage 

and Utility Easements be dedicated on the interior sides of all lot lines; 

 

3. That prior to filing the mylar at Register of Deeds, the certificate on the Plat for 

the Planning Commission be fixed; 

 



16 

4. That prior to filing the mylar with the Register of Deeds, the Certifications on the 

Minor Plat be in accordance with §§ 1701 and 1703 of the Pennington County 

Subdivision Regulations; 

 

5. That at the time of Minor Plat submittal, the Certifications on the Minor Plat be in 

accordance with § 303 of the Pennington County Subdivision Regulations; and, 

 

6. That at the time of Minor Plat submittal, the plat meets the requirements of 

Section 303 of the Pennington County Subdivision Regulations, or an approved 

Subdivision Regulations Variance be obtained waiving any of these requirements 

that are not met. 

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Rossknecht and seconded by Kuehn to approve of Minor Plat / MPL 22-

52, with the following six (6) conditions: 

 

1. That prior to the filing the mylar with the Register of Deeds, the applicant 

addresses the Register of Deeds comments; 

 

2. That prior to filing the mylar with the Register of Deeds, 8-foot Minor 

Drainage and Utility Easements be dedicated on the interior sides of all lot 

lines; 

 

3. That prior to filing the mylar at Register of Deeds, the certificate on the Plat 

for the Planning Commission be fixed; 

 

4. That prior to filing the mylar with the Register of Deeds, the Certifications 

on the Minor Plat be in accordance with §§ 1701 and 1703 of the Pennington 

County Subdivision Regulations; 

 

5. That at the time of Minor Plat submittal, the Certifications on the Minor Plat 

be in accordance with § 303 of the Pennington County Subdivision 

Regulations; and, 

 

6. That at the time of Minor Plat submittal, the plat meets the requirements of 

Section 303 of the Pennington County Subdivision Regulations, or an 

approved Subdivision Regulations Variance be obtained waiving any of these 

requirements that are not met. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

14. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT / CU 22-45: Lynn Hanson. To allow an Efficiency 

Dwelling Unit on the subject property in an Agriculture District in accordance with 

Sections 205, 330, and 510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 2 Revised Less Lot AR and Lot B of Lot 2 Revised, Block 2, Thovson Subdivision, 

Section 19, T2S, R7E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 



17 

Theunissen reviewed the Staff Report indicating the applicant has applied for a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow an Efficiency Dwelling Unit on the subject property.  

 

Staff recommended approval of Conditional Use Permit / CU 22-45 with the following 

conditions: 

 

1. That only 1 efficiency dwelling be allowed; 

 

2. That the applicant obtains an approved Building Permit for the efficiency 

dwelling; 

 

3. That prior to operation, the efficiency dwelling be permanently anchored to the 

ground, with the wheels removed; 

 

4. That prior to operation, the efficiency dwelling be skirted to have a residential 

appearance and not be converted back to a Recreational Vehicle;  

 

5. That the efficiency dwelling not exceed 400 square feet; 

 

6. That the address assigned to the efficiency dwelling be posted on the residence 

and at the end of the driveway where it intersects Highway 40 so it is clearly 

visible, in accordance with Pennington County Ordinance #20; 

 

7. That the On-site Wastewater Treatment System (OSWTS) complies with § 204(J) 

of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO); 

 

8. That all necessary permits are obtained prior to any additions/ alterations to the 

efficiency dwelling or additions/alterations to the OSWTS; 

 

9. That at least 2 off-street parking spaces be provided for the efficiency dwelling; 

 

10. That the efficiency dwelling be continually utilized and maintained in accordance 

with all requirements of § 330 of the PCZO;  

 

11. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square feet or 

permanently anchored to the ground, which will require a site plan to be reviewed 

and approved by the Planning Director;  

 

12. That if the property is ever transferred or sold, the efficiency dwelling be removed 

from the property and this CUP end; and, 

 

13. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in 1 year, on a complaint basis, or 

as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or Board of 

Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being met. 

 

Discussion followed.  

 

 



18 

Moved by Burton and seconded by Coleman to approve of Conditional Use Permit / 

CU 22-45 with the following conditions: 

 

1. That only 1 efficiency dwelling be allowed; 

 

2. That the applicant obtains an approved Building Permit for the efficiency 

dwelling; 

 

3. That prior to operation, the efficiency dwelling be permanently anchored to 

the ground, with the wheels removed; 

 

4. That prior to operation, the efficiency dwelling be skirted to have a 

residential appearance and not be converted back to a Recreational Vehicle;  

 

5. That the efficiency dwelling not exceed 400 square feet; 

 

6. That the address assigned to the efficiency dwelling be posted on the 

residence and at the end of the driveway where it intersects Highway 40 so it 

is clearly visible, in accordance with Pennington County Ordinance #20; 

 

7. That the On-site Wastewater Treatment System (OSWTS) complies with § 

204(J) of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO); 

 

8. That all necessary permits are obtained prior to any additions/ alterations to 

the efficiency dwelling or additions/alterations to the OSWTS; 

 

9. That at least 2 off-street parking spaces be provided for the efficiency 

dwelling; 

 

10. That the efficiency dwelling be continually utilized and maintained in 

accordance with all requirements of § 330 of the PCZO;  

 

11. That a Building Permit be obtained for any structure exceeding 144 square 

feet or permanently anchored to the ground, which will require a site plan to 

be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director;  

 

12. That if the property is ever transferred or sold, the efficiency dwelling be 

removed from the property and this CUP end; and, 

 

13. That this Conditional Use Permit be reviewed in 1 year, on a complaint basis, 

or as directed by the Pennington County Planning Commission or Board of 

Commissioners to verify that all Conditions of Approval are being met. 

 

All voting, the Motion carried 4 to 3.  Commissioners Coleman, Burton, Rossknecht, 

and Kuehn voted yes.  Commissioners McGregor, Lewis and Johnson voted no.  

 

 

 



19 

15. MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AMENDMENT / PU 22-13:  Blue Wing 

Recreation Corporation; Ron Rossknecht. To amend the existing Planned Unit 

Development to reduce the required building setback from Blue Wing Road from 10 feet 

to 5 feet in accordance with Section 216 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Tract 0129A; All Less the North 10 acres and Less Tract 0129C of Malory Lode MS 

1483; Part of Hudson Lode MS 1483; Part of Just Lode MS 1483; and Lot 1 Less Right-

of-Way of Boulder #3 Lode MS 1483 all located in Section 13, T1S, R5E, BHM, 

Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 

(Continued from the October 11, 2022, Planning Commission meeting.) 

 

Commissioners Rossknecht and Burton stated they would abstain from voting on this 

item. 

 

Theunissen reviewed the Staff Report indicating the applicant has applied for a Major 

Planned Unit Development Amendment / PU 22-13 to reduce the required building 

setback from Blue Wing Road from 10 feet to 5 feet. 

 

Staff recommended approval of Major Planned Unit Development Amendment / PU 22-

13, with the following nine (9) conditions: 

 

1. That the permitted uses of the Planned Unit Development be limited to a total of 

116 recreational resort sites, which may be occupied by a mobile home, 

recreational vehicle, or stick-built dwelling unit, a watercraft storage area, 24’ x 

24’ shop building, 10’ x 16’ shed and accessory structures; 

 

2. That the addition of accessory structures, (not exempted by County requirements) 

be allowed through the issuance of a Building Permit which will include 

necessary site plans to be reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; 

 

3. That upon expansion of living space of any existing recreational resort site or the 

replacement of any recreational unit, the applicant shall submit information 

detailing the existing on-site wastewater treatment disposal system for review and 

approval by the County Environmental Planner.  Upgrades and replacement may 

be required upon determination of the County Environmental Planner; 

 

4. That a solid fence at least 5-foot-high be constructed and maintained along the 

west property line of the boat and watercraft storage area; 

 

5. That prior to the development of any future recreational sites, the applicant shall 

improve Blue Lead Mountain Road and that portion of Sheridan Loop from the 

intersection of Blue Lead Mountain Road to Bluewing Road to a driving surface 

of 16 feet with a 4-inch gravel surface and grades not to exceed 15 percent; 

 

6. That the setbacks for all future recreational sites and structures shall be a 

minimum of 20 feet between units, 5 feet from Bluewing Road, 10 feet from all 

other access roads, 0 feet from interior lot lines, 25 feet from exterior lot lines, 

and 58 feet from any existing and relocated Section Lines; 



20 

 

7. That all future recreational sites have a minimum of 2 off-street parking spaces 

each measuring at least 9 feet by 18 feet and be maintained in a dust free manner; 

 

8. That all recreational sites be provided with 2 off-street parking spaces.  Existing 

and future parking spaces shall be either gravel or grass, provided the grass is 

maintained in a healthy condition.  Should traffic increase to an amount so as to 

kill the grass in the parking area, the applicant shall gravel the parking spaces; 

and, 

 

9. That this Planned Unit Development be reviewed on a complaint basis only. 

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by McGregor and seconded by Lewis to approve of Major Planned Unit 

Development Amendment / PU 22-13, with the following nine (9) conditions: 

 

1. That the permitted uses of the Planned Unit Development be limited to a 

total of 116 recreational resort sites, which may be occupied by a mobile 

home, recreational vehicle, or stick-built dwelling unit, a watercraft storage 

area, 24’ x 24’ shop building, 10’ x 16’ shed and accessory structures; 

 

2. That the addition of accessory structures, (not exempted by County 

requirements) be allowed through the issuance of a Building Permit which 

will include necessary site plans to be reviewed and approved by the 

Planning Director; 

 

3. That upon expansion of living space of any existing recreational resort site or 

the replacement of any recreational unit, the applicant shall submit 

information detailing the existing on-site wastewater treatment disposal 

system for review and approval by the County Environmental Planner.  

Upgrades and replacement may be required upon determination of the 

County Environmental Planner; 

 

4. That a solid fence at least 5-foot-high be constructed and maintained along 

the west property line of the boat and watercraft storage area; 

 

5. That prior to the development of any future recreational sites, the applicant 

shall improve Blue Lead Mountain Road and that portion of Sheridan Loop 

from the intersection of Blue Lead Mountain Road to Bluewing Road to a 

driving surface of 16 feet with a 4-inch gravel surface and grades not to 

exceed 15 percent; 

 

6. That the setbacks for all future recreational sites and structures shall be a 

minimum of 20 feet between units, 5 feet from Bluewing Road, 10 feet from 

all other access roads, 0 feet from interior lot lines, 25 feet from exterior lot 

lines, and 58 feet from any existing and relocated Section Lines; 

 



21 

7. That all future recreational sites have a minimum of 2 off-street parking 

spaces each measuring at least 9 feet by 18 feet and be maintained in a dust 

free manner; 

 

8. That all recreational sites be provided with 2 off-street parking spaces.  

Existing and future parking spaces shall be either gravel or grass, provided 

the grass is maintained in a healthy condition.  Should traffic increase to an 

amount so as to kill the grass in the parking area, the applicant shall gravel 

the parking spaces; and, 

 

9. That this Planned Unit Development be reviewed on a complaint basis only. 

 

All voting, the Motion carried 5 to 0.  Commissioners Rossknecht and Burton 

abstained.  

 

16. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT REVOCATION / CU 71-04: David Allard. To revoke a 

mobile home park in a Commercial District in accordance with Sections 211, 305, and 

510 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Lot 1 of Lot D of SW1/4SE1/4 and RR Right-of-Way Across Lot 1, Subdivision of 

Section 31, 2N-6E, Section 31, T2N, R6E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 

Theunissen reviewed the Staff Report indicating this is a Revocation Hearing of the 

applicant’s Conditional Use Permit to allow a mobile home park.  

 

Staff recommended to end Conditional Use Permit / CU 71-04.  

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Rossknecht and seconded by Kuehn to continue Conditional Use Permit / 

CU 71-04 to the November 14, 2022, Planning Commission meeting in order for the 

applicant to address Ordinance Violations on the property.  

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

Moved by Burton and seconded by McGregor to wave rules to discuss directly 

related and similar Agenda Items #17, #18, and #19 at the same time.  All voting aye, 

the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

17. ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-09: Pennington County. To add Section 517 

“Special Permitted Uses” [to add Section 517 “Special Permitted Uses”] to the 

Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Theunissen reviewed the Staff Report indicating this is an Ordinance Amendment to add 

Section 517 Special Permitted Uses to the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

Staff recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-09.  

 

Discussion followed.  



22 

 

Moved by Lewis and seconded by Coleman to approve of Ordinance Amendment / 

OA 22-09. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

18. ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-10: Pennington County. To amend Section 204 

“General District Provisions” [to amend and supersede the existing 204 “General District 

Provisions”] of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Theunissen reviewed the Staff Report indicating this is an Ordinance Amendment to 

amend Section 204 General District Provisions of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

Staff recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-10.  

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by McGregor and seconded by Burton to approve of Ordinance Amendment 

/ OA 22-10. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

19. ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-11: Pennington County. To amend Section 103 

“Definitions” [to amend and supersede the existing 103 “Definitions”] of the Pennington 

County Zoning Ordinance. 

 

Theunissen reviewed the Staff Report indicating this is an Ordinance Amendment to 

amend Section 103 Definitions of the Zoning Ordinance.  

 

Staff recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-11.  

 

Discussion followed.  

 

Moved by Burton and seconded by Lewis to approve of Ordinance Amendment / 

OA 22-11. 

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

20. COUNTY BOARD REPORT 

The Board of Commissioners concurred with the Planning Commission’s 

recommendations from the October 11th meeting. 

 

21. ITEMS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 

No motions or actions were taken at this time.  

 

 

 

 



23 

22. ITEMS FROM THE STAFF 

 

A. Planning Department.  Theunissen stated that TJ Doreff has been hired for the 

Environemental Planner position and the Building Inspection position is now 

open.  

 

23. ITEMS FROM THE MEMBERSHIP 

 

Chairman Johnson spoke of Robert Rules of Order.   

 

24. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Moved by Lewis and seconded by McGregor to adjourn.   

 

All voting aye, the Motion carried 7 to 0. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 11:14 a.m. 
 

 

       

Charlie Johnson, Chairperson 

 

 

 



 

 

A 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: VARIANCE / VA 22-21: No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston. 

To reduce the setback to a residential zoning district from 500 feet to 105 feet 
for a telecommunications tower in accordance with Sections 212, 316, and 
509 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.  

 
A tract of land known as Utility Lot of No Bad Days Subdivision; formerly Tract 
Lake of the SW1/4SW1/4 of Section 27 and SE1/4 of Section 28, T2N, R5E, 
BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota, and being more particularly described 
as follows: Commencing at the southwest corner of said Section 27, said corner 
being a found rebar, Thence following the southerly line of said Section 27 
S89°49’32”E a distance of 778.25’ to a set pin and cap stamped "LS11918", said 
pin and cap being the southwest corner of the herein described lot and the true 
point of beginning of said lot; Thence continuing along said southerly line 
S89°53’47”E a distance of 246.93’ to a set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; 
Thence departing said southerly line N00°00’00”E a distance of 176.75’ to a set 
pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence N90°00’00”W a distance of 246.45’ to a 
set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence S00°09’22”W a distance of 176.43’ 
to the point of beginning; The herein described lot having an area of 1.00 acre 
more or less; Section 27, T2N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota 
 
Staff recommended denial of Variance / VA 22-21, as there are no special 
conditions that would excuse literal enforcement of Pennington County 
Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) § 316.   

 
If the Board of Adjustment disagrees and approves the request, Staff 
recommended the following three (3) conditions be included: 
 
1. That the applicant submits a survey stamped by a registered 

surveyor which shows that the telecommunications tower will be at 
least 105 feet from the property line. 

 
2. That prior to the mylar being filed at Register of Deeds, the applicant 

files a permanent deed restriction at Register of Deeds stating that no 
dwelling units be allowed within 340 feet of the telecommunications 
tower; and; 

 
3. That the State’s Attorney review the deed restriction before it is filed 

at Register of Deeds. 



Agenda Item A 
No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston 
November 1, 2022 
 

 Page 1 of 4 VA 22-21 

 STAFF REPORT  
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
REQUEST: VARIANCE / VA 22-21: 

• To reduce the setback to a residential zoning district from 
500 feet to 105 feet for a telecommunications tower. 

OWNER:  No Bad Days Campground, LLC 
• 23851 Highway 385, Hill City, SD  57745 

AGENT: Rob Livingston 
• 23851 Highway 385, Hill City, SD  57745 

EXISTING 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION(S): 

The subject property is located on the following metes and bounds 
description: A tract of land known as Utility Lot of No Bad Days 
Subdivision; formerly Tract Lake of the SW1/4SW1/4 of Section 27 
and SE1/4 of Section 28, T2N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South 
Dakota, and being more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the southwest corner of said Section 27, said corner 
being a found rebar, Thence following the southerly line of said 
Section 27 S89°49’32”E a distance of 778.25’ to a set pin and cap 
stamped "LS11918", said pin and cap being the southwest corner of 
the herein described lot and the true point of beginning of said lot; 
Thence continuing along said southerly line S89°53’47”E a distance 
of 246.93’ to a set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence departing 
said southerly line N00°00’00”E a distance of 176.75’ to a set pin and 
cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence N90°00’00”W a distance of 246.45’ 
to a set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence S00°09’22”W a 
distance of 176.43’ to the point of beginning; The herein described lot 
having an area of 1.00 acre more or less; Section 27, T2N, R5E, 
BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

LOCATION: 16001 W. Highway 44 
TAX ID: 51321 
LOT SIZE: 1.00 acres 
PHYSICAL 
DESCRIPTION: Forested / Hills 

CURRENT 
ZONING: Highway Service District 

EXISTING LAND 
USE: Telecommunications Tower 

SURROUNDING 
ZONING: 

North and West 
• Rural Residential District  
• Suburban Residential District 
• Agriculture District 

South and East 
• Open Space 



Agenda Item A 
No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston 
November 1, 2022 
 

 Page 2 of 4 VA 22-21 

ACCESS: W Highway 44 
FLOOD 
HAZARD: 

100-year  

ZONING 
ORDINANCE 
REFERENCE: 

§§ 212, 315, and 509 

REPORT BY: Cody Sack 
 
II. RECOMMENDATION 

A. Staff recommends denial as there are no special conditions that would 
excuse literal enforcement of Pennington County Zoning Ordinance 
(PCZO) § 316.   

B. However, if the Board of Adjustment disagrees and approves the request, 
Staff recommends the following condition be included: 

1. That the applicant submits a survey stamped by a registered 
surveyor which shows that the communications tower will be at 
least 105 feet from the property line. 

2. That prior to the mylar being filed at Register of Deeds, the 
applicant files a permanent deed restriction at Register of Deeds 
stating that no dwelling units be allowed within 340’ feet of the 
telecommunications tower; and; 

3. That the States Attorney review the deed restriction before it is 
filed at Register of Deeds. 

 
III. CRITERIA REVIEWED 

Prong One  
Whether granting the Variance runs counter to the public interest? 

Consider the entire public—not just 
the neighbors 

Findings 
 

1. Does it injure the neighborhood? Yes 
 

No 
✔ 

 

The request appears to be a threat of 
safety to the neighborhood.  The 
proposed support structure is 307-feet-
tall. There currently are no residences 
surrounding the communications tower. 

2. Does it conform to the 
neighborhood? 

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

The communications tower is existing 
on a subject property zoned Highway 
Service District 

3. Does it conform to the general 
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance?   

Yes 
 

No 
✔ 

Communications tower require a 
setback of 500 feet to residential zoning 
districts.   

4. Does it conform to the 
Comprehensive Plan currently in 
place? 

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

Future Land Use is identified as 
Highway Service District. 
Communication towers are allowed in 
this zoning designation.   

5. Does it harm the public safety, 
health, or general welfare of the 
community?   

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

If a residence is placed within the fall 
zone it could harm the public safety, 
health, and general welfare of the 
community.  



Agenda Item A 
No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston 
November 1, 2022 
 

 Page 3 of 4 VA 22-21 

 
III. CRITERIA REVIEWED (CONTINUED) 
 

Prong Two 
Whether special conditions exist to grant a Variance? 

 
Physical conditions—not money or 
econ hardship 

 
Findings 

 
1. Does a special condition—

exceptional narrowness, 
topography, siting, or the like—
exist on the property?   

Yes 
 

No 
✔ 

The applicant has the option to plat the 
property in a way that does not require a 
Variance.  

a. If a special condition exists, 
does enforcing the Ordinance 
create an unnecessary 
hardship?   

Yes 
➖ 

No 
➖ 

No special condition exists.   

b. If a special circumstance 
exists, does granting the 
Variance observe the 
Ordinance’s spirit while doing 
substantial justice.   

Yes 
➖ 

No 
➖ 

No special condition exists.   

 
IV. PROPERTY HISTORY 

A. Conditional Use Permits: 
1. CU 08-10 was approved by the Planning Commission on August 

24, 2015 for a telecommunications tower. 
2. CU 19-33 was approved by the Board of Commissioners on 

August 4, 2020 for an RV park, to include: 
a. 22 RV sites. 
b. 1 gas station. 
c. 1 convenience store. 
d. 1 bar to serve beer and wine. 

3. CU 21-40 was approved by the Planning Commission on July 12, 
2021 to allow UTV rentals. 

B. Floodplain Development Permit (FDP): 
1. FP 20-40 was approved for an RV park on the subject property. 

C. Building Permits. 
1. Convenience store structure – built in 1960, per Department of 

Equalization records. 
2. Telecommunications Tower – 2010COBP-0412. 

D. On-site Wastewater Treatment System (OSWTS). 
1. South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources 

approved an OSWTS plan for 22 RV sites and resort store on 
December 10, 2019. 

2. The size of the existing onsite wastewater treatment system is 
unknown.  

 
 



Agenda Item A 
No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston 
November 1, 2022 
 

 Page 4 of 4 VA 22-21 

V. INTERDEPARTMENTAL REVIEW 
A. County Highway Department, County Fire Administrator, County Planning, 

Emergency Services (911), County Ordinance Enforcement, Register of 
Deeds, Sheriff’s Office, and Department of Equalization, SD DOT: 

1. No objections or concerns were received.  
 

VI. ANALYSIS 
A. June 5th, 2022 – the Board of Commissioners approved: 

1. Preliminary Plat / PPL – 22-33 to subdivide the property into five 
(5) lots. 

2. Comprehensive Plan Amendment / CA 22-15 and Rezone / RZ 22-
21 to rezone three of the proposed lots to Rural Residential. 

B. PCZO § 316(C) states: The minimum distance from the property which a 
telecommunications facility is to be located on must be at least 500 feet 
from any residential zoning district, dwelling unit, or agriculture district 
containing less than 40 acres. 

C.  In all other instances, the minimum distance from the property which a 
telecommunications facility is to be located on must be at least 1.1 times 
the support structure’s height from property lines. 
1. The telecommunications tower is 307-feet-tall.  Therefore, 338 feet 

should be the minimum distance allowed from the tower to any 
residential dwelling unit on the proposed lots. 

2. A deed restriction should be filed stating that no future residential 
dwelling units be allowed within 340' of the telecommunication 
tower. 

 
 







© City of Rapid City GIS

398.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet398.0

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

199.000

1: 2,388

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Address Points

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

jason.theunissen
Typewritten Text
Subject Property

jason.theunissen
Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

398.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet398.0

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

199.000

1: 2,388

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Address Points

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

jason.theunissen
Typewritten Text
Subject Property

jason.theunissen
Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

398.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet398.0

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

199.000

1: 2,388

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Address Points

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

County Zoning Effective 6-16-2021

Agricuture

General Commercial

Heavy Industrial

Highway Service

Light Industrial

Low Density Residential NEW

Native American Lands

No Code

Open Space

Planned Unit Development

Ranchette

Rural Residential

Suburban Residential

Urban Residential

jason.theunissen
Typewritten Text
Subject Property

jason.theunissen
Line



Submitted by the applicant - added to packet



Updated map submitted by Applicant 



 

 

B 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: VARIANCE / VA 22-22: No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston. 

To reduce the setback from 1.1 times the height of the telecommunications 
tower to a non-residential zoning district in accordance with Sections 212, 
316, and 509 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance.  

 
A tract of land known as Utility Lot of No Bad Days Subdivision; formerly Tract 
Lake of the SW1/4SW1/4 of Section 27 and SE1/4 of Section 28, T2N, R5E, 
BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota, and being more particularly described 
as follows: Commencing at the southwest corner of said Section 27, said corner 
being a found rebar, Thence following the southerly line of said Section 27 
S89°49’32”E a distance of 778.25’ to a set pin and cap stamped "LS11918", said 
pin and cap being the southwest corner of the herein described lot and the true 
point of beginning of said lot; Thence continuing along said southerly line 
S89°53’47”E a distance of 246.93’ to a set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; 
Thence departing said southerly line N00°00’00”E a distance of 176.75’ to a set 
pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence N90°00’00”W a distance of 246.45’ to a 
set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence S00°09’22”W a distance of 176.43’ 
to the point of beginning; The herein described lot having an area of 1.00 acre 
more or less; Section 27, T2N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 
 
Staff recommended denial of Variance / VA 22-22, as there are no special 
conditions that would excuse literal enforcement of Pennington County 
Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) § 316.   

 
If the Board of Adjustment disagrees and approves the request, Staff 
recommended the following three (3) conditions be included: 
 
1. That the applicant submits a survey stamped by a registered 

surveyor which shows that the telecommunications tower will be at 
least 48 feet from the property line. 

 
2. That prior to the mylar being filed at Register of Deeds, the applicant 

files a permanent deed restriction at Register of Deeds stating that no 
dwelling units, including Recreational Vehicle, be allowed within 
340’ feet of the telecommunications tower; and; 

 
3. That the State’s Attorney review the deed restriction before it is filed 

at Register of Deeds. 



Agenda Item B 
No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston 
November 1, 2022 
 

 Page 1 of 4 VA 22-22 

 STAFF REPORT  
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
REQUEST: VARIANCE / VA 22-22: 

• To reduce the setback from 1.1 times the height of the 
telecommunications tower to a non-residential zoning 
district. 

OWNER:  No Bad Days Campground, LLC 
• 23851 Highway 385, Hill City, SD  57745 

AGENT: Rob Livingston 
• 23851 Highway 385, Hill City, SD  57745 

EXISTING LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION(S): 

The subject property is located on the following metes and bounds 
description: A tract of land known as Utility Lot of No Bad Days 
Subdivision; formerly Tract Lake of the SW1/4SW1/4 of Section 27 
and SE1/4 of Section 28, T2N, R5E, BHM, Pennington County, 
South Dakota, and being more particularly described as follows: 
Commencing at the southwest corner of said Section 27, said corner 
being a found rebar, Thence following the southerly line of said 
Section 27 S89°49’32”E a distance of 778.25’ to a set pin and cap 
stamped "LS11918", said pin and cap being the southwest corner of 
the herein described lot and the true point of beginning of said lot; 
Thence continuing along said southerly line S89°53’47”E a distance 
of 246.93’ to a set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence departing 
said southerly line N00°00’00”E a distance of 176.75’ to a set pin and 
cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence N90°00’00”W a distance of 246.45’ 
to a set pin and cap stamped "LS11918"; Thence S00°09’22”W a 
distance of 176.43’ to the point of beginning; The herein described lot 
having an area of 1.00 acre more or less; Section 27, T2N, R5E, 
BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

LOCATION: 16001 W. Highway 44 
TAX ID: 51321 
LOT SIZE: 1.00 acres 
PHYSICAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

Forested / Hills 

CURRENT 
ZONING: 

Highway Service District 

EXISTING LAND 
USE: 

Telecommunications Tower 

SURROUNDING 
ZONING: 

North and West 
• Rural Residential District  
• Suburban Residential District 
• Agriculture District 

South and East 
• Open Space 



Agenda Item B 
No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston 
November 1, 2022 
 

 Page 2 of 4 VA 22-22 

ACCESS: W. Highway 44 
FLOOD HAZARD: 100-year  
ZONING 
ORDINANCE 
REFERENCE: 

§§ 212, 315, and 509 

REPORT BY: Cody Sack 
 
II. RECOMMENDATION 

A. Staff recommends denial as there are no special conditions that would 
excuse literal enforcement of Pennington County Zoning Ordinance 
(PCZO) § 316.   

B. However, if the Board of Adjustment disagrees and approves the request, 
Staff recommends the following conditions be included: 

1. That the applicant submits a survey stamped by a registered 
surveyor which shows that the communications tower will be at 
least 48 feet from the property line. 

2. That prior to the mylar being filed at Register of Deeds, the 
applicant files a permanent deed restriction at Register of Deeds 
stating that no dwelling units, including Recreational Vehicle, be 
allowed within 340’ feet of the telecommunications tower; and; 

3. That the States Attorney review the deed restriction before it is 
filed at Register of Deeds. 

 
III. CRITERIA REVIEWED 

Prong One  
Whether granting the Variance runs counter to the public interest? 

Consider the entire public—not just 
the neighbors 

Findings 
 

1. Does it injure the neighborhood? Yes 
 

No 
✔ 

 

The request appears to be a threat of 
safety to the neighborhood.  The 
proposed support structure is 307-feet-
tall. There currently are no residences 
surrounding the communications tower. 

2. Does it conform to the 
neighborhood? 

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

The communications tower is existing 
on a subject property zoned Highway 
Service District 

3. Does it conform to the general 
purpose of the Zoning Ordinance?   

Yes 
 

No 
✔ 

Communications tower require a 
setback of 1.1 times the tower height to 
non-residential zoning districts.   

4. Does it conform to the 
Comprehensive Plan currently in 
place? 

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

Future Land Use is identified as 
Highway Service District. 
Communication towers are allowed in 
this zoning designation.   

5. Does it harm the public safety, 
health, or general welfare of the 
community?   

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

If a structure is placed within the fall 
zone it could harm the public safety, 
health, and general welfare of the 
community.  

 



Agenda Item B 
No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston 
November 1, 2022 
 

 Page 3 of 4 VA 22-22 

III. CRITERIA REVIEWED (CONTINUED) 
Prong Two 

Whether special conditions exist to grant a Variance? 
 
Physical conditions—not money or 
econ hardship 

 
Findings 

 
1. Does a special condition—

exceptional narrowness, 
topography, siting, or the like—
exist on the property?   

Yes 
 

No 
✔ 

The applicant has the option to plat the 
property in a way that does not require a 
Variance.  

a. If a special condition exists, 
does enforcing the Ordinance 
create an unnecessary 
hardship?   

Yes 
➖ 

No 
➖ 

No special condition exists.   

b. If a special circumstance 
exists, does granting the 
Variance observe the 
Ordinance’s spirit while doing 
substantial justice.   

Yes 
➖ 

No 
➖ 

No special condition exists.   

 
IV. PROPERTY HISTORY 

A. Conditional Use Permits: 
1. CU 08-10 was approved by the Planning Commission on August 

24, 2015 for a telecommunications tower. 
2. CU 19-33 was approved by the Board of Commissioners on 

August 4, 2020 for an RV park, to include: 
a. 22 RV sites. 
b. 1 gas station. 
c. 1 convenience store. 
d. 1 bar to serve beer and wine. 

3. CU 21-40 was approved by the Planning Commission on July 12, 
2021 to allow UTV rentals. 

B. Floodplain Development Permit (FDP): 
1. FP 20-40 was approved for an RV park on the subject property. 

C. Building Permits. 
1. Convenience store structure – built in 1960, per Department of 

Equalization records. 
2. Telecommunications Tower – 2010COBP-0412. 

D. On-site Wastewater Treatment System (OSWTS). 
1. South Dakota Department of Environment and Natural Resources 

approved an OSWTS plan for 22 RV sites and resort store on 
December 10, 2019. 

2. The size of the existing onsite wastewater treatment system is 
unknown.  

 
 
 
 



Agenda Item B 
No Bad Days Campground, LLC; Rob Livingston 
November 1, 2022 
 

 Page 4 of 4 VA 22-22 

V. INTERDEPARTMENTAL REVIEW 
A. County Highway Department, County Fire Administrator, County Planning, 

Emergency Services (911), County Ordinance Enforcement, Register of 
Deeds, Sheriff’s Office, and Department of Equalization, SD DOT: 

1. No objections or concerns were received.  
 

VI. ANALYSIS 
A. June 5th, 2022 – the Board of Commissioners approved: 

1. Preliminary Plat / PPL – 22-33 to subdivide the property into five 
(5) lots. 

2. Comprehensive Plan Amendment / CA 22-15 and Rezone / RZ 22-
21 to rezone three of the proposed lots to Rural Residential. 

B. PCZO § 316(C) states: The minimum distance from the property which a 
telecommunications facility is to be located on must be at least 500 feet 
from any residential zoning district, dwelling unit, or agriculture district 
containing less than 40 acres. 

C.  In all other instances, the minimum distance from the property which a 
telecommunications facility is to be located on must be at least 1.1 times 
the support structure’s height from property lines. 
1. The telecommunications tower is 307-feet-tall.  Therefore, 338 feet 

should be the minimum distance allowed from the tower to any 
residential dwelling unit on the proposed lots. 

2. A deed restriction should be filed stating that no future residential 
dwelling units be allowed within 340' of the telecommunication 
tower. 

 







© City of Rapid City GIS

398.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet398.0

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

199.000

1: 2,388

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Address Points

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

jason.theunissen
Typewritten Text
Subject Property

jason.theunissen
Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

398.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet398.0

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

199.000

1: 2,388

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Address Points

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

jason.theunissen
Typewritten Text
Subject Property

jason.theunissen
Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

398.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet398.0

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

199.000

1: 2,388

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Address Points

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

County Zoning Effective 6-16-2021

Agricuture

General Commercial

Heavy Industrial

Highway Service

Light Industrial

Low Density Residential NEW

Native American Lands

No Code

Open Space

Planned Unit Development

Ranchette

Rural Residential

Suburban Residential

Urban Residential

jason.theunissen
Typewritten Text
Subject Property

jason.theunissen
Line



Submitted by the applicant - added to packet



Updated map submitted by Applicant 



 

 

C 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT / CA 

22-20: Brian Schroeder; Davis Engineering - Agent  To amend the 
Compehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use from Agriculture District 
to Ranchette District in accordance with Sections 205, 206, and 508 of the 
Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Lot 5 Revised, Knotty Pine Subdivision, Section 33, T1S, R7E, BHM, 
Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended to continue Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment / CA 22-20 to the December 20, 2022, Board of 
Commissioner’s meeting to allow the applicants time to apply for and 
obtain an approved Subdivision Regulations Variance for increased lots 
on a dead-end road system.   
 
 
 



Agenda Item #11 
Brian Schroeder 
October 24, 2022 

Page 1 of 1 CA 22-20 

STAFF REPORT 

I. INTRODUCTION 
REQUEST: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT / CA 22-20: 

• To amend the Comprehensive Plan to change the Future
Land Use from Agriculture District to Ranchette District. 

APPLICANT: Brian Schroeder 
• 2985 Caminito Niquel, San Diego, CA  92117

AGENT: Davis Engineering 
• 1060 Kings Road, Rapid City, SD  57702

EXISTING LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION(S): 

Lot 5 Revised, Knotty Pine Subdivision, Section 33, T1S, R7E, 
BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

LOCATION: 24075 Barney Road 
SIZE: 14.17 acres 
TAX ID: 46026 

PHYSICAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

Forested / Hills 

CURRENT 
ZONING: 

Agriculture District 

EXISTING LAND 
USE: 

Vacant 

SURROUNDING 
ZONING: 

North 
• Agriculture District
• Planned Unit Development District

South, East, and West 
• Agriculture District

ACCESS: Barney Road 
FLOOD HAZARD: None 
ZONING 
ORDINANCE 
REFERENCE: 

§§ 205, 206, and 508 

REPORT BY: Cody Sack 

II. RECOMMENDATION
A. Staff recommends to continue Comprehensive Plan Amendment / CA 22-20 

to the December 12, 2022, Planning Commission meeting to allow the 
applicant time to apply for and obtain an approved Subdivision 
RegulationsVariance for increased lots on a dead-end road system.  



© City of Rapid City GIS

535.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet535.7

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

267.830

1: 3,214

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

535.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet535.7

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

267.830

1: 3,214

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

616.9

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet616.9

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

308.440

1: 3,701

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

Pennington County FLU

Agriculture

Commercial

Heavy Industrial

Highway Services

Light Industrial

Low Density Residential

No Code

Open Space

Native American Lands

Planned Unit Development

Ranchette

Rural Residential

Suburban Residential

Urban Residential



© City of Rapid City GIS

535.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet535.7

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

267.830

1: 3,214

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

County Zoning Effective 6-16-2

Agriculture

Commercial

Heavy Industrial

Highway Service

Light Industrial

Low Density Residential

No Code

Open Space

Planned Unit Development





Added to the BOC packet
Pictures submitted by 
Commissioner Rossknecht















 

 

D 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING OF REZONE / RZ 22-27:  Brian Schroeder; Davis 

Engineering - Agent. To rezone 14.17 acres from Agriculture District to 
Ranchette District in accordance with Sections 205, 206, and 508 of the 
Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Lot 5 Revised, Knotty Pine Subdivision, Section 33, T1S, R7E, BHM, 
Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended to continue Rezone / RZ 22-27 to the 
December 20, 2022, Board of Commissioner’s meeting to allow the 
applicants time to apply for and obtain an approved Subdivision 
Regulations Variance for increased lots on a dead-end road system.  

 
 
 
 



Agenda Item #12 
Brian Schroeder 
October 24, 2022 

Page 1 of 4 RZ 22-27 

STAFF REPORT 

I. INTRODUCTION 
REQUEST: REZONE / RZ 22-27: 

• To rezone 14.17 acres from Agriculture District to
Ranchette District. 

APPLICANT: Brian Schroeder 
• 2985 Caminito Niquel, San Diego, CA  92117

AGENT: Davis Engineering 
• 1060 Kings Road, Rapid City, SD  57702

EXISTING LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION(S): 

Lot 5 Revised, Knotty Pine Subdivision, Section 33, T1S, R7E, 
BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

LOCATION: 24075 Barney Road 
SIZE: 14.17 acres 
TAX ID: 46026 

PHYSICAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

Forested / Hills 

CURRENT 
ZONING: 

Agriculture District 

EXISTING LAND 
USE: 

Vacant 

SURROUNDING 
ZONING: 

North 
• Agriculture District
• Planned Unit Development District

South, East, and West 
• Agriculture District

ACCESS: Barney Road 
FLOOD HAZARD: None 
ZONING 
ORDINANCE 
REFERENCE: 

§§ 205, 206, and 508 

REPORT BY: Cody Sack 

II. RECOMMENDATION
A. Staff recommends to continue Rezone / RZ 22-27 to the December 12, 

2022, Planning Commission meeting to allow the applicant time to apply 
for and obtain an approved Subdivision Regulations Variance for increased 
lots on a dead-end road system. 



© City of Rapid City GIS

535.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet535.7

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

267.830

1: 3,214

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

535.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet535.7

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

267.830

1: 3,214

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

535.7

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet535.7

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

267.830

1: 3,214

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

County Zoning Effective 6-16-2

Agriculture

Commercial

Heavy Industrial

Highway Service

Light Industrial

Low Density Residential

No Code

Open Space

Planned Unit Development



© City of Rapid City GIS

616.9

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet616.9

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

308.440

1: 3,701

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

Pennington County FLU

Agriculture

Commercial

Heavy Industrial

Highway Services

Light Industrial

Low Density Residential

No Code

Open Space

Native American Lands

Planned Unit Development

Ranchette

Rural Residential

Suburban Residential

Urban Residential





Added to the BOC packet
Pictures submitted by 
Commissioner Rossknecht















 

 

E 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING OF MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

AMENDMENT / PU 22-13: Blue Wing Recreation Corporation; Ron 
Rossknecht. To amend the existing Planned Unit Development to reduce the 
required building setback from Blue Wing Road from 10 feet to 5 feet in 
accordance with Section 216 of the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 
Tract 0129A; All Less the North 10 acres and Less Tract 0129C of Malory Lode 
MS 1483; Part of Hudson Lode MS 1483; Part of Just Lode MS 1483; and Lot 1 
Less Right-of-Way of Boulder #3 Lode MS 1483 all located in Section 13, T1S, 
R5E, BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval of Major Planned Unit 
Development Amendment / PU 22-13 with the following nine (9) 
conditions: 
 
1. That the permitted uses of the Planned Unit Development be 

limited to a total of 116 recreational resort sites, which may be 
occupied by a mobile home, recreational vehicle, or stick-built 
dwelling unit, a watercraft storage area, 24’ x 24’ shop building, 
10’ x 16’ shed and accessory structures; 

 
2. That the addition of accessory structures, (not exempted by 

County requirements) be allowed through the issuance of a 
Building Permit which will include necessary site plans to be 
reviewed and approved by the Planning Director; 

 
3. That upon expansion of living space of any existing recreational 

resort site or the replacement of any recreational unit, the 
applicant shall submit information detailing the existing on-site 
wastewater treatment disposal system for review and approval by 
the County Environmental Planner.  Upgrades and replacement 
may be required upon determination of the County 
Environmental Planner; 

 



 

 

4. That a solid fence at least 5-foot-high be constructed and 
maintained along the west property line of the boat and watercraft 
storage area; 

 
5. That prior to the development of any future recreational sites, the 

applicant shall improve Blue Lead Mountain Road and that 
portion of Sheridan Loop from the intersection of Blue Lead 
Mountain Road to Bluewing Road to a driving surface of 16 feet 
with a 4-inch gravel surface and grades not to exceed 15 percent; 

 
6. That the setbacks for all future recreational sites and structures 

shall be a minimum of 20 feet between units, 5 feet from Bluewing 
Road, 10 feet from all other access roads, 0 feet from interior lot 
lines, 25 feet from exterior lot lines, and 58 feet from any existing 
and relocated Section Lines; 

 
7. That all future recreational sites have a minimum of 2 off-street 

parking spaces each measuring at least 9 feet by 18 feet and be 
maintained in a dust free manner; 

 
8. That all recreational sites be provided with 2 off-street parking 

spaces.  Existing and future parking spaces shall be either gravel 
or grass, provided the grass is maintained in a healthy condition.  
Should traffic increase to an amount so as to kill the grass in the 
parking area, the applicant shall gravel the parking spaces; and, 

 
9. That this Planned Unit Development be reviewed on a complaint 

basis only. 
 
 

 
 



Agenda Item #15 
Blue Wing Recreation Corporation; Ron Rossknecht 
October 24, 2022 
 

 Page 1 of 4 PU 22-13 

 STAFF REPORT  
 
I. INTRODUCTION 
REQUEST: MAJOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

AMENDMENT / PU 22-13 
• To amend the existing Blue Wing Planned Unit 

Development to reduce the required building setback to 
Bluewing Road from 10 feet to 5 feet. 

APPLICANT: Blue Wing Recreation Corporation 
• P.O. Box 9322, Rapid City, SD 57709 

AGENT: Ron Rossknecht 
• P.O. Box 9322, Rapid City, SD 57709 

EXISTING LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION(S): 

Tract 0129A; All Less the North 10 acres and Less Tract 0129C 
of Malory Lode MS 1483; Part of Hudson Lode MS 1483; Part 
of Just Lode MS 1483; and Lot 1 Less Right-of-Way of Boulder 
#3 Lode MS 1483 all located in Section 13, T1S, R5E, BHM, 
Pennington County, South Dakota. 

LOCATION: North of Calumet Road; South of Sheridan Lake. 
SIZE: 67.12 acres 
PHYSICAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

Forested / Hills 

TAX ID: 44774 / 44224 / 44226 / 44225 / 44228 
CURRENT 
ZONING: 

Planned Unit Development District 

EXISTING LAND 
USE: 

Blue Wing Resort 

SURROUNDING 
ZONING: 

North and West 
• Open Space 

East and South 
• Agriculture District  

ACCESS: Bluewing Road  
FLOOD HAZARD: Flood Zone A 
ZONING 
ORDINANCE: 

§ 216 

REPORT BY: Jason Theunissen 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item #15 
Blue Wing Recreation Corporation; Ron Rossknecht 
October 24, 2022 

Page 2 of 4 PU 22-13 

II. RECOMMENDATION
A. Staff finds no significant issues with the applicant’s request as it appears to 

be in harmony with existing lots and current land uses in the area. 
B. Staff recommends approval of Major Planned Unit Development 

Amendment / PU 22-13, with the following conditions: 
1. That the permitted uses of the Planned Unit Development be limited

to a total of 116 recreational resort sites, which may be occupied by a
mobile home, recreational vehicle, or stick-built dwelling unit, a
watercraft storage area, 24’ x 24’ shop building, 10’ x 16’ shed and
accessory structures;

2. That the addition of accessory structures, (not exempted by County
requirements) be allowed through the issuance of a Building Permit
which will include necessary site plans to be reviewed and approved
by the Planning Director;

3. That upon expansion of living space of any existing recreational
resort site or the replacement of any recreational unit, the applicant
shall submit information detailing the existing on-site wastewater
treatment disposal system for review and approval by the County
Environmental Planner.  Upgrades and replacement may be required
upon determination of the County Environmental Planner;

4. That a solid fence at least 5-foot-high be constructed and maintained
along the west property line of the boat and watercraft storage area;

5. That prior to the development of any future recreational sites, the
applicant shall improve Blue Lead Mountain Road and that portion of
Sheridan Loop from the intersection of Blue Lead Mountain Road to
Bluewing Road to a driving surface of 16 feet with a 4-inch gravel
surface and grades not to exceed 15 percent;

6. That the setbacks for all future recreational sites and structures shall
be a minimum of 20 feet between units, 5 feet from Bluewing Road,
10 feet from all other access roads, 0 feet from interior lot lines, 25
feet from exterior lot lines, and 58 feet from any existing and
relocated Section Lines;

7. That all future recreational sites have a minimum of 2 off-street
parking spaces each measuring at least 9 feet by 18 feet and be
maintained in a dust free manner;

8. That all recreational sites be provided with 2 off-street parking
spaces.  Existing and future parking spaces shall be either gravel or
grass, provided the grass is maintained in a healthy condition.  Should
traffic increase to an amount so as to kill the grass in the parking area,
the applicant shall gravel the parking spaces; and,

9. That this Planned Unit Development be reviewed on a complaint
basis only.



Agenda Item #15 
Blue Wing Recreation Corporation; Ron Rossknecht 
October 24, 2022 
 

 Page 3 of 4 PU 22-13 

III. CRITERIA REVIEWED 
The Planning Commission approved Minor Planned Unit Development Amendment / 
PU 21-13 on October 11, 2021, with the following conditions: 
Criteria Findings 
1. That the permitted uses of the Planned Unit Development be limited to 

a total of 116 recreational resort sites, which may be occupied by a 
mobile home, recreational vehicle, or stick-built dwelling unit, a 
watercraft storage area, 24’ x 24’ shop building, 10’ x 16’ shed and 
accessory structures; 

Yes 
✔ 

No  

2. That the addition of accessory structures, (not exempted by County 
requirements) be allowed through the issuance of a building permit 
which will include necessary site plans to be reviewed and approved 
by the Planning Director; 

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

3. That upon expansion of living space of any existing recreational resort 
site or the replacement of any recreational unit, the applicant shall 
submit information detailing the existing on-site wastewater treatment 
disposal system for review and approval by the County Environmental 
Planner.  Upgrades and replacement may be required upon 
determination of the County Environmental Planner; 

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

4. That a solid fence at least 5-foot-high be constructed and maintained 
along the west property line of the boat and watercraft storage area; 

Yes 
✔ 

No  

5. That prior to the development of any future recreational sites, the 
applicant shall improve Blue Lead Mountain Road and that portion of 
Sheridan Loop from the intersection of Blue Lead Mountain Road to 
Bluewing Road to a driving surface of 16 feet with a 4-inch gravel 
surface and grades not to exceed 15 percent; 

Yes 
✔ 

No  

6. That the setbacks for all future recreational sites and structures shall 
be a minimum of 20 feet between units, 10 feet from access roads, 0 
feet from interior lot lines, 25 feet from exterior lot lines, and 58 feet 
from any existing and relocated Section Lines; 

Yes 
 

No 
✔ 

7. That all future recreational sites have a minimum of 2 off-street 
parking spaces each measuring at least 9 feet by 18 feet and be 
maintained in a dust free manner; 

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

8. That all recreational sites be provided with 2 off-street parking spaces.  
Existing and future parking spaces shall be either gravel or grass, 
provided the grass is maintained in a healthy condition.  Should traffic 
increase to an amount so as to kill the grass in the parking area, the 
applicant shall gravel the parking spaces; and, 

Yes 
✔ 

No 
 

9. That this planned unit development be reviewed on a complaint basis 
only. 

Yes 
➖ 

No 
➖ 

 
 
 
 
 



Agenda Item #15 
Blue Wing Recreation Corporation; Ron Rossknecht 
October 24, 2022 
 

 Page 4 of 4 PU 22-13 

IV. INTERDEPARTMENTAL REVIEW 
A. The request was routed to: County Highway Department, County Fire 

Administrator, County Planning, Emergency Services (911), Black Hills 
Energy, and the Bluewing Road District. 

1. County Fire Administrator 
a. Reduction of setbacks is a bad idea, affects the size of 

apparatus responding, spacing to buildings and 
improvements just to name a few. 

i. Staff Comment: See Analysis. 
2. No other objections or concerns were received. 

 
V. ANALYSIS 

A. The applicant originally requested to reduce setbacks to all interior roads, 
from 10-feet to 5-feet, in order to bring existing structures into compliance. 

B. September 26, 2022 – The Planning Commission continued Minor Planned 
Unit Development Amendment / PU 22-13 to the October 24, 2022 
Planning Commission meeting in order to allow the applicant time to revise 
the request. 

C. The applicant is now requesting that the reduced setback, from 10-feet to 5-
feet, only apply to Bluewing Road.  All other access roads will require a 10-
foot setback. 

D. Condition #6 has been changed to: 
1. That the setbacks for all future recreational sites and structures 

shall be a minimum of 20 feet between units, 5 feet from Bluewing 
Road, 10 feet from all other access roads, 0 feet from interior lot 
lines, 25 feet from exterior lot lines, and 58 feet from any existing 
and relocated Section Lines. 



© City of Rapid City GIS

1,619.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet1,619.0

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

809.490

1: 9,714

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

1,619.0

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet1,619.0

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

809.490

1: 9,714

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line



© City of Rapid City GIS

1,260.4

THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION

NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet

Feet1,260.4

Map Notes:

Legend

This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for

reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,

current, or otherwise reliable.

630.180

1: 7,562

Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer

Roads

Interstate

US highway

SD highway

County highway

Main road

Minor arterial

Collector

Ramp

Paved road

Unpaved road

Trail

Driveway

Alley

Unimproved road

Airport Runway

Not yet coded

Section Lines 0-25k

Tax Parcels

Lot Lines

<Null>

Lot Line

Parcel Line

County Zoning Effective 6-16-2021

Agricuture

General Commercial

Heavy Industrial

Highway Service

Light Industrial

Low Density Residential NEW

Native American Lands

No Code

Open Space

Planned Unit Development

Ranchette

Rural Residential

Suburban Residential

Urban Residential

jason.theunissen
Typewritten Text
Subject Properties

jason.theunissen
Line





From: Rufledt Jr Ted
To: Theunissen Jason; Rausch Kelsey; Selby Kailey; Harvey Jerome
Subject: RE: (DUE 9.9.22) Minor PUD - Bluewing
Date: Thursday, September 8, 2022 10:35:14 AM
Attachments: MASTER ROUTING DOC 8.25.22.pdf

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

Setbacks don’t impact 911 thus, no comments from me on this.
 
I did copy this to Jerome as it would likely impact a fire response more than any one else.
 
TR
 

From: Theunissen Jason <Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 7, 2022 8:19 AM
To: Rausch Kelsey <kelseyr@pennco.org>; Selby Kailey <kailey.selby@pennco.org>; Theunissen
Jason <Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org>; Usera, Rob <Rob.Usera@blackhillscorp.com>; Rufledt Jr Ted
<ted@pennco.org>
Subject: (DUE 9.9.22) Minor PUD - Bluewing
 
Good morning,
 
Please review the attached routing and provide any comments by the indicated date.  Thanks!
 
Jason
 
Jason Theunissen, CFM, CISEC-IT
Assistant Director
Planning and Zoning Department
Pennington County Administration Building
130 Kansas City Street, Suite 200
Rapid City, SD 57701
Phone: 605-394-2186

       

 

mailto:ted@pennco.org
mailto:Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org
mailto:kelseyr@pennco.org
mailto:kailey.selby@pennco.org
mailto:jerome.harvey@pennco.org
https://www.pennco.org/



PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
                                                  ROUTING SHEET 


 


Contact: Jason Theunissen        Phone: 605-394-2186 – 1405    Email: jason.theunissen@pennco.org 
   


              
 


 


RETURN COMMENTS NO LATER THAN: 


Request: Minot PUD Amendment 
  
TAX ID(S): 44224, 5334, 44225, 44227, 44636, 44635, 44226, 44637, 44774, 44228, 


44775 
 
 


☐ CO HIGHWAY DEPT. – DRAINAGE (SEAN) 
☐ CO HIGHWAY DEPT. – APPROACH (KAILEY) 
☐ CO FIRE ADMINISTRATOR 
☐ CO PLANNER – (ADDRESSING) 
☐ CO ENV. PLANNER – (OSWTS) 
☐ CO FLOODPLAIN MANAGER – (SFHA) 
☐ CO ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT 
☐ CO NATURAL RESOURCES 
☐ CO SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
☐ REGISTER OF DEEDS 
☐ DEPARTMENT OF EQUALIZATION 
☐ STATE’S ATTORNEY OFFICE 
 


 
 


☐ EMERGENCY SERVICES (9-1-1) 


☐ RC COMMUNITY PLANNING 
☐ RC LONG RANGE PLANNING 
☐ RC PUBLIC WORKS (OSWTS) 
☐ RC ENGINEERING (PLATTING) 
☐ U.S. FOREST SERVICE (JACOB) 
☐ SD DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
☐ SD DEPT. ENV. NAT. RESOURCES 
☐ BLACK HILLS ELECTRIC COOP. (JESSE) 
☐ BLACK HILLS ENERGY (ROB) 
☐ WEST RIVER ELECTRIC (MATT) 
☐ CITY OF BOX ELDER PLANNING 
 


 
 


☐ CITY OF NEW UNDERWOOD  
     PLANNING 
☐ CITY OF HILL CITY PLANNING 
☐ TOWN OF KEYSTONE PLANNING 
☐ EFAB COMMUNITY PLANNING 
☐ ELLSWORTH DEV. AUTHORITY 
☐ RC REGIONAL AIRPORT 
☐ ROAD DISTRICT:  
☐ SANITARY DISTRICT: 
☐ OTHER:   
 


GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: To reduce the setbacks from access roads from 10’ to 5’ in 
Planned Unit Development. 


DATE FILED:  August 30, 2022 


MEETING DATES: Planning Commission: September 29, 2022      


OWNER / APPLICANT: Blue Wing Recreation Corporation / Ron Rossknecht 


EXISTING LEGAL DESCRIPTION: All Less the North 10 acres and less Tract 0129C of Malory Lode MS 
1483 of Section 13, T1S, R5E; Less N10 Acres of Ajax #1 Lode MS 1483; Part of Ajax #3 Lode MS 1483; Part 
of Just MS 1483; Part of Hudson Lode MS 1483 of Section 18, T1S, R6E; Part of Just Lode MS 1483; Part of 
Ajax #3 Lode MS 1483; Part of Hudson Lode MS 1483; Tract 0129A; Boulder #3 Lode MS 1483 of Section 13, 
T1S, R5E; BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 


CURRENT ZONING: Planned Unit Development         ZONING SECTION(S): 216 


SITE LOCATION: Blue Wing Resort 


COMMENTS: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


_____________________________________________________________________________________


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


9.9.22 



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

x



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

x



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

x



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

x



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

x



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

r







© City of Rapid City GIS


1,138.9


THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION


NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet


Feet1,138.9


Map Notes:


Legend


This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for


reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,


current, or otherwise reliable.


569.440


1: 6,833


Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer


Roads


Interstate


US highway


SD highway


County highway


Main road


Minor arterial


Collector


Ramp


Paved road


Unpaved road


Trail


Driveway


Alley


Unimproved road


Airport Runway


Not yet coded


Address Points


Section Lines 0-25k


Tax Parcels


Lot Lines


<Null>


Lot Line


Parcel Line


Floodway


Flood Hazard Area


100 Year


500 Year


500 Year - Protected by levee


Out


Not Studied



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

Subject Properties



jason.theunissen

Line







© City of Rapid City GIS


1,138.9


THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION


NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet


Feet1,138.9


Map Notes:


Legend


This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for


reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,


current, or otherwise reliable.


569.440


1: 6,833


Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer


Roads


Interstate


US highway


SD highway


County highway


Main road


Minor arterial


Collector


Ramp


Paved road


Unpaved road


Trail


Driveway


Alley


Unimproved road


Airport Runway


Not yet coded


Address Points


Section Lines 0-25k


Tax Parcels


Lot Lines


<Null>


Lot Line


Parcel Line


County Zoning Effective 6-16-2021


Agriculture


Commercial


Heavy Industrial


Highway Service


Light Industrial


Low Density Residential


No Code


Open Space


Planned Unit Development


Native American Lands


Ranchette


Rural Residential


Suburban Residential


Urban Residential



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

Subject Properties



jason.theunissen

Line







© City of Rapid City GIS


1,138.9


THIS MAP IS NOT TO BE USED FOR NAVIGATION


NAD_1983_StatePlane_South_Dakota_South_FIPS_4002_Feet


Feet1,138.9


Map Notes:


Legend


This map is a user generated static output from an Internet mapping site and is for


reference only. Data layers that appear on this map may or may not be accurate,


current, or otherwise reliable.


569.440


1: 6,833


Rapid City-Pennington County GIS
Permit Buffer


Roads


Interstate


US highway


SD highway


County highway


Main road


Minor arterial


Collector


Ramp


Paved road


Unpaved road


Trail


Driveway


Alley


Unimproved road


Airport Runway


Not yet coded


Address Points


Section Lines 0-25k


Tax Parcels


Lot Lines


<Null>


Lot Line


Parcel Line


Floodway


Flood Hazard Area


100 Year


500 Year


500 Year - Protected by levee


Out


Not Studied



jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

Subject Properties



jason.theunissen

Line







jason.theunissen

Typewritten Text

To reduct setbacks to internal roads from 10 feet to 5 feet














From: Rausch Kelsey
To: Theunissen Jason; Selby Kailey; Usera, Rob; Rufledt Jr Ted
Subject: RE: (DUE 9.9.22) Minor PUD - Bluewing
Date: Wednesday, September 7, 2022 9:36:58 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png
image004.png

No addressing concerns at this time. This PUD Amendment will fix multiple properties that are
encroaching into the setback to the interior roads.
 

Kelsey Rausch
Planner / Addressing Coordinator
Planning & Zoning Department
Pennington County Administration Building
130 Kansas City Street, Suite 200
Rapid City, SD 57701
(605) 394-2186
kelseyr@pennco.org
 

From: Theunissen Jason <Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org> 
Sent: Wednesday, September 7, 2022 8:19 AM
To: Rausch Kelsey <kelseyr@pennco.org>; Selby Kailey <kailey.selby@pennco.org>; Theunissen
Jason <Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org>; Usera, Rob <Rob.Usera@blackhillscorp.com>; Rufledt Jr Ted
<ted@pennco.org>
Subject: (DUE 9.9.22) Minor PUD - Bluewing
 
Good morning,
 
Please review the attached routing and provide any comments by the indicated date.  Thanks!
 
Jason
 
Jason Theunissen, CFM, CISEC-IT
Assistant Director
Planning and Zoning Department
Pennington County Administration Building
130 Kansas City Street, Suite 200
Rapid City, SD 57701
Phone: 605-394-2186

       

mailto:kelseyr@pennco.org
mailto:Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org
mailto:kailey.selby@pennco.org
mailto:Rob.Usera@blackhillscorp.com
mailto:ted@pennco.org
mailto:kelseyr@pennco.org
https://www.pennco.org/





PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
                                                  ROUTING SHEET 

 

Contact: Jason Theunissen        Phone: 605-394-2186 – 1405    Email: jason.theunissen@pennco.org 
   

              
 

 

RETURN COMMENTS NO LATER THAN: 

Request: Minot PUD Amendment 
  
TAX ID(S): 44224, 5334, 44225, 44227, 44636, 44635, 44226, 44637, 44774, 44228, 

44775 
 
 

☐ CO HIGHWAY DEPT. – DRAINAGE (SEAN) 
☐ CO HIGHWAY DEPT. – APPROACH (KAILEY) 
☐ CO FIRE ADMINISTRATOR 
☐ CO PLANNER – (ADDRESSING) 
☐ CO ENV. PLANNER – (OSWTS) 
☐ CO FLOODPLAIN MANAGER – (SFHA) 
☐ CO ORDINANCE ENFORCEMENT 
☐ CO NATURAL RESOURCES 
☐ CO SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
☐ REGISTER OF DEEDS 
☐ DEPARTMENT OF EQUALIZATION 
☐ STATE’S ATTORNEY OFFICE 
 

 
 

☐ EMERGENCY SERVICES (9-1-1) 

☐ RC COMMUNITY PLANNING 
☐ RC LONG RANGE PLANNING 
☐ RC PUBLIC WORKS (OSWTS) 
☐ RC ENGINEERING (PLATTING) 
☐ U.S. FOREST SERVICE (JACOB) 
☐ SD DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
☐ SD DEPT. ENV. NAT. RESOURCES 
☐ BLACK HILLS ELECTRIC COOP. (JESSE) 
☐ BLACK HILLS ENERGY (ROB) 
☐ WEST RIVER ELECTRIC (MATT) 
☐ CITY OF BOX ELDER PLANNING 
 

 
 

☐ CITY OF NEW UNDERWOOD  
     PLANNING 
☐ CITY OF HILL CITY PLANNING 
☐ TOWN OF KEYSTONE PLANNING 
☐ EFAB COMMUNITY PLANNING 
☐ ELLSWORTH DEV. AUTHORITY 
☐ RC REGIONAL AIRPORT 
☐ ROAD DISTRICT:  
☐ SANITARY DISTRICT: 
☐ OTHER:   
 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: To reduce the setbacks from access roads from 10’ to 5’ in 
Planned Unit Development. 

DATE FILED:  August 30, 2022 

MEETING DATES: Planning Commission: September 29, 2022      

OWNER / APPLICANT: Blue Wing Recreation Corporation / Ron Rossknecht 

EXISTING LEGAL DESCRIPTION: All Less the North 10 acres and less Tract 0129C of Malory Lode MS 
1483 of Section 13, T1S, R5E; Less N10 Acres of Ajax #1 Lode MS 1483; Part of Ajax #3 Lode MS 1483; Part 
of Just MS 1483; Part of Hudson Lode MS 1483 of Section 18, T1S, R6E; Part of Just Lode MS 1483; Part of 
Ajax #3 Lode MS 1483; Part of Hudson Lode MS 1483; Tract 0129A; Boulder #3 Lode MS 1483 of Section 13, 
T1S, R5E; BHM, Pennington County, South Dakota. 

CURRENT ZONING: Planned Unit Development         ZONING SECTION(S): 216 

SITE LOCATION: Blue Wing Resort 

COMMENTS: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

9.9.22 

x

x
x

x

x

r

Typically the Highway Department is opposed to reducing setbacks that abut roads, but as this is in the

Blue Wing Road District the Highway Department has no comment. SS & KS 9/7/22



From: Mark Balding
To: Theunissen Jason
Subject: Re: FW: (DUE 9.9.22) Minor PUD - Bluewing
Date: Friday, September 9, 2022 8:27:37 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png
image004.png

CAUTION: This email is from an outside source. Use caution before opening attachments,
clicking links or providing confidential information. 

Jason,
Blue Wing Road District is okay with the proposed setback change from 10' to 5'.
Mark Balding 
Blue Wing Road District

On Thu, 8 Sept 2022 at 16:59, Theunissen Jason <Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org> wrote:

Mark,

 

Thanks for taking my call today.  Please review the attached routing and provide a response
on behalf of the Blue Wing Road District.  Thanks again!

 

Jason

 

Jason Theunissen, CFM, CISEC-IT

Assistant Director

Planning and Zoning Department

Pennington County Administration Building

130 Kansas City Street, Suite 200

Rapid City, SD 57701

Phone: 605-394-2186

       

mailto:mbalding45@gmail.com
mailto:Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org
mailto:Jason.Theunissen@pennco.org
https://www.pennco.org/





 

 

F 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-09: 

Pennington County. To add Section 517 “Special Permitted Uses” [to add 
Section 517 “Special Permitted Uses”] to the Pennington County Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment 
/ OA 22-09. 

 
 
 



Agenda Item #17 
Pennington County 
October 24, 2022 
 

1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
REQUEST: ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-09: To 

add Section 517 – Special Permitted Uses to the 
Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 
REPORT BY:  Brittney Molitor 
 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION:   To add Section 517 – Special Permitted Uses. 
 
PROPOSED TEXT: 
 
SECTION 517 – SPECIAL PERMITTED USES 
 
A.  Authority. 
 

Pursuant to SDCL chapter 11-2, SDCL chapter 7-18A, SDCL § 11-2-17.5, SDCL § 11-2-
17.6, and SDCL § 11-2-65.1, Pennington County may establish a process for certification 
of certain uses upon an applicant meeting specified criteria for that use. 

 
B. Applicability.  
 

All uses designated as a ‘Special Permitted Use’ are required to obtain a permit pursuant 
to this Section, if the applicant demonstrates that all specified criteria are met. Uses that 
are not a use by right and cannot meet the specified criteria are required to obtain a 
Conditional Use Permit pursuant to the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance (PCZO) § 
510. 

 
C. Permit Process and Notice Requirements.  
 

1. Application. Special Permitted Use Applications may be obtained from the 
Planning Department. Applications must be complete prior to consideration and 
include all of the following:  
 
a.  Application fee;  
b.  Name, mailing address, e-mail address, and telephone number of the 

applicant and property owner, and any authorized agent (if applicable);  
c.  Legal description, street address, or other description of real property that 

clearly identifies the real property which is the subject of the application;  
d.  Current zoning district and surrounding zoning;  
e.  Size and physical description of the subject property;  
f.  Site plan showing location and yard setback distance for proposed and all 

existing buildings or structures. The site plan must also include location of 
wells, drain fields, septic tanks, recorded easements, driveways, and Special 
Flood Hazard areas;  



Agenda Item #17 
Pennington County 
October 24, 2022 
 

2 
 

g.  Utilities, size of any on-site wastewater treatment system, and water source;  
h.  Current use and requested Special Permitted Use;  
i.  Proof that the request for the use meets specified criteria set forth in 

subsection D “Special Permitted Uses”;  
j. Proof of the Notice, including the mailing date, as required by PCZO § 

517(C)(2);  
k.  Signature of applicant or authorized agent (if applicable) and property 

owner; and, 
l.  Any other information and documentation as required by the Planning 

Department in making its determination.  
 

2.  Notice.  
 

a. Applicants of a Special Permitted Use must notify all adjacent (touching or 
sharing a common boundary) property owners to the subject property of the 
pending application. The Planning Department will determine and provide 
a list of adjacent property owners, based upon Department of Equalization 
records. 

b. Notice must be sent by first class mail.  
c. The applicant must use the “Application and Notice of Special Permitted 

Use” letters provided by the Planning Department.  
d. Notice must be sent 10 or more days before the date of decision by the 

Planning Director.   
 

D.  Special Permitted Uses Defined. The following are Special Permitted Uses: 
 
1. Short-term uses. All uses, except those herein designated, that exist or operate for 

less than 180-consectutive calendar days out of a year in any zoning district. 
Contractor’s Storage, Staging, and Laydown Yards are not Special Permitted Uses 
and may be required to comply with PCZO § 510. 

 
2. Temporary Residence in an RV. Residing in a Recreational Vehicle for no more 

than two (2) years, while constructing a single-family residence. 
 
3. Certain accessory structures. Accessory structures as a principal use in residential 

districts or in an agriculture district on lots not taxed by the Department of 
Equalization as agriculture. 

 
4. Churches. Churches in all zoning districts. 
 
5. Public service structures. Public Service Structures in all zoning districts. 

  a. Police and Fire Stations. 
b. Well houses and Pump Stations (for community or public potable water). 

  c. Lift Stations (for community or public wastewater systems). 
 



Agenda Item #17 
Pennington County 
October 24, 2022 
 

3 
 

E. General Criteria for all Special Permitted Uses. The following are criteria that every 
Special Permitted Use is required to demonstrate conformity with: 

 
1. Conformity. The applicant must demonstrate that the requested use conforms to one 

or more of the use(s) described in PCZO § 517(D). Depending on the request, an 
applicant may be required to apply for more than one Special Use Permit. 

 
2. Underlying zoning regulations applicable. The property must be in compliance 

with all applicable regulations of the district in which it is located. 
 
3. Necessary Improvements. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other 

necessary site improvements are provided. 
 
4. Parking. All parking requirements set forth in PCZO § 310 are met. 
 
5. Ordinance violations. The property has no active or pending ordinance violations.  
 

F. Specific Criteria for certain Special Permitted Uses. 
  
 1.  Temporary Residence in an RV: 
 

a. The single-family residence must be constructed within two (2) years of 
approval of the Special Permitted Use.  

b. This Special Permitted Use automatically expires two (2) years following 
completion of any final appeal of the decision. 

c. That the wastewater from the RV be properly disposed of at all times by 
utilizing the existing On-Site Wastewater Treatment System on the 
property. 

d. That only 1 Recreational Vehicle (RV) allowed to be utilized as temporary 
living quarters. 

e. That the RV not be utilized as a nightly or weekly vacation rental and only 
be used by the property owner for personal use. 

 
2. Accessory Structure: 
 

a. That the accessory structure is not to be used for living quarters. 
b. That the accessory structure is not for commercial use. 

 
3. Churches or Public Service Structures: 
 

a. That all outdoor lighting shall continually be reflected within the property 
boundaries so as to not shine onto adjoining properties and rights-of-way 
and to not be a hazard to the passing motorist or constitute a nuisance of any 
kind. 

b. That the physical design and compatibility with surrounding structures in 
mass, scale and style, design and architectural detailing. 

c. That all signage meets the requirements of § 312. 



Agenda Item #17 
Pennington County 
October 24, 2022 
 

4 
 

G. Determination on a Special Permitted Use. 
 

1. Time. An initial application for a Special Permitted Use will be reviewed and 
determined by the Planning Department for conformity with the criteria within 30 
days unless withdrawn by the applicant or good cause exists for the delay.  

 
2. Standard of Review. A use certified as a Special Permitted Use under the Zoning 

Ordinance shall be approved by the Planning Director or his/her designee, if the 
applicant demonstrates that all specified criteria are met. 

 
H.  Appeal.  
 

1. Time.  An appeal of a decision granting or denying a Special Permitted Use must 
be brought as an appeal to the Board of Adjustment within twenty-one (21) days of 
the date of determination and in accordance with SDCL Chapter 11-2.  

 
2. Stay of Proceedings. Any and all construction and work for the purpose of a Special 

Permitted Use must cease upon the filing of an appeal, pursuant to SDCL § 11-2-
56. 

 
I.  Review of Special Permitted Use.  
 

1. Circumstances of review. Special Permitted Uses are subject to review by the 
Planning Department for compliance with the designated criteria. A review will 
occur upon the following circumstances: 

 
a. It is designated as criteria of approval; or  
b. The Planning Department receives a substantiated complaint that the 

property is in violation of any Zoning Ordinance or designated criteria. 
 
2. Determination. In issuing a determination, the Planning Director or his/her 

designee may: 
 

a. approve the Special Permitted Use subject to the designated criteria; 
b. continue the review for no more than 90 days for the applicant to come into 

compliance with the designated criteria; or,  
c. terminate the Special Permitted Use in accordance PCZO § 517(L). 

 
J.  Expiration. A Special Permitted Use Permit expires if:  

 
1.  Ceasing for one year or more. The Special Permitted Use for which the Permit was 

granted ceases for a period of one (1) year or more;  
 

2.  Never established use. The Special Permitted Use for which the Permit was granted 
was not established within two (2) years from date of approval; or, 

 
3. Expiration as criteria. The criteria designate an automatic expiration period.  



Agenda Item #17 
Pennington County 
October 24, 2022 
 

5 
 

K.  Building Permit.  
 

If a Building Permit application is submitted for the purpose of a Special Permitted Use, 
the Building Permit may be issued only upon approval of the Special Permitted Use 
application.  
 

L.  Termination of Special Permitted Use Permit.  
 

Any Special Permitted Use approved under the provisions of PCZO § 517 must be 
established and conducted in conformity with the designated criteria outlined in this PCZO 
§ 517. Failure to comply with the criteria is cause for termination of the Permit.  

 
1. Causes for Termination. The Planning Director will provide a Notice of 

Termination to the Permit holder if:  
 

a. the owner or applicant has failed repeatedly to comply with the stated 
criteria of the approved Permit; or,  

b. the continued Special Permitted Use is a threat to public health, safety, or 
general welfare.  

 
2. Notice. The Notice of Termination shall be given, in writing, to the Permit holder.  

 
3. Response. The Permit holder will have 14 days to respond from the date of mailing 

of the Notice of Termination with proposed corrective actions.  If the corrective 
action is not completed within 60 days of the Notice of Termination, the Permit will 
be terminated.   

 
4. Appeal of Termination. The Permit holder may appeal the decision to terminate the 

permit in accordance with § 517(H). 
 
M.  Enforcement. 
 

Failure to comply with the stated criteria of a Special Permitted Use Permit is a violation 
of Pennington County Zoning Ordinance and subject to the enforcement provisions of 
PCZO § 514 and may be declared a nuisance pursuant to Pennington County Ordinance 
No. 106. 

 
 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-09. 



 

 

G 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-10: 

Pennington County. To amend Section 204 “General District Provisions” [to 
amend and supersede the existing 204 “General District Provisions”] of the 
Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment 
/ OA 22-10. 

 
 
 



Agenda Item #18 
Pennington County 
October 24, 2022 
 

1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
REQUEST: ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-10: To 

amend Section 204 – General District Provisions of 
the Pennington County Zoning Ordinance. 

 
REPORT BY:  Brittney Molitor 
 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION:   To amend Section 204 – General District Provisions. 
 
PROPOSED TEXT: 
 
SECTION 204 - GENERAL DISTRICT PROVISIONS 
 
The following provisions apply to all zoning districts and further modify or define provisions 
within each district. 
 
C. Temporary Uses.  To qualify as a temporary use, the use must be (1) seasonal or transient 

in nature, (2) neither permanent nor alters the intent of the zoning district, and (3) lasts less 
more than 180-consecutive calendar days, but less than 365-consecutive calendar days. A 
Special Use Permit or Conditional Use Permit may be required before engaging in a 
temporary use. Each zoning district requires a Conditional Use Permit before engaging in 
a temporary use. 

 
 
 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-10. 



 

 

H 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: PUBLIC HEARING OF ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-11: 

Pennington County. To amend Section 103 “Definitions” [to amend and 
supersede the existing 103 “Definitions”] of the Pennington County Zoning 
Ordinance. 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission recommended approval of Ordinance Amendment 
/ OA 22-11. 
 
 

 



Agenda Item #19 
Pennington County 
October 24, 2022 
 

1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
REQUEST: ORDINANCE AMENDMENT / OA 22-11: To 

amend Section 103 – Definitions of the Pennington 
County Zoning Ordinance. 

 
REPORT BY:  Brittney Molitor 
 
GENERAL DESCRIPTION:   To amend Section 103 – Definitions. 
 
PROPOSED TEXT: 
 
SECTION 103 - DEFINITIONS 
 
B. Definitions. 
 

144. Temporary Structure or Use.  Land uses and structures that are (a) needed or are in 
place for only short periods of time; (b) associated with a holiday or special event; 
or (c) accessory to a permitted use and transitory in nature.  A temporary structure 
or use cannot be used placed for more than 30 days 60-consecutive days in a 
calendar year.  A Special Use Permit is required for a temporary use operating up 
to 180-consecutive calendar days.  A Conditional Use Permit is required for a 
temporary use operating more than 180-consecutive calendar days 

 
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of Ordinance Amendment / OA 22-11. 



 

 

I 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: PENNINGTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
FROM: PENNINGTON COUNTY PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
 
ITEM: REQUEST FOR RELEASE OF SURETY / FINAL PLAT 21-91:  Sudbury 

Ranch Land Holding, LLC / Casey Skyberg.  Improvements for the roads and 
utilities have been completed for Lot 2R and Lots 3 through 11, Sudbury 
Ranch Subdivision, Section 21, T1S, R7E, BHM, Pennington County, South 
Dakota, in the amount of $155,000.00. 

 
 



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

130 Kansas City St., SUITE 200 • RAPID CITY, SD 57701 
605-394-2186 • FAX 605-394-6016 

 
 
 

 
TO: Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Jason Theunissen, Assistant Director 
 
DATE:  10.26.22 (Meeting date: 11.1.22) 
 
RE: Request for Release of Surety for Sudbury Ranch Subdivision – Casey Skyberg 

 
Planning and Zoning has verified, through site visits with the contractor (Savvy Designs, Inc.) 
the agent (Dana Foreman of KLJ), and County Highway (Sean Smith), that the required road 
construction, drainage improvements, and utility installations for Final Plat / FP 21-91 have been 
met. 
 
Staff recommends that the Board of Commissioners release the surety in the amount of 
$155,000.00. 
 

 



PENNINGTON
COUNTY

11 Pennington County Highway Department
3601 Cambell Street . Rapid City, SD 5n07-0724

Phone: (605) 394.2766. Fax: (605) 394-2168
www.Pennco.org

MENIO

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

DATE: NOVEMBER 1,2022

TO

RE

FROM: SEAN SMITH 5'
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT

SUDBURY RANCH SUBDIVISION

Sudbury Ranch Subdivision was completed by Sawy Designs, Inc. It has been inspected and has

been found to meet Ordinance 14 standards. All punch list items have been completed and
verified through site visits and inspections.

The roads and drainage have been completed to the satisfaction ofthe Highway Department,
therefore our Department has no objection to the release of the surety bond.

SS:cag



Bid Item Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Total
1 Mobilization 0.12 LS $15,000.00 $1,824.56
2 Excavation Grading 0 CY $2.50 $0.00
3 Storm Sewer Pipe 0 LF $80.00 $0.00
4 Storm Sewer End Section 0 EA $2,500.00 $0.00
5 12" Thick Roadway Aggregate Placement 7,462 Ton $5.00 $37,310.00
6 Roadway Sign 8 EA $450.00 $3,600.00
7 3" HDPE Water Main Install 3,675 LF $15.00 $55,125.00
8 Flushing Hydrant Install 2 EA $1,500.00 $3,000.00
9 Service & Water Meter Install 9 EA $1,000.00 $9,000.00
10 3" Fitting Install 3 EA $250.00 $750.00
11 3" Gate Valve Install 5 EA $1,000.00 $5,000.00
12 Water Well 0 LS $100,000.00 $0.00
13 Erosion Control Wattles 0 LF $4.00 $0.00
14 Riprap Type B 18 CY $40.00 $720.00
15 Rock Check Dam 9 EA $200.00 $1,800.00
16 Erosion Blanket Type 2 0 SY $10.00 $0.00
17 Vehicle Tracking Pad 0 EA $1,500.00 $0.00
18 Seeding Type D 16,870 SY $1.00 $16,870.44
19 Power & Data utility trench and conduit 2,000 LF $10.00 $20,000.00
20 Construction Staking 0 LS $20,000.00 $0.00

$155,000.00Total Construction Cost

Sudbury Ranch

December 21, 2021

Pennington County, South Dakota

KLJ Project No. 2116-00390



CURVE DATA
SEGMENT

C1

C2

C3

C4

C5

C6

C7

C8

C9

C10

C11

LENGTH

155.61'

318.32'

25.72'

18.99'

54.65'

111.03'

90.69'

18.99'

35.88'

228.13'

81.90'

RADIUS

67.00'

233.00'

167.00'

25.00'

55.00'

55.00'

55.00'

25.00'

233.00'

167.00'

100.00'

DELTA

133°04'09"

78°16'36"

8°49'29"

43°31'52"

56°55'35"

115°39'47"

94°28'23"

43°31'52"

8°49'26"

78°16'07"

46°55'24"

CHRD BRNG

N25°42'53"E

S01°41'11"E

S33°02'01"W

S06°51'21"W

S13°33'12"W

N80°09'07"W

N24°54'58"E

N50°23'13"E

N33°02'08"E

S01°41'19"E

S64°16'53"E

CHRD DIST

122.92'

294.14'

25.70'

18.54'

52.43'

93.11'

80.76'

18.54'

35.85'

210.80'

79.63'

15'56"

31'50" 51'22"W

55'37"

39'50"

28'14"

31'55"

54'58"E

09'04"W

15'57"

11.082 ACRES
LOT 2

11.373 ACRES
LOT 5

10.472 ACRES
LOT 6

N 49°14'05" E  1320.48' (M)

N47°09'43"E 1320.84' (R)

N00°03'45"E 780.70 (R)
N 02°08'12" E  780.45' (M)

S00°48'29"W 396.00' (R)
S 02°06'15" W  395.86' (M)

S 02°10'02" W  1314.21' (M)

S00°45'07"W 1314.32' (R)

N
 8

7°
45

'0
4"

 W
  2

63
9.

03
' (

M
)

N 02°08'41" E  33.00'

N
 8

7°
43

'5
1"

 W
  9

67
.3

2'
 (M

)

N
89

°4
8'

33
"W

 9
67

.5
7'

 (R
)

C5 C4
C3

N 02°14'58" E  114.69' (M)

S 87°45'02" E  96.45' (M)

S 02°14'58" W  114.69' (M)

C6

S 
87

°3
7'

56
" E

  5
76

.5
3'

 (M
)

S8
8°

58
'2

7"
E 

57
6.

51
' (

R
)

S 
87

°3
8'

02
" E

  3
63

.9
3'

 (M
)

S8
8°

58
'2

7"
E 

36
4.

23
' (

R
)

S 
87

°4
0'

15
" E

  3
79

.2
9'

 (M
)

S8
8°

58
'2

7"
E 

37
9.

56
' (

R
)

33.00'

37
9.

28
'

36
3.

93
'

63
1.

46
'

256.04'

476.18'
N 57°34'59" E  732.22'

N 02°10'02" E  1282.48'
925.71'356.77'

N 02°10'02" E  1281.74'

S 
64

°2
7'

04
" E

  7
34

.3
3' S 05°23'05" W  509.99'

N 67°40'53" E  438.40'

N 50
°2

5'4
8"
 W

  9
36

.32
'

336.17'

C7
C8
C9

C10

C11

C1

C2

S 40
°49

'11
" E

  5
86

.68
'

N 40
°49

'11
" W

  4
14

.05
'

S 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 21

SUDBURY RANCH COURT

RIG
HT O

F W
AY

14
1.

58
'

S 87°45'02" E  17.45'
5/8" REBAR
"FMG INC SD LS 1019"

5/8" REBAR
"FMG INC SD LS 1019"

5/8" REBAR W/AC
"FMG INC SD LS 1019"

5/8" REBAR
"FMG INC SD LS 1019"

5/8" REBAR W/YELLOW
PLASTIC CAP
(ILLEGIBLE )

5/8" REBAR W/YELLOW
PLASTIC CAP

"DAVIS ENG 3095"

5/8" REBAR W/YELLOW
PLASTIC CAP

"DAVIS ENG 3095"

5/8" REBAR W/MELTED
PLASTIC CAP
(ILLEGIBLE )

5/8" REBAR W/YELLOW
PLASTIC CAP
"DAVIS ENG 3095"5/8" REBAR W/YELLOW

PLASTIC CAP
"DAVIS ENG 3095"

5/8" REBAR W/YELLOW
PLASTIC CAP
"DAVIS ENG 3095"

5/8" REBAR W/MELTED
PLASTIC CAP
(ILLEGIBLE )

5/8" REBAR W/MELTED
PLASTIC CAP
(ILLEGIBLE )

5/8" REBAR
"FMG INC SD LS 1019"

R

SU
D

B
U

R
Y 

R
A

N
C

H
 R

O
A

D
R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY

LO
T 1

OF

TRACT A

LO
T 2

OF

TRACT A

LO
T 1

OF

TRACT B

LO
T 2

OF

TRACT B

TRACT C

TRACT D

TRACT E

S8
8°

58
'2

7"
E 

64
9.

10
' (

R
)

S 
87

°3
9'

04
" E

  6
48

.9
5'

 (M
)

S88°58'27"E 25.00' (R)
S 87°50'14" E  25.07' (M)

S8
8°

58
'2

7"
E 

32
3.

18
' (

R
)

S 
87

°4
2'

47
" E

  3
23

.1
8'

 (M
)

23
7.

42
'

85
.1

8'N
 8

7°
37

'0
4"

 W
  3

22
.6

0'

96
.4

5'
S 

87
°4

5'
02

" E
  7

20
.7

9'

PREVIOUSLY DEDICATED
PORTION OF SUDBURY
RANCH ROAD

46.97'

11.158 ACRES
LOT 11

SECTION LINE 1281.21'

22 27

21 28

10.712 ACRES
LOT 10

10.662 ACRES
LOT 8

SE
C

TI
O

N
 L

IN
E

1/4 LINE

LO
T 1

OF SUDBURY R
ANCH

(P
REVIO

USLY
 PLA

TTED)

0.254 ACRES
LOT 3

11.166 ACRES
LOT 4

B  O
  N  N  I  T  A   S  U  B  D  I  V  I  S  I O

  N

B  O
  N  N  I  T  A   S  U  B  D  I  V  I  S  I O

  N

E 1/4 CORNER

10.498 ACRES
LOT 7

33' 66'

10.097 ACRES
LOT 9

N 37°26'45" E  383.14'

N 37°26'45" E  383.14'

N 37°26'45" E  383.14' 66'

66'

N 06°07'14" W  794.89'

S 
69

°2
7'

56
" E

  6
13

.4
9'

SE
C

TI
O

N
 L

IN
E

SU
D

B
U

R
Y 

R
A

N
C

H
 R

O
A

D
R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY

S 
87

°4
5'

01
" E

  1
51

6.
25

'

S 02°10'19" W  1314.37' (M)

N00°45'07"E 1314.32' (R)

33'

E 1/4 CORNER
SECTION 21

1/
4 

LI
N

E
SHEET 1 OF 2

PREPARED BY:
KLJ
330 KNOLLWOOD DRIVE
RAPID CITY, SD 57701-6611
605.721.5553
www.kljeng.com

LEGEND
SECTION LINE

1/4 LINE

STATUTORY SECTION LINE RIGHT-OF-WAY

FOUND MONUMENT (AS NOTED)

SET #5 REBAR AND CAP MARKED "KLJ FREAR LS 12321"

DIMENSION OF RECORD

MEASURED DISTANCE

NOTES:

1. THE BASIS OF BEARINGS FOR THIS SURVEY IS
NAD 83/2011 (EPOCH 2010.00) SOUTH DAKOTA STATE
PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, SOUTH ZONE (RAPID
CITY CONTROL) IN U.S. SURVEY FEET.  THE
COMBINED SCALE FACTOR TO CONVERT FROM GRID
DISTANCE TO GROUND DISTANCE IS: 1.000278971.
BEARINGS AND DISTANCES OF RECORD SHOWN
HEREON ARE GEODETIC BEARINGS AND GROUND
DISTANCES. ALL OTHER BEARINGS AND DISTANCES
SHOWN HEREON ARE STATE PLANE GRID BEARINGS
AND DISTANCES.

2.KLJ RELIED UPON FIRST AMERICAN TITLE 
INSURANCE COMPANY FILE NO. 150160 DATED
FEBRUARY 24, 2021 AT 7:30 AM FOR ALL MATTERS
OF TITLE,  EXISTING EASEMENTS, AND OWNERSHIP.

3. ALL EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY SHOWN
HEREON ARE HEREBY DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC
FOR THE USES AS NOTED.

NOTES:

4.8' WIDE UTILITY AND MINOR DRAINAGE EASEMENTS
ARE HEREBY DEDICATED ALONG THE INTERIOR OF
ALL LOT LINES.

5. ANY MAJOR DRAINAGE EASEMENT SHOWN HEREON
SHALL BE KEPT FREE OF ALL OBSTRUCTIONS,
INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO BUILDINGS, WALLS,
FENCES, HEDGES, TREES, AND SHRUBS.  THESE
EASEMENTS GRANT TO ALL PUBLIC AUTHORITIES
THE RIGHT TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, MAINTAIN,
INSPECT AND REPAIR SUCH IMPROVEMENTS AND
STRUCTURES AS IT DEEMS EXPEDIENT TO
FACILITATE DRAINAGE FROM ANY SOURCE.

RIGHT-OF-WAY AREAS:
SUDBURY RANCH ROAD - 1.999 ACRES
SUDBURY RANCH COURT - 2.297 ACRES

100 0 100 200

SCALE FEET

1"=300'

N

PLAT OF LOT 2R, LOTS 3 THRU 11, DEDICATED PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR SUDBURY RANCH COURT AND
DEDICATED PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR SUDBURY RANCH ROAD

LOCATED IN
THE SOUTH 1/2 OF SECTION 21, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 7 EAST

OF THE BLACK HILLS MERIDIAN, PENNINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH DAKOTA

SUDBURY RANCH SUBDIVISION

(R)

(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT OF



 

October 20, 2022 

Jason Theunissen  
Deputy Director of Planning 
130 Kansas City St. Suite 200 
Rapid City, SD 57701 

Re:  Sudbury Ranch Subdivision – Final completion 

Dear Jason:  

On Oct. 16, 2022 I visited the Sudbury Ranch Subdivision and found that the final punch 
list items for the site have been completed and the project appears to have been 
constructed to our design plans and specifications. 

Therefore, the Owner is requesting release of his surety. 

 
 

Thank you and please let me know if you need any additional information 
regarding this project. 

 

Sincerely, 

KLJ 

 

Dana Foreman 
Project Manager 

 

danaforeman
Snapshot



        

1     S u d b u r y   R a n c h  
    August 3, 2022 
       

CONSTRUCTION FIELD REPORT  
 
 

Project Name: Sudbury Ranch         Report Date: Thursday, August 04, 2022 

Owner Name: Casey Skyberg      Owner Project No: NA 

Project Location: Pennington County, SD   KLJ Project No: 2116-00390 

Contractor: - 

Reported by: Dana Foreman  

Cc: Punch List 

Present at Site:  

Dana Foreman, Sean – County Highway, Jason – County Planning 

Observations  
Site Work: 

Punch List walk through was performed with the following items identified to be addressed by the Contractor 

Site visit again on Oct. 16, 2022 to verify punch list complete  

Roadway 

 Provide additional grading of roadway ditches to include 3’ ditch bottom as shown on Plan Sheet 3.01 complete 
o Sudbury Ranch Rd Sta 6+00 to 18+00 south ditch 
o Sudbury Ranch Rd. Sta 16+00 to 18+00 north ditch 
o Sky Ridge Ct. Sta 57+00 to 63+43 both sides 

 Sky Ridge Ct. regrade west ditch bottom to provide positive drainage to low spot culvert complete 
o Sta 51+00 to 56+05 

Erosion Control 

 Provide native grass seeding on disturbed areas  complete 
 Provide riprap 

o Sudbury Ranch Rd. ditches Sta 7+00 to 11+00 Plan Sheet 4.06  complete 
 Provide erosion control wattles within roadway ditch as shown  complete 

 

Weather: ˜  Bright Sun  Clear  Overcast  ˜  Rain  ˜  Snow 

Temperature: ˜  < 32°  32°-50°  51°-70°   71°-85°   > 86° 

Wind:  Still  Moderate  High 

Soil 
Condition: 

 Saturated  Moist  Dry 










	4. November 1, 2022 Agenda
	5.1 2022 Veteran List
	5.2 HHS-Pennington County Veteran Services Office-Veterans Day-1-Memo.docx
	6. Proclamation - Derr 2022
	7. minutes 2022.10.18 final
	8. Disinterment Permit 1491751
	9. Hill City PARADE FORM 2022
	10. HWY Memorandum of Understanding Lawrence County
	11.a  HWY Work Order PD-19-21 Lamb and Reservoir Rd Intersection Engineering
	11.b HWY Auth to Purchase One New Traveling Axle Lowboy Trailer
	12.a BG (Design Services 2nd Mtg) 11.01.2022
	12.b BG (1st notice) 11.01.22 Mtg
	13. 2023 Wage Scale Implementation
	14. Resolution 2022-C2 Contigency - West River Regional Water System
	15.a-b Ellsworth docs
	15.a-b Holli docs
	16. Vouchers
	18. Planning Packet
	PZ - 11-01-22 PC CB AGENDA
	PZ - 10-24-22 PC MINUTES
	PZ - 11-01-22 PC CB Packet
	A - VA 22-21 Rob Livingston Setback
	VA22-21 Rob Livingston Setback To Residential
	STAFF REPORT

	20221027112400245
	Livingston Plat
	Site Map
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map

	B - VA 22-22 Rob Livingston Setback
	VA22-22 Rob Livingston Setback To NonResidential
	STAFF REPORT

	20221027112400245
	Livingston Plat
	Site Map
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Map

	C - CA 22-20 Brian Schroeder
	CA22-20 BRian Schroeder
	STAFF REPORT

	Site
	Aerial
	Future Land Use
	Zoning

	D - RZ 22-27 Brian Schroeder
	RZ22-27 BRian Schroeder
	STAFF REPORT

	Site
	Aerial
	Zoning
	Future Land Use

	E - PU22-13 Blue Wing RecreationCorp. Major
	Staff Report
	Zoning Map
	Routing Comments

	F - OA 22-09 Section 517 Special Permitted Uses
	PROPOSED TEXT:

	G - OA 22-10 Section 204 General District Provisions
	PROPOSED TEXT:

	H - OA 22-11 Section 103 Definitions
	PROPOSED TEXT:

	I - Sudbury Ranch Request Release Surety
	SudburyRanchPlat_Preliminary.pdf






